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The First Truly Global Communications Network
for the Digital Age
In March 2013, the Dentsu Group, the No. 1 advertising agency in Japan, and the London-based Aegis Group,
the world’s largest independent media agency with a fast-growing global network, became one. Together, we
are the world’s first global communications network with a leading position in Japan.
Having welcomed the Aegis Group under its corporate umbrella, the Dentsu Group embarked on a newly
drafted medium-term management plan, Dentsu 2017 and Beyond, which is matched to major changes in scale
and business structure brought about by the acquisition of the Aegis Group.
Dentsu seeks to be a constantly growing, truly global company and will guide the Group in pursuing
opportunities aimed at expanding business in growth fields and capturing new sources of revenue. At the same
time, Dentsu seeks to improve profitability in all areas, particularly core businesses.

Forward-Looking Statements This annual report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements”
regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of Dentsu Inc. or its management with respect to the results of
operations and financial condition of Dentsu or the Dentsu Group. Such forward-looking statements are not guarantees
of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ from those in the forward-looking
statements as a result of various factors. The information contained in this annual report identifies important factors
that could cause such differences. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date hereof. Dentsu disclaims
any obligation to update or publicly announce any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect future
events, conditions or circumstances.
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Dentsu Group Corporate Philosophy

Statement
Ideas that reach beyond the imaginable.
Technology that crosses the bounds of possibilities.
Entrepreneurship that surpasses the expected.
Three sources of strength, driving our innovation,
bringing positive change to people and society.
Slogan

Good Innovation.

The Three Elements of Innovation

Entrepreneurship

Ideas

Technology

Entrepreneurship
+Ideas
+Technology

By “Innovation” we are talking about much more than just technological innovation.
We mean generating new value for people and society
through a wide variety of changes.

Dentsu Group Corporate Philosophy
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To Our Shareholders

Tadashi Ishii
Representative Director
President & CEO

1. Looking Back on Fiscal 2012
On behalf of the Dentsu Group, I would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to
you, our shareholders, for your invaluable support
and understanding of our efforts.
The fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 (hereinafter
“fiscal 2012” or “the fiscal year under review”) was a
pivotal year that marked an extremely huge step in
the Dentsu Group’s journey toward further growth.
The formalities associated with the acquisition of
Aegis Group plc (currently, “Aegis Media”) of the
United Kingdom, which was announced back in July
2012, were completed on March 26, 2013, and Dentsu
Aegis Network Ltd. was established to drive the
Dentsu Group’s global business forward.
With Aegis Media as part of the Dentsu Group, we
increased our global presence to more than 110
countries and political regions, and embraced a new
vision to guide our growth into the future. But before I
continue with this important development, let me
summarize other key events and the results of fiscal 2012.
Uncertainty continued to permeate the domestic
economy in fiscal 2012. Although reconstruction
demand in the wake of the Great East Japan
Earthquake and positive effects from the government’s
eco-car subsidy program provided some impetus for
gradual recovery in Japan, bright prospects were
clouded by external factors, especially the lingering
sovereign debt crisis in Europe and decelerating
growth in some emerging nations, notably China.
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Demand for advertising, mainly television spots,
shifted in a favorable direction in the first quarter of
fiscal 2012 as the market rebounded from the harsh
conditions following the earthquake disaster that
cooled spending in the corresponding period a year
earlier. However, certain issues, particularly a
heightened sense of uncertainty over the direction
that the global economy would take, caused demand
for advertising to slow in the second quarter and the
situation did not resolve itself by year-end.
Against this backdrop, the Dentsu Group drew on
events such as the London 2012 Olympic Games,
TOYOTA Presents FIFA Club World Cup Japan 2012,
and the 2013 World Baseball Classic as opportunities
for multifaceted business development. The Group
also leveraged its integrated capabilities to promote
vigorous marketing activities and endeavored to
deliver services well-matched to the needs of
corporate clients. These efforts kept consolidated
results charting an upward path. Net sales edged up
2.5% over the previous fiscal year, to 1,941,223
million yen; gross profit rose 3.9%, to 345,940 million
yen; operating income climbed 12.5%, to 58,466
million yen; and net income jumped 22.9%, to 36,336
million yen.
2. Seeking Further Growth
The acquisition of the Aegis Group has significantly
changed the business structure of the Dentsu Group.
A rough estimate based on fiscal 2012 results indicates
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that overseas business represents 44%1 of
consolidated gross profit, a huge increase from 18%
prior to the acquisition. The number of employees has
also grown, reaching a level exceeding 37,000 on a
Group-wide basis.
Given the changes in business structure, Dentsu
formulated a new medium-term management plan—
Dentsu 2017 and Beyond—to guide the Group’s
development over the five-year period from fiscal
2013 through fiscal 2017. Dentsu 2017 and Beyond is
based on a review of the Group’s overall activities and
the progress achieved through Dentsu Innovation
2013, the previous medium-term management plan,
and incorporates unresolved issues that require
further attention.
Regardless of how big we get as a group or how
extensive our business presence is felt around the
world, business activity begins and ends with the client.
Clients provide opportunities. They always have and
always will.
Dentsu 2017 and Beyond reaffirms our view that
clients are the starting point of business, and we will
strive to identify, from a wider perspective than
before, growth and business opportunities that derive
from clients and then steadily turn such potential into
reality.
For the Dentsu Group to be a corporate group that
grows with its clients, we must maintain whatever
must be preserved as a source of growth and, at the
same time, approach whatever requires changing, not
with a repeat of something that was successful in the
past, but rather with swift implementation of timely
reforms. The new medium-term management plan
Dentsu 2017 and Beyond will guide these efforts
along the way.
1

Percentage represents a simple sum of fiscal 2012 gross profits of Dentsu and
the Aegis Group.

Let me touch on the objectives behind the
guideline for business targets to be achieved by fiscal
2017, as described in the new medium-term
management plan.
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(1) Gross Profit Organic Growth Rate 2 : 3%–5%
Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR)
The acquisition of the Aegis Group has given the
Group a considerably wider geographical reach. With
this expanded presence, business opportunities
available to the Group are more diverse. Market scale
and growth rates differ from one region to another,
but growth potential definitely exists for us regardless
of location. The guideline for average annual gross
profit, which targets an organic growth rate of
3%–5% CAGR—that is, without considering the
potential impact from M&As—represents our
objective to reinforce the post-Aegis Group
acquisition business platform and realize steadily
higher revenue. This is the most basic target.
2

The growth of existing businesses after deduction of decrease or increase in gross
profit attributable to business acquisitions or foreign exchange fluctuations

(2) Gross Profit Overseas Ratio: 55% or Higher
Our operations have become increasingly multipolar,
so gross profit from overseas business is larger, with
diverse potential for growth. The guideline for the
gross profit from overseas business highlights a ratio
of 55% or higher by fiscal 2017, up from the current
44%. However, Japan is still our largest single market,
and it will remain a vital core market. Of course, the
objective behind a higher gross profit ratio for
overseas business is to achieve solid revenue growth
from the core domestic business first and then steadily
capitalize on diverse growth opportunities overseas.
(3) Gross Profit Digital Domain Ratio3: 35% or Higher
The digital domain has acquired greater importance
to client companies in their business and marketing
activities. For the Dentsu Group, the digital domain is
a key segment, and achieving a sharper competitive
edge and strengthening revenue-g e n e r a t i n g
capabilities are central themes that will underpin
growth into the future.
We will encourage the implementation of measures
to enhance capabilities on a Group-wide basis, a
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process that includes the possibility of M&As, and
strive to augment service lines and expand revenue
scale. At the same time, we seek to improve the
Group’s operating efficiency. Through parallel efforts,
we will see higher overall profitability from our digital
business. In addition, we will leverage the integrated
capabilities of the Group, including the expertise of
Dentsu Aegis Network, to develop and capture
leading-edge technologies that directly affect
competitive superiority in the digital domain.
3

Digital domain includes Internet-related marketing services and entrusted
development and sales of information technology systems.

regardless of where in the world they are.
The encouragement and guidance of shareholders
are integral to the success of our strategies. On behalf
of the Dentsu Group, I ask for your continued support
as we travel the road to growth together.
September 2013

Tadashi Ishii
Representative Director
President & CEO

(4) Operating Margin before Amortization of
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets4: 20% or Higher
Expanding the business platform and improving
profitability are key themes. We are already utilizing
the acquisition of the Aegis Group as an opportunity
to re-engineer overall business processes for higher
efficiency throughout the Group. Tighter cost control
is essential, of course, as is finding the best approach
for investing management resources, as viewed from
a wide perspective, as well as efforts to restructure
the value chain across the entire Group. Through
these steps, we will enhance overall operating
efficiency and boost profitability.
4

Calculated by dividing operating income before deduction of amortization of
goodwill and other intangible assets by gross profit. “Operating income before
deduction of amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets” is operating
income excluding the amount of amortization expense related to business
acquisitions.

The Dentsu Group is an innovator of marketing
communication that goes beyond the framework of
conventional advertising business. We will continue to
apply integrated capabilities to the process of change
and innovation to evolve into a next-generation
agency network offering unrivaled value to corporate
clients.
As a global network promoting the “Good
Innovation.” ideal, we are steadfastly determined to
bring creativity and change to society, and we will
strive to boost our value as a group that clients
consistently view as the best partner for their needs
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The Dentsu Group’s
Business Promotion Structure
The scale and business structure of the Dentsu
Group changed considerably with the acquisition of
the Aegis Group (currently, “Aegis Media”). Please
find below a summary of the Group’s new business
structure by region, its management structure and
solid position within the industry.
1. The Dentsu Group’s Regional Business Structure
The new Dentsu Group, with the integration of Aegis
Media, is a global communications group providing
services in more than 110 countries and political
regions through more than 300 offices.
Despite a more diversified regional business
structure for the Group now that the acquisition of
the Aegis Group is complete, Japan remains the
largest market. Representing 56% of gross profit1,
the Japanese market is positioned as the business
platform at the Group’s core. The remaining 44%
comes from outside Japan, with Europe–Middle
East–Africa (EMEA2 ) accounting for 18%, the
Americas 3 14%, and Asia Pacific (APAC 4 ) 12%.

2. Management Structure Following the Acquisition
of the Aegis Group
Given the diversification of its business portfolio and
the significance of Japan to its top line, Dentsu
broadly separated Group operations into domestic
and overseas segments. Executive officers have been
assigned oversight authority for domestic
operations and overseas operations, respectively,
creating a global team to lead the Group forward in
its overall business pursuits. Also, seeking to realize
growth under the new global structure, Dentsu
established Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. as a new
overseas headquarters. Dentsu Network and Aegis
Media will continue to operate as separate entities,
but they will be governed by Dentsu Aegis
Network’s management team and the Board of
Directors.

Gross Profit Percentage Mix by Major Region after
the Acquisition of the Aegis Group1

EMEA2

Japan

18%

56%

Americas3

14%

APAC 4

(excl. Japan)

12%

Simple combined consolidated total of gross profit for Dentsu and the Aegis
Group in fiscal 2012
2 Europe, Middle East and Africa
3 North, Central and South America
4 Asia Pacific
1
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Tadashi Ishii
Representative Director,
President & CEO

Domestic operation

Yuzuru Kato
Director,
Executive Vice President,
Dentsu Inc.
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Shoichi Nakamoto
Director,
Senior EVP, CFO

Overseas operation

Tim Andree
Director,
Executive Vice President,
Dentsu Inc.
Executive Chairman,
Dentsu Aegis Network

Jerry Buhlmann
Executive Officer,
Dentsu Inc.
CEO,
Dentsu Aegis Network
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3. The Dentsu Group’s Position in the Advertising
Communications Industry

No. 3 in Media Billings
$ Bn

The ad agency rankings of the invigorated Dentsu
Group have not changed. We retain our No. 1
position in Japan5 and the No. 5 spot in the world6.
However, in terms of media billings, we are now No.
3, reinforcing our profile as a global media agency.
In addition, we have more than 11,000 clients on a
global basis and serve more than 70 of the top 100
global advertisers. Our overseas business has grown
significantly, accounting for 44% of gross profit,
from 18% prior to the acquisition of the Aegis
Group, with 23% of gross profit coming from the
digital domain. With diverse specialization, the
more than 37,000 employees 7 of the Group will
continue to hone their intelligence and creativity
and will work together across national boundaries
and areas of business, with an emphasis on sharing
and integrating services, developing and offering
innovative services, and creating opportunities for
joint solutions to the problems facing client
companies.

2011 Billing Ranking10

100
90 90.8
80
70
66.2
60
50
47.1 44.9
40
35.7
31.6
30
20
17.1
11.5
10
0
WPP PUB Dentsu OMC Aegis IPG HAV Dentsu
+Aegis11
Billings of WPP, PUB, OMC, Aegis Group, IPG and HAV are based on RECMA
Overall Billings 2011. Media billings of Dentsu are based on its non-consolidated
media net sales (net sales from television, newspapers, magazines, radio, interactive
media and OOH media) in CY2011.
Source: RECMA Overall Billings 2011, issued by Dentsu
11 Calculated by the simple sum of Aegis’s billings and Dentsu’s non-consolidated
media net sales at the rate of ¥79.8 = US$1 (average currency rate for CY2011)
10

Overview of the Dentsu Group after
the Acquisition of Aegis Group

Based on consolidated net sales in Japan in fiscal 2012
Advertising Age, April 29, 2013 edition
7 As of March 2013
5
6

●

No.1 in Japan with ＋60％
larger than No.2 Player12

No. 5 Ad Agency Group
$ Bn

2012 Revenue Ranking8

18
16

●

3rd largest agency group in the world by media billings

●

11,000＋ clients globally, serving 70＋

16.5

out of top 100 global advertisers14

14.2

14

13

12

●

~44％ of gross profit from outside of Japan

●

~23％ of gross profit from digital

15

10
8.5

8

7.0

6

6.4

4
2.3

2

● Approximately

2.2

15

37,000 employees

16

0
WPP

OMC

PUB

IPG

Dentsu9 HAV Hakuhodo

Based on consolidated net sales in Japan in fiscal 2012
Calculated by the simple sum of Aegis’s billings and Dentsu’s non-consolidated
media net sales at the rate of ¥79.8 = US$1 (average currency rate for CY2011)
14 Advertising Age, December 2012
15 Simple combined consolidated total of gross profit for Dentsu and the Aegis Group
in fiscal 2012
16 As of March 2013
12

13

8
9

Advertising Age, April 29, 2013 edition
Including the Aegis Group
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Aegis Media Highlights

On March 26, 2013, Dentsu completed its acquisition
of the London-based Aegis Group, which became
Aegis Media and fell under the umbrella of the
newly established subsidiary Dentsu Aegis Network.
This column provides details about Aegis Media.
1. Aegis Media Business Outline
Prior to the integration with Dentsu, the Aegis Group
was the largest independent media agency in the
world and Aegis Media retains this position. Digitalrelated business accounts for 35% of revenue, underscoring the company’s strength in the digital domain.
In addition, the company maintains accounts with
more than 5,000 clients worldwide, and revenue
from global clients represents 33%—highlighting
the strength of the company’s client base.

Overview of the Aegis Group before the Integration1
(As of December 31, 2011)

1
2

No.1

independent media agency group

35％

of Aegis Media revenue2 from digital,
up from 32% in 2010
(highest in peer group — Publicis: 31%, WPP: 30%)

5,000＋

clients
71 of the world’s top 100 advertisers
50% of Aegis Media revenue2 from North America,
and faster growing regions

33％

of Aegis Media revenue2 from international clients,
up from 32% in 2010

marketing analytics. All five of Aegis Media’s major
brand networks are world-leading media and digital
communications businesses.

Overview of Global Network Brands
under the Aegis Media Umbrella

Carat U.K.-based Carat is the world’s largest media communications
company, with a presence in 110 countries. The company creates
better business value for clients by maximizing media value.

Vizeum U.K.-based Vizeum is a media agency with excellence
in communication planning that emphasizes digital media and is
active in more than 30 countries. The company works with other
companies under the Aegis Media umbrella to bring about
innovative change in the ad communications of its clients.

Isobar U.K.-based Isobar is a digital agency with presence in more
than 30 countries. It established the world’s largest global digital
network by orchestrating digital technologies all over the world.
The company supports clients through its outstanding digital
marketing capabilities.

iProspect U.K.-based iProspect is a digital performance marketing
agency with a presence in more than 40 countries. The company
supports clients in maximizing online marketing ROI.

Posterscope U.K.-based Posterscope is an out-of-home (OOH)
communications agency, operating in more than 20 countries.
The company’s expertise focuses on the consumption behavior of
consumers.

Aegis Media data under the Aegis Group
Gross profit calculated using revenue figures based on IFRS

2. Brands under the Aegis Media Umbrella
Aegis Media is made up of Carat, Vizeum, Isobar,
iProspect and Posterscope. Aegis Media’s communications services include digital creative execution,
media planning and buying, brand tracking, social
media activation, web experiences, mobile applications, digital marketing, search engine optimization
(SEO) strategy, near-field communications (NFC) and
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3. Performance Trends
The Aegis Group is delivering stable business results,
substantiated by a 12.1% increase in revenue and an
11.4% increase in underlying profit before interest
and tax in 2012. As a result, the operating margin
reached 17.6%.

Revenue3

(Years ended
December 31)

(Millions of
pounds)
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■ Revenue
3

Based on IFRS

(Millions of
pounds)

Underlying Profit
before Interest and Tax 4

(Years ended
December 31)
(%)
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■ Underlying profit before interest and tax

ー Operating margin (Underlying operating margin) 5
Underlying profit before interest and tax refers to operating income before
interest, tax, amortization of other intangible assets and non-recurring items.
5 Operating margin (Underlying operating margin) = underlying profit before
interest and tax ÷ revenue × 100
4
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Business Domains and Strengths

The First Truly Global Communications Network for the Digital Age

In the advertising communications industry, the
Dentsu Group is ranked No. 5 in the world—based
on gross profit in 2012—and in Japan’s ad market,
which is the third largest in the world, the Group
maintains the top share. Also of note, the Group
operates under a unique collaborative agency
model that enables all the agencies under its
umbrella to draw on each other’s expertise to
provide respective clients with high value-added
services. Furthermore, with creative excellence
substantiated by numerous ad awards, and top-class
capabilities in the digital domain, the Group has the
stuff to offer services of a world-caliber standard to
clients.
From a financial perspective, Dentsu seeks a good
balance between financial stability and soundness
and acquiring the necessary investment resources to
build businesses in tomorrow’s growth domains.
The Dentsu Group will draw on these strengths to
evolve on a new level as “the first truly global
communications network for the digital age.”

1. Position in the Advertising Communications Industry
1-1 Balanced Global Business Platform That Covers
Emerging Markets
The Dentsu Group is the largest agency network in
the world, with a global presence spanning 110
countries across five continents. According to
Advertising Age (April 29, 2013 edition), Dentsu is
the world’s largest advertising company, based on
non-consolidated gross profit in 2012, and as an
agency group, the Dentsu Group is ranked fifth
globally. From a geographical perspective, the
Dentsu Group holds formidable market share in the
Asia-Pacific region and also in Western Europe,
while in North America, the largest ad market in the
world, there is still plenty of growth potential.

Relative Scale of Advertising Markets Worldwide1

New Global Network Business Platform2
Leading Position
in Western Europe

Other 4.7%

● UK #3

● Russia #3
● China #3

Other Latin America 1.8%
Other APAC 10.1%
United States 33.5%
● Japan #1

Other Europe
12.4%

● Taiwan #1
● Thailand #2

2012

● Malaysia #3

Brazil 2.2%
France 2.5%

Leading Position
in Asia Pacific

Germany 3.0%
United Kingdom 4.7%
Japan 12.0%

China 13.1%

● Germany #2
● France #1

● Dentsu Global Coverage
1
2

Fastest Growing
Network in the
United States

● Australia #2

● Aegis Global Coverage

● Position in Major Countries

Includes television, newspapers, magazines, radio, outdoor and Internet advertising; Source: CARAT ADSPEND FORECAST SEPTEMBER 2013
Source: (1) RECMA, June 2011 (2) Advertising Age, December 2012
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1-2 Market Leader in Japan, World’s No. 3 Ad Market

2. New Agency Model—“One P&L”

Dentsu is the largest advertising company in Japan
and maintains a very strong position. Consolidated
net sales in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013,
were 1.8 times as large as the equivalent consolidated
net sales of the second largest advertising company
in Japan. In addition, on a non-consolidated basis,
Dentsu’s net sales account for approximately
one-quarter of the domestic market, and the Company
maintains top-share status in all mass media categories.
The Group’s leading position in the Japanese
advertising industry derives from its success in combining
superior creative services and planning capabilities with
unparalleled domestic media buying power, while its
core strengths of innovation and adaptation are
evidenced in the Group’s continued global expansion
and growing digital services businesses.
Furthermore, a growing number of top Japanese
companies—the Group’s principal clients—are spending
more of their advertising budgets outside of Japan.
The acquisition of the Aegis Group (currently, “Aegis
Media”) has brought the Group significant upside
potential to capture these untapped Japanese client
needs through its fully integrated, global platform.

The Dentsu Group has established “One P&L,” a
unique, collaborative operating model that
strengthens Group companies’ ability to provide
comprehensive, client-centric solutions.
“One P&L” reinforces connections between the lead
agency and top-tier specialists in various fields in
each country and region so that clients have access
to high value-added services not previously available
from any agency before.
The services offered are highly diverse—including
mass media advertising, media planning, creative
origination, digital performance marketing, brand
management, sales promotion, event marketing,
entertainment and sports marketing, public relations
and public affairs, social media, digital production,
direct marketing services, shopper marketing,
consumer insight and business intelligence services.
In the age of “marketing convergence,” advertisers
look for agencies with highly integrated services,
and because the “One P&L” model functions so
effectively, it will offer a source of competitive
excellence that gives the Dentsu Group an edge
over mega-agency competitors.

Changes in Domestic Advertising Company
Market Share3

True Client-centric Network
Suitable for the Age of Marketing Convergence

(%)
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Ideas

Client
Centric
integration for
our customers’
benefits

Technology

0
2009

Content

Commerce

■ Asatsu-DK ■ HDY ■ Dentsu
3

(1) HDY is the total of non-consolidated net sales by Hakuhodo, Daiko Advertising
and Yomiuri Advertising.
(2) The scope of statistics used to calculate net sales for individual companies may
differ from that used to prepare Advertising Expenditures in Japan. Percentages
roughly reflect the ratio of net sales to spending shown in Advertising
Expenditures in Japan.
Sources: Current Situation of Japanese Advertising Agencies, Advertising and Economy
(Advertising and Economy Research Institute) and Advertising Expenditures
in Japan (Dentsu)
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“One P&L”
Collaborative Operating Model for the Dentsu Group
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3. Services of a World-Caliber Standard

3-2 World-Caliber Digital Franchise

3-1 Stellar Reputations for Agency Brands

The Dentsu Group also has several highly recognized
digital agencies under its umbrella. For example,
isobar was tapped Digital Agency Network of the Year
in 2011 and again in 2012, and 360i and iProspect were
ranked the second and third largest search-marketing
agencies in the United States, respectively, in 2012.
By combining powerful, industry-leading brands
across all of the key functions in the digital domain,
the Group is well positioned to capture the growing
digital business opportunities around the world.
Going forward, the Group will look to further
strengthen its digital franchise through such
approaches as bolt-on acquisitions.

Several agencies with solid reputations worldwide
belong to the Dentsu Group.
Dentsu is the world’s largest advertising company
in terms of revenue, and in the media domain, Carat
is ranked second in the world in terms of media
billings.

World’s Largest Advertising Company
Ranking by Revenue4

Our Powerful Digital Brands
Young & Rubicam

McCANN
WORLDGROUP
Digital Marketing

2

1

3

Top 50 Media Agencies
Ranking by Billings5

MediaCom

Digital Creative

Digital Media Agency

OMD

2

4
5

1

3

Advertising Technology

Source: Advertising Age, April 29, 2013 edition
Source: Campaign Magazine, 2013
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Achievements in Creativity

Achievements of Our Key Digital Brands

Digital agency network

The Group ranked first in The Gunn Report ’s

6

Most Awarded Advertising Agencies in the World

of the year 2011, 2012

on a cumulative basis from 1999 to 2012 and fifth
in the Most Awarded Digital Agencies in the
World on a cumulative basis from 1999 to 2012.
2nd largest U.S.

The Group’s subsidiary, McGarry Bowen, one of

search-marketing agency in 2012 7

the premier creative agencies in the United
States, won Advertising Age’s Agency of the
Year in 2009 and 2011.

6
7

3rd largest U.S.

The award Japan Creator of the Year has been

search-marketing agency in 2012 7

given to the Group’s creators 22 out of 24 times.

Source: Campaign Asia-Pacific
Source: Advertising Age, April 29, 2013 edition

3-3 Creative Excellence
With a focus on “innovative creativity,” the Dentsu
Group draws on a wealth of talent including art
directors, copywriters, television commercial
planners and communication strategists. By
combining their expertise and diverse approaches
unrestricted by existing concepts and methods, the
Group seeks to continuously deliver original and
creative solutions. The Group also believes that it
has an excellent history of retaining its creative
talent by providing a venue where aspiring creators
can realize their potential. The Group’s high level of
creativity is underscored by tangible results,
including the following:

4. High Profitability and a Solid, Stable Financial
Position
The Dentsu Group achieves high profitability
because of its solid financial base in Japan and
continuous efforts to streamline its cost structure,
and thus maintains a high operating margin.
Also, by securing stable profits, the Group has
built a robust financial position. As a result, by
steadily enriching shareholders’ equity, the Group
has secured a high rating from Japan’s Rating and
Investment Information, Inc. (R&I). The Group will
work toward increasing corporate value while
emphasizing a good balance between financial
stability and soundness, and acquiring the necessary
investment resources for such growth areas as
global and digital businesses.8
8
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Aggregate net proceeds of 119.5 billion yen from a third-party allotment, together
with the issuance of new shares and the disposal of treasury shares, executed in July
2013, will be used to repay a portion of the 200 billion yen in short-term debt
borrowed in connection with Dentsu’s acquisition of the Aegis Group.
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Operating Margin9
(%)
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March 31)
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Operating margin = operating income ÷ gross profit × 100
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Special Feature
New Medium-term Management Plan
1. Overview of the New Medium-term
Management Plan
1-1 From Dentsu Innovation 2013 to Dentsu 2017
and Beyond
In the medium-term management plan Dentsu
Innovation 2013, launched in 2009, Dentsu highlighted “Taking on the Platform Era” as a central
theme and adopted various measures in line with
this theme for the Group to implement. We set our
focus on digitization and globalization, which were
becoming the drivers of market growth, and
directed our efforts toward securing scale and
presence in areas essential to achieving a competitive advantage over the medium to long term. As
presented below, our commitment to these efforts
yielded significant results in each domain.

Under Dentsu Innovation 2013, we came close to
completing development of the necessary business
platforms to meet clients’ needs and expectations
on a global basis. Going forward, we will shift from
a phase of platform development to a phase of
consolidating and maximizing existing resources.
Also, we remain committed to efforts aimed at
structural reforms and improved operational
efficiency and profitability of the entire Group.
Meanwhile, the structure of the Dentsu Group
has changed significantly with the move to make
the Aegis Group (currently, “Aegis Media”) a wholly
owned subsidiary, as part of our growth strategy to
expand on a global scale.
Breakdown of Gross Profit for
Domestic and Overseas Divisions
Overseas
18%

■ Achievements to Date
Digital

Before acquisition
of the Aegis Group
1

Domestic
56%

After acquisition
of the Aegis Group1

Simple combined consolidated total of gross profit for Dentsu and the Aegis
Group in fiscal 2012

• Consolidated gross profit increased
1.9 times from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2012
through enhancement of existing
business bases as well as M&A, etc.
• Saw progress in diversification and
globalization of the client portfolio
through the acquisition of important
clients by McGarrybowen, which was
named “Agency of the Year” twice
in three years.
• Completed the acquisition of the Aegis
Group in March 2013.

Structural
Reform

Domestic
82%

• With Japan and the U.S. as the core,
succeeded in expanding service
offerings and securing scale through
business platform development including
investment and M&A.
• Consolidated gross profit increased
1.7 times from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2012.

Global

Overseas
44%

• Promoted structural development of the
Japan business and launched specific
measures such as introducing a new
HR system.
• Conducted a fundamental review of parent
company operating expenses starting
in fiscal 2009 and has since maintained
the same level.
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Given these changes in business structure, the Dentsu
Group formulated a new medium-term management
plan—Dentsu 2017 and Beyond—which commenced
in fiscal 2013, the year ending March 31, 2014.
Dentsu 2017 and Beyond is based on a review of the
Group’s overall activities and the progress achieved
through Dentsu Innovation 2013, the previous
medium-term management plan, and incorporates
unresolved issues that require further attention.
The feasibility of achieving the business targets—
consolidated operating income of ¥70 billion, operating margin exceeding 20% and ROE of 8%—
stated in Dentsu Innovation 2013 has become
less likely, mainly because of the changes in the
Group’s business structure. This development
notwithstanding, we will continue to do our
utmost to achieve higher numbers in the future.
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1-2 Growth Opportunities Targeted in Dentsu 2017
and Beyond

shares. We will look to cement a stronger marketleading presence while improving profitability.

Looking at growth opportunities from a macro
perspective, the Dentsu Group divided the world
into three regions—North America, Asia and emerging countries, and Japan and Western Europe—and
dubbed this regional framework “3 Speed World.”
In addition, we have discovered another growth
opportunity—progress in “marketing convergence”—
which has definitely changed the relationship
between companies and consumers in marketing
activities.

■ Growth Opportunity from a Macro Perspective:
Development of Marketing Convergence

■ Growth Opportunity from a Macro Perspective:
3 Speed World
The first region is North America—the largest ad market
and the one that still offers plenty of opportunity for
share expansion—where we will work to steadily gain
market share and outperform total ad market growth.
The second region is Asia and emerging countries,
where growth rates are likely to remain high. Here,
we will emphasize efforts to achieve scale through
M&A activity designed to further expand our business
platform and also secure market-leading positions.
The third region is Japan and Western Europe,
which have entered the mature phase but where we
have established solid business platforms and market

2013 Adspend Growth Forecasts 2

Western
Europe
-2.3%

Central
and
Eastern
Europe
+5.9%

China
+6.9%

Japan
+1.3%

In recent years, several developments have
definitely changed the relationship between
companies and consumers in marketing activities,
including the spread of digital media and social
media, changes in consumers’ behavior patterns
and the evolution of technologies.
As such changes unfold, it has become difficult for
companies to succeed without linking each marketing process and individual measure organically,
where they used to function separately in the past.
We define these changes as a whole as marketing
convergence. In an environment in which marketing
convergence is progressing, companies require ever
more focused strategies and tactics in order to raise
the effectiveness of their marketing activities.
The prevailing situation demands a diversified
data platform and intelligence leading to accurate
insights, ideas and planning that improve the
effects of companies’ overall marketing activities,
and the utilization of various possibilities brought
about by the development of technology. The
Dentsu Group therefore has more opportunities to
display its superior abilities. The integrated abilities
of the Dentsu Group, based on these platforms, will
have greater value through the development of
marketing convergence.

North America
+3.1%

Asia Pacific
(excl. Japan
and China)

+5.7%

Latin
America
+9.0%

● High-growth market ● Stable growth market ● Mature market
2

The size of the circle represents the ad market size of each region.
Source: CARAT ADSPEND FORECAST SEPTEMBER 2013
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Marketing Convergence
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Mobile
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Mail order
operator
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More Opportunities to Display Superior Abilities

Data

Ideas

An overwhelming data convergence

From strategy to execution

that integrates not only off-line and

From upstream to downstream

on-line but also globally.

A planning capability that offers
integrated solutions.

Technology
Domestic and overseas Group companies that
boast various technical resources from system
establishment to application development.
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1-3 Objective of Dentsu 2017 and Beyond

2. Four Priority Themes of Dentsu 2017 and Beyond

The objective and business target guideline described
in the medium-term management plan Dentsu 2017
and Beyond are described below.

Four priority themes were set to guide the Group
toward achieving the targets stated in Dentsu 2017
and Beyond.

■ Objective

2-1 Diversifying the Portfolio on a Global Basis
Two pillars will support efforts to diversify the
portfolio on a global basis: Strengthening the client
base and developing regional strategies.

To evolve into a truly global network
at the forefront of marketing convergence
Innovation × Reinvention
We aim to become the world’s most advanced
global network, leading marketing convergence
and innovation and providing solutions
contributing to the improvement of the corporate
value of all our clients.

■ Business Target Guideline

Fiscal 2017

Gross Profit
Organic Growth Rate3

Gross Profit
Overseas Ratio

Gross Profit
Digital Domain Ratio4

Operating Margin
Before Amortization
of Goodwill5

3％ 5％
ー

(CAGR6 Fiscal 2012–2017)

55％ or higher
(Fiscal 2012 simple sum: 44%7)

35％ or higher
(Fiscal 2012 simple sum: 23%7)

20％ or higher
(Fiscal 2012 actual: 18.2%)

The growth of existing businesses after deduction of decrease or increase
of gross profit attributable to business acquisitions or foreign exchange fluctuations
4 Digital domain includes Internet-related marketing services and entrusted
development and sales of information technology systems.
5 Calculated by dividing operating income before deduction of amortization of
goodwill and other intangible assets by gross profit. “Operating income before
deduction of amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets” is operating income
excluding the amount of amortization expense related to business acquisitions.
6 Compound annual growth rate
7 Simple combined consolidated total of gross profit for Dentsu and the Aegis Group
in fiscal 2012
3
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■ Strengthening the Client Base
The client base of the Dentsu Group, which has
been invigorated by the inclusion of Aegis Media,
will be enhanced through the mutual use of client
assets that Dentsu and Aegis Media have established independently. The integration has been a
touchstone for significantly more opportunities to
extend global support to companies that are
engaged in global marketing. Specifically, we will
be able to offer services that underpin overseas
expansion by Japanese companies, which form the
core of Dentsu’s client base, and enhance entry into
Japan by overseas companies, which comprise the
core of Aegis Media’s client base, as well as facilitate
worldwide expansion by global companies.
Also, for existing global clients that already have
accounts in several countries and regions, we will
strive to concurrently expand business regions and
business service domains, particularly creative,
digital and media, through up-selling.
Not only will these efforts strengthen our client
base, they will also facilitate distribution and expansion of Japan’s leading-edge entertainment content
and sports content—assets of the Dentsu Group—
through the enhanced global platform that was built
with the addition of Aegis Media. This will enable
the Group to demonstrate even greater influence.
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■ Developing Regional Strategies
We have laid out regional strategies under the 3
Speed World framework for North America, Asia and
emerging countries, and Japan and Western Europe.
We will promote strategies aligned with each 3
Speed World market to capitalize on growth opportunities in these markets.
Many global companies are headquartered in
North America, the world‘s largest advertising
market. For the Dentsu Group, North America is thus
an important market that directly leads to global
expansion of the client base, and we will focus on
increasing market share by strengthening cooperation among all agencies under the Dentsu Aegis
Network umbrella.
In fast-growing Asia and emerging countries, we
are energetically promoting efforts to expand
business scale through M&A activity and secure a
market-leading position in our pursuit of expanded
business platforms that will underpin business development in high market growth countries.
In Japan and Western Europe, where we already
have firm business platforms established, we aim to
not only maintain but strengthen existing business
and further improve profitability. Also, we will focus
on creating and capturing new growth opportunities
beyond the conventional ad business.

2-2 Evolution and Expansion of the Digital Domain
For the Dentsu Group to grow by capitalizing on
progress in the digital domain and market expansion,
our central themes are to enhance competitiveness to
put the Group at the forefront of marketing convergence and to create new businesses from marketing
convergence.
■ Enhance Competitiveness to Put the Group at the
Forefront of Marketing Convergence
(1) Continuous Growth by Expanding Digital Revenues
It is imperative for the Group to expand digital revenues if
it is to realize sustained top-line growth. Toward this end,
we will seek to strengthen the capabilities of the entire
Group through measures that include M&A and pursue
expansion of service offerings and revenue size.
• Expand client base by strengthening data analysis
capabilities and PDCA (Plan → Do → Check → Act)
services
• Create a service network on a global basis, organically
and through M&A
• Establish a new earnings model based on marketing
ROI and integration attribution
(2) Improve Profitability of the Digital Business
We will also strive to improve the profitability of the
digital business, beginning with enhanced efficiency
in media-buying operations.
• Improve operational efficiency by utilizing
technology and Group resources
• Achieve a higher level of added value in business
operations through the adoption of Aegis Media
standards and practices
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(3) Develop and Acquire Cutting-Edge Technology

(3) From Advertising to Commerce

Through joint efforts with Aegis Media and other
approaches, we will improve both quality and speed
with regard to the development and acquisition of
cutting-edge technology, which leads directly to a
competitive advantage in the digital domain.

We will provide consistent services that integrate and
manage all processes at companies, from communication to distribution.

• Boost efficiency by sharing knowledge with Aegis
Media, emphasizing function concentration to
elevate R&D capabilities and utilizing the merits of
scale
• Strengthen cooperation with partner companies
• Capture external resources (data and technology)
through M&A and investment
■ Create New Businesses from Marketing Convergence
(1) Support the Development of New Revenue
Sources for Existing Media and Content Owners
We will continue to actively support the development
of new revenue sources for existing media and content
holders, based on strong existing relationships.
• Support the establishment of new values and
presence for existing media and content owners
based on marketing convergence
• Establish a collaboration system in intelligence
and data gathering

• Support clients’ EC/CRM (e-Commerce/Customer
Relationship Management) activities for maximizing consumers’ lifetime values
• Develop new marketing flow lines
2-3 Re-engineering Business Processes and Improving
Profitability
A theme that the Dentsu Group has positioned as
important, in addition to expansion of the revenue
platform, is the further improvement of profitability.
We will re-engineer our overall business processes
for higher efficiency through such approaches as
realizing flexible resource management and implementing cost control on a global basis.
At the same time, we will carry out a fundamental
review of the system that offers solutions to clients
geared toward maximizing the added-value generation abilities of the Dentsu Group. We will also
restructure the value chain across the entire Group,
a process that includes the integration and
reorganization of affiliated companies.
In addition, we will review and subsequently
reduce assets to improve the business efficiency and
profitability of the entire Group.

(2) Develop New Solutions That Respond to the
Evolution of Mobile Technology
We will capitalize on new business opportunities
brought about by the evolution of mobile technology, which is set to see further progress, due to the
penetration of smartphones and tablets.
• Develop and monetize communication and sales
platforms in new devices and services centered
around mobile technology
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2-4 Further Reinforcing the Business Platform in the
Core Japanese Market
The establishment of an unrivaled business platform
in Japan underscores the Group’s unique advantage
as a global network and reflects the core competence that gives the Group its competitive edge. One
of the priorities stated in Dentsu 2017 and Beyond is
to further reinforce the business platform in the core
Japanese market. We will strive to enhance our
competitiveness with the following goals in mind.
Achieve Organic Growth by Enhancing Profitability
of Existing Businesses
We seek to further enhance the competitiveness and
profitability of our existing businesses including the
mass media business and achieve higher market
share by demonstrating integration capabilities of
the Group adapted to our progress in marketing
convergence.
Expand the Service Domain Based on the Conventional
Ad Business
We will create and deepen new growth domains and
diversify revenue sources by utilizing networks built
to date with clients and partners. As part of this
effort, we will become a leader in the marketing
convergence domain, such as the EC/CRM support
business, and expand our presence and services
globally.
Accelerate Structural Reforms
In achieving “2-3 Re-engineering Business Processes
and Improving Profitability,” we have positioned
Japan as the most important region, and through
improvements in personnel and resource utilization,
we will accelerate the structural reforms carried
over from the previous medium-term management plan.
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Messages from Directors in Charge of
Domestic and Overseas Businesses
To provide clients with a global network and services
that meet the highest international standards, it is
essential that the Dentsu Group, reinvigorated by the
acquisition of the Aegis Group (currently, “Aegis
Media”), further reinforce its unshakable business
base in Japan—a corporate strength that infuses
overall competitiveness and gives the Group a
distinctly unique advantage in the advertising world.
To achieve this goal, we aim to boost profitability in
existing businesses, beginning with mass media
businesses, and capture wider market shares. In
addition, we will tackle the two following issues as a
group and strive to hone a sharper competitive edge.
The first issue is to expand our service domains,
using the advertising business as a starting point.
Utilizing the networks we have built to date with
clients and partners, we will work to create and
cultivate new business fields adapted to the
development of “marketing convergence.” For
example, we will integrate and merge processes, from
client consumer communication approaches through
to sales, to deliver services that manage all stages of
business.
The second issue is to continue the process of
structural reform. To enhance the quality of services
offered by the Group in Japan and increase
profitability, we will redouble our efforts to
implement various measures to redesign and innovate
business processes. Specifically, we will accelerate our
efforts, especially with regard to restructuring
resource management and the way we provide
solutions to clients.
Tokyo’s winning bid to host the 2020 Summer
Olympics is sure to revitalize the domestic advertising
market like never before. From a client perspective,
however, there is no separation between domestic
and overseas markets. Working closely with our
overseas networks, we will support Japanese clients
seeking to achieve objectives such as entry into
overseas markets and growth once in those markets,
and conversely, we will support multinational clients
from the United States, Asia and Europe that are
seeking to establish a presence in the Japanese
market.

Once again, I am reminded of just how vital it is to
commit to the corporate spirit of “client first”—our
starting point—with each and every employee
working alongside clients as true partners, immersing
themselves in the respective industries and staying
involved. Thinking, planning and doing for our
clients—it is this corporate spirit that serves as our
source of growth.
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Yuzuru Kato
Director
Executive Vice President
in Charge of Domestic Business
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With the close of the acquisition of the Aegis Group
and the establishment of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.
in March, we expanded our global footprint from 29
to 110 countries, adding more than 14,000 highly
talented people and becoming the first truly global
network built in and for the digital age.
Clients today face unprecedented challenges, both
from their competitors and from an increasingly
dynamic, fragmented and complex marketplace.
Dentsu is uniquely able to help clients compete in an
environment that is being profoundly changed by
globalization and convergence.
Dentsu is differentiated from the industry in several
important ways:

Director
Executive Vice President
in Charge of Overseas Business

• A ”One P&L” operating model that enables genuine
collaboration among companies and talents to
deliver effective solutions while maximizing
efficiency
• A focus on providing scalable, best-in-breed
specialist and holistic agency services from some of
the world’s most awarded and respected agencies
• Strength in digital, media and creativity, and in the
world’s fastest growing geographic regions
• A heritage of innovation at the nexus where
technology and content meets the consumer
• An unparalleled position in Japan, one of the largest
and most important markets to global clients
We enjoy relationships with more than 70 of the
100 largest global advertisers. Our strategy is to invest
in those relationships, to help our clients expand
globally, and to win new assignments with a business
model that is purpose-built to attract the best talent
and promote their collaboration for powerful
solutions.
This strategy is already working and is integral to
maintaining industry-leading organic and operating
margin growth over the course of our 2017
medium-term plan.
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Business Lineup

“Good Innovation.”, the Dentsu Group’s corporate philosophy, encapsulates the Group-wide drive
to create new value and lead the way toward transformation, while also emphasizing its commitment to supporting innovation within business enterprises and other organizations.
Commensurate with its position as a solutions partner responding to the challenges faced by its
clients in such areas as corporate management, business operations and marketing, the Dentsu
Group provides a diverse range of services.
To meet the changing needs of society, the environment and consumer lifestyles, the Dentsu
Group’s service sphere is expanding to cover an array of societal issues.

activities, allowing the Group to distinguish itself as a
solutions partner.

Strategic
Solutions
Social
Solutions

Media
Content

Communication
Design

Good
Innovation.

Creative
Sphere

The Group’s strategic solutions activities include,
among others:
• corporate innovation consulting;
• brand consulting;
• corporate identity and visual identity strategy
planning and execution;
• marketing consulting;
• crisis communications; and
• direct marketing solutions.

● Communication Design
Digital

Promotions

● Strategic Solutions
The Dentsu Group seeks to go beyond a conventional
advertising company model by delivering diverse
solutions and consulting expertise linked to corporate
strategy-building, including corporate innovation,
brand management, product development, corporate
communications and the direct marketing business.
From marketing consulting and distribution formats to
promotional activities, the nature of business is undergoing major changes in the current media environment. Amid this transformation, the Group’s response
to client issues is strongly underpinned by creativity
accumulated through a broad range of communication
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In the current market, consumer contact points are
diversifying and corporate messages are not reaching the intended recipients as easily as they once did.
Consequently, communication design is taking on
greater importance. The goal of communication
design goes beyond general communication activities to the design of an optimum environment in
which consumers can receive the advertisers’ information.
To this end, marketers’ efforts are directed toward
accurately identifying consumer preferences and
prevailing conditions and designing communication
processes, opportunities and other measures in light
of these preferences and conditions. The Dentsu
Group enables the execution of communication
activities that encompass various information channels in addition to conventional advertising. In
shaping desirable communication environments, the
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Group considers measures such as strategic public
relations, or PR, and word-of-mouth marketing, also
called “buzz” marketing. It then implements
media-neutral planning, often incorporating
content-based communication including branded
entertainment and branded utility. In addition, the
Group extends its sphere of activity to corporate,
business and product development, and designs and
delivers solutions to the challenges clients face by
utilizing all types of communication opportunities.
The Group’s communication design activities include,
among others:
• cross-media communications planning; and
• strategic PR design.

torrent of information, making it difficult for them
to make optimum purchasing decisions.
The Dentsu Group possesses substantial organizational, content and network resources necessary for
the planning and execution of a broad array of
promotion strategies, and has a specific technical
expertise for increasing the effectiveness of promotion strategies. The Group excels not only in the field
of in-store communications but also in such areas as
knowledge and tools for the digital sphere, and such
disciplines as space branding.
The Group’s promotion activities include:
• in-store and shopper marketing;
• digital promotions; and
• space branding.

● Creative Sphere
● Digital
Oriented toward “innovative creativity,” the Dentsu
Group draws on a wealth of talent including art
directors, copywriters, television commercial planners
and communication strategists. By combining their
expertise and diverse approaches unrestricted by
convention, the Group delivers flexible and original
creative solutions. Its high level of creativity is substantiated by tangible results. The “Creator of the Year”
award, which was established by the Japan Advertising
Agencies Association to recognize an outstanding
creator from any of the association’s member companies and is awarded annually, has been given to one of
the Group’s creators 22 out of the 24 times it has been
presented. In addition, The Gunn Report, which tallies
the winners’ lists from all of the world’s most important advertising awards, shows the Group among the
top five most-awarded agencies for the past ten years.

● Promotions
The essence of promotions is the ability to create
mechanisms that will motivate people to act. As
products and services become more diverse, it
becomes more difficult to stimulate purchasing
behavior based on product strength alone. At the
same time, consumers are constantly exposed to a
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Clients’ marketing needs are becoming more sophisticated as digital technology evolves, and the Dentsu
Group seeks to respond with integrated, high-level
digital solutions. It established Dentsu Digital Holdings
Inc., a business management company, and the
Group’s Digital Business Division, an internal division of
Dentsu, in January 2010. These function as the core of
the Group’s digital business. Complementing our
networking capabilities, this enhanced digital marketing framework facilitates one-stop access to digital
solutions unique to us. The solutions combine the
campaign planning, creative and mass media strengths
that are essential to a comprehensive advertising
company.
The Group’s digital business activities include,
among others:
• business and technology development;
• interactive media (Internet media, mobile media,
search engine marketing and performance media);
• data management and marketing;
• digital campaign production; and
• digital authoring (website development, channel
development and digital creative ideas).
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● Media Content
The Dentsu Group seeks to apply cutting-edge
planning methodologies and a wealth of proven
results to effective and client-centric media
planning and media buying. The Group also develops original media plans and content assets. In
addition, it lays the groundwork for utilizing effective content in advertising campaigns through such
means as developing new businesses, investing in
feature film production and acquiring broadcasting
rights to major sports content by leveraging longstanding bonds of trust with media companies.

The Group’s social solutions activities include:
• environmental strategy;
• renewable energy and smart grid initiatives;
• food and agriculture business development;
• consulting and planning for corporate social
responsibility and sustainability;
• sustainability marketing; and
• social design engine business, emphasizing the
visualization of social themes; and a variety of
other projects such as life innovation (focusing on
health, medical treatment and nursing care),
“bottom-of-the-pyramid” business and national
tourism.

The Group’s media content business activities
include, among others:
• media planning;
• media buying;
• sports marketing;
• entertainment content marketing;
• new business development with media
companies; and
• audience insight.

● Social Solutions
To realize effective solutions to societal issues
requires the active participation and cooperation
of governmental agencies, private-sector organizations, non-profit organizations (NPOs) and
ordinary citizens. Management believes that it is
essential to work toward solutions that will help to
realize a better society based on the acceptance
and participation of all stakeholders. The Dentsu
Group identifies social themes through future
predictions focusing on changes in society, the
environment and consumer lifestyles, and then
visualizes complex, interrelated issues. Furthermore,
specialist teams provide optimal solutions at the
consulting, planning and execution phases for such
projects as business scheme development, communications strategy planning and the development
of programs to encourage social involvement.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Dentsu Group’s CSR Initiatives
For detailed information on the Dentsu Group’s corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities, please visit
Dentsu’s CSR website http://www.dentsu.com/csr/.

Dentsu Group Code of Conduct
Dentsu has formulated a Dentsu Group Code of Conduct as the Dentsu Group’s basic principles for CSR.
In order to handle the expansion of our overseas network with the acquisition of Aegis Group plc, Dentsu formulated a new Dentsu Group Code of Conduct in April 2013. The new Dentsu Group Code of Conduct is based
on the ISO 26000 international standard for social responsibility (SR) to be internationally acceptable.
The new Dentsu Group Code of Conduct describes the reason for formulation, scope of application and legal
compliance in its preamble, and an overview on compliance in Corporate governance, Respect for human
rights, Ensuring a safe and civilized working environment, Environmental protection, Fair business practices,
Addressing consumer issues and Contributing to the community—as the Seven Core Subjects for Dentsu’s CSR.

Dentsu Group
Corporate
Philosophy

Dentsu Group Code of Conduct

Seven Core Subjects for Dentsu’s CSR Activities
Corporate
governance

CSR - 1/3

Respect for
human rights

Ensuring
a safe and
civilized working
environment

Environmental
protection

Fair business
practices

Addressing
consumer
issues

Contributing
to the
community
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Dentsu Group Code of Conduct
◎ The Dentsu Group of companies, its officers and employees (“we” or “us”) are committed to protecting
the interests of our stakeholders by conducting business to the highest ethical standards. To achieve
this commitment, we have established the Dentsu Group Code of Conduct (“Code of Conduct”) to serve
as our basic principles for conducting business in a socially responsible manner.
◎ We will comply with the Code of Conduct in all respects. Outside of the Dentsu Group, we will encourage
compliance with the Code of Conduct by our business partners.
◎ We will comply with all national, local and international laws and regulations in all markets in which we
conduct business.
◎ We will respect diversity and will not discriminate on any basis. We will also respect the diverse social
and cultural standards of each region in which we conduct business.
1. Corporate governance
・We respect the interests of our stakeholders and will refrain from engaging in inappropriate activities
or taking inappropriate risks that might harm these interests. Our officers will take responsibility for
developing and maintaining appropriate corporate governance systems.
2. Respect for human rights
・We comply with internationally recognized principles of human rights. We respect the human rights of
all people connected with our business activities and will not discriminate on any basis.
3. Ensuring a safe and civilized working environment
・We will ensure that our workplaces are safe and create a civilized working environment.
4. Environmental protection
・We aim to minimize the impact of our business on the environment and contribute to making society
sustainable.
5. Fair business practices
・In carrying out our business we will compete fairly in all markets in which we operate. We will avoid or
appropriately manage any conflicting interests. We will not knowingly take part in any form of corrupt
business practice, including bribery and money laundering.
6. Addressing consumer issues
・We will strive to address consumer issues in all markets in which we operate, including by providing
appropriate information to consumers and giving due attention to safety and security in all of our
activities.
7. Contributing to the community
・We are committed to contributing to the development of all local and global communities in which we
operate and to the resolution of social issues in each community.
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The Dentsu Group’s Stakeholders

The Environment
Society as
a Whole
Clients

Media

Employees

The

Consumers

Dentsu
Business
Partners
Shareholders,
Investors

Group

Regional
Communities

Non-Profit Organizations,
Non-Governmental
Organizations

Note: The Dentsu Group’s list of stakeholders also includes governments,
administrative agencies and various groups.

The Dentsu Group promotes CSR activities while keeping lines of communication open to its stakeholders.
In its efforts to realize the objectives of “Good Innovation.” and contribute to social solutions, the Group
pursues various types of activities to fulfill its responsibilities as a corporate citizen to stakeholders, including,
but not limited to, employees, consumers, clients, shareholders and investors. It will also focus on what is best
for society as a whole and for the planet.
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Corporate Governance

Status of Corporate Governance

preliminary discussion of issues that will be brought to the
Board of Directors for resolution. In April 2012, Dentsu
divided its operations into two segments—one for domestic

1. Overview of Corporate Governance System

business and one for overseas business—and authority and
revenue responsibility were delegated to each. The Com-

Seeking to be a partner to clients who maximizes corporate

pany then created two principal executive-level discussion

value under the corporate philosophy “Good Innovation.”,

structures that address topics assigned by the Executive

the Dentsu Group promotes the creation of structures that

Management Committee for discussion and decision-

facilitate the provision of services to a high standard at

making. These are the Business Supervision Committee,

home and abroad. Going forward, the Group will strive to

which is responsible for domestic business, and the Dentsu

establish “a presence that endures through reforms and

Aegis Network Board of Directors, which is responsible for

challenges and keeps drawing clients’ attention” through

overseas business. In addition, the Company has the CSR

efforts to provide clients with even greater added value.

Committee, which undertakes preliminary discussions on

Dentsu Inc. (hereinafter “Dentsu” or “the Company”)

specific matters assigned by the Executive Management

maintains a Corporate Auditor System, and management

Committee and makes decisions on the execution of day-

believes that the current corporate governance framework

to-day business, and the Investment Committee and the

is sufficient to ensure rapid decision-making and effective

Corporate Organization & Personnel Committee, which do

internal controls.

the same for matters indicated by the Business Supervision

Dentsu’s Articles of Incorporation set the term of office
for Directors at one year or less and the number of Directors

Committee. The Company will strive to further reinforce the
business execution structure.

at 15 or fewer. As of June 27, 2013, the number of Directors

Going forward, management will continue to embrace

on the Board of Directors was 12, two of whom were Out-

the merits of a Corporate Auditor System, applying inherent

side Directors. Meanwhile, the maximum term of office for

advantages to Dentsu’s business formats and raising the

Corporate Auditors is four years, in accordance with the

level of corporate governance while enhancing manage-

Articles of Incorporation and prevailing laws and regula-

ment structures.

tions, and the number of Corporate Auditors is set at five or
fewer. As of June 27, 2013, the number of Corporate Auditors on the Audit & Supervisory Board was five, three of
whom were Outside Corporate Auditors.
In June 1999, Dentsu introduced an Executive Officer
System to strengthen its business execution function. In
April 2009, the Company introduced a Director and Executive Officer System, which retains the old Executive Officer
System but clarifies the roles and responsibilities of Directors and Executive Officers more precisely.
At Dentsu, the Executive Management Committee tackles
important business-oriented issues other than those
addressed at Board of Directors’ meetings and facilitates
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The Company’s corporate governance structure is out-

business is conducted appropriately. The CSR Committee is
charged with maintaining and further enhancing the Internal

lined in the chart below.

Control System.
General Meeting of Shareholders

1) Compliance System for Directors, Executive Officers and
Appointment/Dismissal

Appointment/Dismissal

Independent
Auditors

Corporate Auditors/
Audit &
Supervisory Board

Appointment/Dismissal
Conducting of
audits

Employees
Directors/
Board of Directors

duties appropriately, in accordance with various rules

Appointment/
Supervision
Conducting of
audits

Corporate Auditors
Office

i. Directors and Executive Officers must perform their

Representative
Director

Delegate

and regulations, including the Rules for the Board of
Directors and the Rules for the Executive Management

Appointment/Supervision

Committee as well as the Rules for Directors and
Executive Management Committee
Delegate

Delegate

Internal
Audit
Office

Executive
Officers

Conducting of
internal audits

Important Committee Sessions

Important Committee Sessions

• Dentsu Aegis Network
Board of Directors

• Business Supervision Committee

Respective Divisions/
Respective Departments

Delegate

Principal Committees

(Business Execution Function)

ii. If a Director or an Executive Officer discovers a violation of the
prevailing laws or comes across any other serious
compliance-related issue, it is imperative that he/she

Principal Committee

• Investment Committee
• Corporate Organization &
Personnel Committee

Corporate Auditors and the Rules for Executive Officers.

Delegate

• CSR Committee

report it without delay to the Board of Directors as well as
the Executive Management Committee. Corporate Auditors
must also be immediately advised of the circumstances.

2. Status of Internal Control System

iii. The departments reporting to the CSR Committee create
internal policies and manuals and conduct training to

The Company approved a system for ensuring that the

maintain and further enhance the compliance system for

execution of Directors’ duties conforms to laws and regula-

employees. The Internal Audit Office, which reports directly

tions and the Articles of Incorporation and for ensuring

to the Representative Director, conducts internal audits.

appropriate business operations, which is described in

iv. The Company has set up an internal hotline and has also

Article 362, Paragraph 4, Item 6 of the Companies Act, at

established internal and external contact points for

the Board of Directors’ meeting on March 30, 2006. Revi-

insider reporting to respond appropriately in the event a

sions to the system have been made as appropriate at sub-

law is broken or some other internal compliance issue

sequent Board of Directors’ meetings.

arises.

The Internal Control System at Dentsu is designed to

v. If Corporate Auditors state opinions on the compliance

encourage compliance among Directors, Executive Officers

system or require steps to improve the system, Directors

and employees while it supports continuous corporate

and Executive Officers must respond without delay and

development as the Company strives to meet its social
responsibilities.

make the recommended improvements.
vi. The Company has a department to facilitate the termina-

The Company has chosen the Dentsu Group Code of Con-

tion of business relationships with organized crime

duct to define the parameters of acceptable behavior,

groups and elements thereof—termed “antisocial

which ensures that Directors, Executive Officers and

forces” in Japan—when a link is discovered and to reso-

employees comply with all laws, regulations and the Articles

lutely refuse any and all future transactions. This depart-

of Incorporation during the course of their duties and that

ment functions as the liaison between the affected
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in-house division and the relevant authorities to
expedite an appropriate course of action.

ii. Responsibility for monitoring the status of risk management efforts falls primarily on internal control divisions,
under the CSR Committee. Efforts are directed toward

2) Systems to Ensure Efficient Execution of Duties by
Directors and Executive Officers

self-inspection and approaches to maintain and further
enhance the risk management system.

i. To support the efficient execution of duties by Directors and
Executive Officers, the Board of Directors and the Executive
Management Committee, and the Business Supervision

5) Internal Structure to Support Corporate Auditors and
Their Independent Status

Committee, all principal committees and specialized

The Company maintains a Corporate Auditors Office,

committees hold meetings where important matters

which consists of employees who assist Corporate

pertaining to management policy and strategy are

Auditors in their duties. This office reports directly to the

determined in an appropriate and flexible manner.

Audit & Supervisory Board, thereby preserving its inde-

ii. Items resolved at these meetings are conveyed through

pendence from Directors and Executive Officers.

the corporate structure, with urgent items transmitted
to all employees via the internal electronic bulletin
board to expedite implementation.

6) System for Reporting to Corporate Auditors and Improving
Audit Effectiveness

iii. The launch of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd., which controls

i. Rules are in place to identify issues that Directors, Executive

Dentsu Group companies overseas, is the pillar of

Officers and employees are required to report to Corporate

an evolving structure to facilitate efficient decision-

Auditors. Directors, Executive Officers and employees

making and execution of duties in the overseas business

must swiftly inform Corporate Auditors of any develop-

segment.

ment that might impact the operations or the operating
performance of the Company.

3) Storage and Management of Information Related to the

ii. In the event that Corporate Auditors request information

Execution of Duties by Directors and Executive Officers

other than that indicated above, Directors, Executive

Information concerning the execution of duties by Directors

Officers and employees are still required to respond

and Executive Officers is stored and managed appropriately,

without delay.

in accordance with the Company’s documentation man-

iii. To enhance audit effectiveness, the Internal Audit Office

agement regulations and information management rules.

and the Independent Auditors closely collaborate to
handle requests from the Corporate Auditors.

4) Risk Management System
i. To maintain and enhance the structure that prevents
risks from occurring and minimizes damage caused in

7) Internal Control System for the Dentsu Group, Including
Subsidiaries

the event such risks become a reality, Dentsu has put

i. The Dentsu Group Code of Conduct was drafted as the

Risk management rules in place and also prioritizes key

standard for acceptable corporate behavior and

risks and formulates concrete measures appropriate for

embraces the entire Group, including subsidiaries.

such risks that can be put into effect should a response
be required.

ii. While the Company stipulates internal control issues that
subsidiaries, as members of the Group, must address, it
allows each subsidiary to build, operate and improve on
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the basic framework to match respective business activities.
This ensures that internal and external transactions

2) Structure, Staff and Procedures for Audits by Corporate
Auditors

retain their integrity.
i. In principle, the Audit & Supervisory Board meets once
8) System to Ensure Appropriateness of Financial Reporting

a month to establish auditing policies and to allocate

i. Through the CSR Committee, Dentsu continually supports

responsibilities. During these monthly meetings, the five

and improves the system that ensures appropriateness in

Corporate Auditors, two of whom are full-time Corporate

financial reporting by the Group.

Auditors from Dentsu and three of whom are Outside

ii. Subsidiaries and departments involved in business activities

Corporate Auditors, audit the execution of duties by

perform self-checks through the course of day-to-day

Directors, based on an auditing plan, and focus primarily

operations to determine if existing internal controls are

on the status of Group-wide internal controls, compliance

functioning properly.

and risk management systems.

iii. The Internal Audit Office monitors the Internal Control

ii. As part of their audits on the execution of duties by

System from a perspective free of operational bias to

Directors, Corporate Auditors supervise and verify the

assess the effectiveness of internal controls related to

establishment and implementation of internal controls

financial reporting.

from an independent perspective and receive reports
from the internal control divisions if the auditing process
so requires.

3. Status of Internal Audits, Audits by Corporate Auditors

iii. One of the Outside Corporate Auditors, Kentaro Koga,

and Independent Audits, and Their Connection to Internal

has a doctorate in accounting and has been involved in

Control Divisions

accounting research and education as an associate
professor at a graduate school for many years. He brings

1) Structure, Staff and Procedures for Internal Audits

a great deal of expertise in finance and accounting to

i. The Internal Audit Office, with a staff of 34, undertakes

the Company.

internal audits in accordance with an annual auditing

iv. One of the full-time Corporate Auditors serves as chairman

plan and targets each division within the Company as

of the Audit & Supervisory Board, and both full-time

well as affiliated companies in Japan and overseas. The

Corporate Auditors attend important committee sessions

Internal Audit Office, reporting to the Representative

and meetings of principal committees and supervise the

Director, monitors the establishment and application of

execution of business activities.

internal controls from an independent perspective, and

v. The Corporate Auditors Office, established to assist

in the event of an insufficiency, will inform the internal

Corporate Auditors in their duties, has a staff of seven.

control divisions and recommend improvements.
ii. The Group Audit & Supervisory Board Members Depart-

3) Independent Audits

ment operates separately from the Internal Audit Office

i. Dentsu has contracted the accounting firm Deloitte

and dispatches Corporate Auditors to principal Group

Touche Tohmatsu LLC to perform accounting audits of

companies.

the Company’s books. The Independent Auditors receive
internal control reports from the Representative Director,
execute internal control audits, supervise and verify the
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establishment of internal controls and implementation

in a separate exchange of information with the Independent

status thereof, and receive reports from the internal

Auditors. The respective relationships between the internal

control divisions if the auditing process so requires.

control divisions and the Internal Audit Office, Corporate Auditors

No special-interest relationships exist between Dentsu

and Independent Auditors are presented in Section 3 above.

and the accounting firm nor between Dentsu and the
managing partners at the accounting firm who undertake
accounting audits of the Company.
ii. The three certified public accountants who performed

5. Limited Liability Agreements with Outside Directors and
Outside Corporate Auditors

accounting audits during the fiscal year under review
were Hitoshi Matsumoto, Tokio Suzuki and Hirotsugu

Dentsu enters into agreements with its Outside Directors

Mizuno, with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC. In addition,

and Outside Corporate Auditors that limit their legal liabil-

eight certified public accountants and 18 others were

ity under Article 423, Paragraph 1 of the Companies Act.

involved as assistants to the three main certified public

The liability amount pursuant to such agreements shall be

accountants in the execution of these audits.

limited to the minimum stated by laws and regulations or
10 million yen, whichever is higher.

4. Cooperation on Internal Audits, Audits by Corporate
Auditors and Independent Audits

6. Function of and Selection Criteria for Outside Directors
and Outside Corporate Auditors

The auditing system at Dentsu involves three types of
audits: audits by Corporate Auditors; book audits, mainly

Outside Directors are expected to perform management

accounting audits from the specialized perspective of Inde-

oversight and check functions, and each Outside Director is

pendent Auditors; and internal audits by the Internal Audit

expected to contribute to enhanced corporate value at

Office. Audits by Corporate Auditors and audits by Indepen-

Dentsu by taking a bird’s-eye view of the Company’s busi-

dent Auditors are required by law. Internal audits, con-

ness and offering advice, based on an understanding of the

ducted at the discretion of the Representative Director, are

Company’s business activities and experience in manage-

voluntary audits principally intended to facilitate an inde-

ment positions. Since the business domains of the Company

pendent evaluation of the Internal Control System. Coop-

are extensive, the selection of Outside Directors gives prior-

eration among the Internal Audit Office, Corporate Audi-

ity to individuals who have a sophisticated understanding

tors and Independent Auditors may require the Audit &

of the Company’s activities in these domains. As a result,

Supervisory Board to request reports from the Independent

both Outside Directors are representatives at companies

Auditors and the Internal Audit Office on auditing methods

that are not only major shareholders but are also business

and results of audits, as appropriate. In addition, it is mainly

associates of Dentsu. Nevertheless, transactions between

full-time Corporate Auditors who meet with other auditors

the Company and these companies comprise a very small

on a regular and individual basis to exchange information.

portion of the Company’s aggregate net sales. Manage-

The Internal Audit Office also exchanges information and

ment therefore believes the associated business relation-

reports, as appropriate, in response to requests from Corporate

ships do not compromise the impartiality of these Outside

Auditors or the Audit & Supervisory Board, and participates

Directors and will not cause any conflicts of interest vis-à-vis
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ordinary shareholders. Dentsu carefully selects Outside

Dentsu does not have any clear-cut standards or policies

Directors who are impartial and present a thorough under-

regarding impartiality in appointing Outside Directors and

standing of the Company’s business activities, and manage-

Outside Corporate Auditors, but as described above,

ment believes the appointed individuals are suitably fulfill-

management makes its decisions with reference to such

ing the function and role expected of them as Outside

benchmarks as the listing rules of the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Directors of the Company. As appropriate, Outside Directors

and appoints individuals who are able to maintain a neutral

are provided with reports from the Internal Audit Office,

and independent perspective.

Corporate Auditors and Independent Auditors as well as
from the internal control divisions to the Board of Directors,
and pursue open lines of communication with all.
Outside Corporate Auditors are expected to apply the

7. Relationships with Outside Directors and Outside Corporate
Auditors

wealth of experience they have accumulated in their respective fields of expertise to the function of supervising the

Dentsu’s executive team includes Outside Directors and Outside

Board of Directors and the execution of duties by the Direc-

Corporate Auditors. As of June 27, 2013, two of the

tors on the Board. The Company’s three Outside Corporate

Company’s 12 Directors and three of the Company’s five

Auditors—Atsuko Toyama, Toshiaki Hasegawa and Kentaro

Corporate Auditors were appointed from outside the Company.

Koga—are designated Independent Auditors, according to

Any personal, capital or business relationships or other

the listing rules of the Tokyo Stock Exchange. In the selec-

interests that may exist between the Company and these

tion of Outside Corporate Auditors, Dentsu prioritizes indi-

five individuals are described below.

viduals who will utilize experience in various fields to perform their supervisory duties and individuals who are

1) Outside Director Satoshi Ishikawa served as President of

knowledgeable about finance and accounting. Dentsu care-

the nonprofit cooperative news service Kyodo News, a

fully selects Outside Corporate Auditors who are impartial

major shareholder and business associate of the Company,

and present a thorough understanding of the Company’s

until June 20, 2013, after which he assumed the position

business activities, and management believes the appointed

of Advisor there. He also served as Representative Director

individuals are suitably fulfilling the function and role

and Deputy Chairman of that company’s news agency,

expected of them as Outside Corporate Auditors of the

K.K. Kyodo News, which is also a business associate of

Company. At meetings of the Audit & Supervisory Board,

the Company, until June 20, 2013. The transactions

Outside Corporate Auditors will request reports, as appro-

between the Company and Kyodo News and its news

priate, on auditing methods and results of audits conducted by

agency comprise very small portions of the Company’s

Corporate Auditors, Independent Auditors and the Internal

aggregate net sales. Management therefore believes the

Audit Office. Outside Corporate Auditors also exchange

associated business relationships with Dentsu will not

information separately, as necessary, and strive to ensure

compromise Mr. Ishikawa’s impartiality.

reciprocal communication with other Auditors. In addition,
Outside Corporate Auditors utilize their external perspective in

2) Outside Director Yutaka Nishizawa is President of Jiji

supervising and verifying the establishment and implemen-

Press Ltd., a major shareholder and business associate of

tation of internal controls. They also receive reports from the

the Company. Mr. Nishizawa is also Chairman of Central

internal control divisions if the auditing process so requires.

Research Services, Inc. and Chairman of Naigai Josei
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Chosakai, a foreign policy think tank, which are both

Hasegawa’s concurrent roles nor the transactions

business associates of the Company. Transactions

between Dentsu and the companies hinder his ability to

between Dentsu and each of these three organizations

remain impartial.

comprise very small portions of the Company’s aggregate
net sales. Management therefore believes the respective

5) Outside Corporate Auditor Kentaro Koga is an Outside

business relationships with Dentsu will not compromise

Corporate Auditor at Resona Bank, Ltd. Although a

Mr. Nishizawa’s impartiality.

business relationship exists between Dentsu and the
bank, neither the nature of Mr. Koga’s concurrent roles

3) Outside Corporate Auditor Atsuko Toyama is Chief Director
of NPO National Council on Mt. Fuji World Heritage.

nor the transactions between Dentsu and the bank
hinder his ability to remain impartial.

Although Dentsu is a corporate supporter, the amount
that the Company contributes is extremely small and

None of the Outside Directors or Outside Corporate Auditors

does not affect Ms. Toyama’s impartiality as an Outside

has been affiliated with Dentsu or the Dentsu Group.

Corporate Auditor at Dentsu.

4) Outside Corporate Auditor Toshiaki Hasegawa is an Out-

8. Executive Remuneration

side Corporate Auditor at Mizuho Bank, Ltd., Mizuho
Corporate Bank, Ltd., and Mitsui Fudosan Co., Ltd.

1) Total Remuneration by Position, Total Amount by Type

Although a business relationship exists between Dentsu

of Remuneration, and Number of Executives Receiving

and these companies, neither the nature of Mr.

Remuneration (Please refer to the table below.)

Breakdown of Remuneration by Category
Category of Director/Auditor

Total Remuneration
Fixed Monthly Remuneration
(Number of Directors or Corporate Auditors)

Bonuses
(Number of Directors or Corporate Auditors)

Directors
(Excluding Outside Directors)

¥590 million

¥428 million
(10)

¥161 million
(9)

Corporate Auditors
(Excluding Outside Corporate Auditors)

¥72 million

¥72 million
(2)

—

Outside Directors

¥13 million

¥13 million
(2)

—

Outside Corporate Auditors

¥28 million

¥28 million
(4)

—

Notes: 1. Remuneration for Directors was approved by

2. Fixed monthly remuneration for Corporate

shareholders at the 160th General Meeting of

Auditors was approved by shareholders at the

Shareholders held on June 26, 2009. The resolution

160th General Meeting of Shareholders held on

limits the amount to 55 million yen per month,

June 26, 2009. The resolution limits the amount

of which 1.5 million yen is applied to monthly

to 11 million yen per month.

remuneration for Outside Directors.
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3. The totals for fixed monthly remuneration

remuneration and performance-linked bonuses shall

include amounts for one Director and one Corpo-

be within the limit for annual remuneration approved at

rate Auditor, who retired at the conclusion of the

the 164th General Meeting of Shareholders held on

163rd General Meeting of Shareholders on June

June 27, 2013.

28, 2012.

Remuneration to Outside Directors, however, will consist
solely of fixed monthly remuneration in exchange for the

4. “Bonuses” in the table above shows the amount

execution of their duties. Specific amounts for each

approved at the 164th General Meeting of Share-

Director, including Outside Directors, will be determined

holders held on June 27, 2013.

by resolution of the Board of Directors.
Remuneration to Corporate Auditors will consist solely of

5. At the 164th General Meeting of Shareholders

fixed monthly remuneration in exchange for the execution

held on June 27, 2013, shareholders approved

of their duties. The gross amount of this monthly remu-

total remuneration for Directors at an amount

neration will be determined within the limits of the

not to exceed 1.2 billion yen per year, which

remuneration per year approved by the 164th General

comprises monthly remuneration and

Meeting of Shareholders held on June 27, 2013. Remu-

performance-linked bonuses. Of this amount, no

neration to individual Corporate Auditors will

more than 18 million yen per year will be paid to

be determined after deliberation by the Corporate Auditors.

outside Directors. Shareholders also approved

At one time Dentsu paid retirement benefits to Directors

total fixed remuneration of 132 million yen per

and Corporate Auditors. However, this practice was

year for Corporate Auditors. The Company does

terminated, as of the conclusion of the General Meeting

not intend to pay bonuses to Outside Directors

of Shareholders held in June 2007.

and Corporate Auditors.

2) Summary of Policy on Determining Remuneration for
Directors and Corporate Auditors

9. Agenda Items for the General Meeting of Shareholders
that May be Resolved by the Board of Directors

To draw a suitable link between remuneration to
Directors and further increases in corporate value and in

The Company sets forth in its Articles of Incorporation pro-

consideration of Directors’ accountability and connection

visions that allow the Board of Directors to approve the

to operating results, remuneration shall be divided into

following items that would otherwise be put before the

two components: fixed monthly remuneration and a

General Meeting of Shareholders for resolution.

performance-linked bonus. If operating performance is
as expected, the performance-linked bonus shall account

1) Decisions on the Purchase of Treasury Stock

for approximately one-third of overall remuneration.

To ensure a flexible capital policy, Dentsu maintains a

The index used to determine the portion of remunera-

provision in its Articles of Incorporation, in accordance

tion that is tied to operating performance shall

with Article 165, Paragraph 2 of the Companies Act, that

correspond to the degree to which financial targets for

allows the Board of Directors to approve the purchase of

consolidated gross profit and consolidated operating

treasury stock from the market.

income have been reached. The total of monthly
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2) Interim Dividends
To promote the flexible return of profits to shareholders,

11. Approval Criteria for Special Resolutions at the General
Meeting of Shareholders

Dentsu maintains a provision in its Articles of Incorporation,
in accordance with Article 454, Paragraph 5 of the

Special resolutions described under Article 309, Paragraph 2

Companies Act, that allows the Board of Directors to

of the Companies Act that are put before the General

grant interim dividends to registered shareholders, as of

Meeting of Shareholders must be passed with a number of

September 30 of each year.

votes corresponding to more than two-thirds of voting
rights held by shareholders in attendance whose combined

3) Exemption from Liability

shareholdings represent no less than one-third of total

To enable Directors and Corporate Auditors to satisfactorily

voting rights held by shareholders with the power to exer-

fulfill the roles expected of them by the Company,

cise such rights. Management believes that this reduced

Dentsu maintains a provision in its Articles of Incorporation

quorum for special resolutions facilitates the efficient

that allows the Board of Directors to exempt Directors

execution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

(including former Directors) and Corporate Auditors
(including former Corporate Auditors) from liability for

12. Status of Equity Holdings

damages, as set forth in Article 423, Paragraph 1 of the
Companies Act, to the extent of the amount obtained by

1) Investment Stock Held for Reasons Other than

subtracting the minimum liability amount from the

Pure Investment

amount for which they are liable, provided that the

Number of companies:

274

requirements set by laws or regulations have been satisfied.

Aggregate balance sheet amount:

76,599 million yen

2) Holding Category, Company, Number of Shares, Balance
10. Approval Criteria for Election of Directors

Sheet Amounts and Purpose of Investment Shares Held
for Reasons Other than Pure Investment

In its Articles of Incorporation, the Company sets forth a provision whereby the appointment of a candidate to the Board

The following pages show the status of equity holdings for

of Directors must be approved by a majority vote of share-

the previous fiscal year and the fiscal year under review.

holders in attendance at a General Meeting of Shareholders
and whose combined shareholdings represent more than
one-third of total voting rights held by shareholders with the
ability to exercise such rights. The Articles of Incorporation
include a provision to preclude cumulative voting in obtaining
approval for the appointment of Director candidates.
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Previous Fiscal Year
Investment Stock for Reasons Other Than Pure Investment Purposes

Company

Number of
Shares

Balance Sheet
Amount
(Millions of Yen)

Purpose of Holding

Stocks Held in Trust or Other Legal Entity While Retaining Voting Rights or
Voting Instruction Rights

Company

Number of
Shares

Balance Sheet
Amount
(Millions of Yen)

Tokyo Broadcasting
System Holdings, Inc.

9,310,500

11,489

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

46,500

6,616

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

2,328,000

5,056

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

4,879

2,615

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

12,710

1,714

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

7,004

1,257

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

Purpose of Holding

Publicis Groupe S.A.

3,875,139

To maintain and
17,587 strengthen business
relationship

Toho Co., Ltd.

3,779,900

To maintain and
5,741 strengthen business
relationship

Fuji Media Holdings, Inc.

Asahi Group
Holdings, Ltd.

918,400

To maintain and
1,683 strengthen business
relationship

Kao Corporation

TV Asahi Corporation

12,000

To maintain and
1,618 strengthen business
relationship

KDDI Corporation

SKY Perfect
JSAT Holdings Inc.

40,594

To maintain and
1,479 strengthen business
relationship

TV Asahi Corporation

Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group, Inc.

2,807,900

To maintain and
1,156 strengthen business
relationship

WOWOW INC.

Lion Corporation

1,794,000

To maintain and
850 strengthen business
relationship

Mizuho Financial
Group, Inc.

8,870,000

1,197

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

Shochiku Co., Ltd.

1,000,000

To maintain and
780 strengthen business
relationship

Shiseido Co., Ltd.

682,000

973

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

228,600

To maintain and
650 strengthen business
relationship

Yamato Holdings
Co., Ltd.

627,000

801

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

1,300,000

To maintain and
555 strengthen business
relationship

Seven & i Holdings
Co., Ltd.

324,000

796

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

520,000

To maintain and
537 strengthen business
relationship

3,500

To maintain and
498 strengthen business
relationship

Ezaki Glico Co., Ltd.

493,088

To maintain and
489 strengthen business
relationship

TV TOKYO Holdings
Corporation

390,000

To maintain and
420 strengthen business
relationship

98,675

To maintain and
387 strengthen business
relationship

1,901,000

To maintain and
364 strengthen business
relationship

145,932

To maintain and
348 strengthen business
relationship

500

To maintain and
341 strengthen business
relationship

Ajinomoto Co., Inc.

299,000

To maintain and
310 strengthen business
relationship

Toyo Suisan Kaisha, Ltd.

143,000

To maintain and
307 strengthen business
relationship

Yakult Honsha Co., Ltd.

Toei Company, Ltd.
ROHTO Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.
Fuji Media Holdings, Inc.

Hisamitsu
Pharmaceutical Co., Inc.
Morinaga & Co., Ltd.

Tsumura & Co.
Central Japan Railway
Company
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Fiscal Year under Review
Investment Stock for Reasons Other Than Pure Investment Purposes

Company

Number of
Shares

Balance Sheet
Amount
(Millions of Yen)

Purpose of Holding

Stocks Held in Trust or Other Legal Entity While Retaining Voting Rights or
Voting Instruction Rights

Company

Number of
Shares

Balance Sheet
Amount
(Millions of Yen)

9,310,500

13,118

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

46,500

7,584

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

2,328,000

7,170

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

975,800

3,776

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

1,271,000

2,314

7,004

1,732

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

Purpose of Holding

3,779,900

To maintain and
7,408 strengthen business
relationship

Tokyo Broadcasting
System Holdings, Inc.

16,500

To maintain and
5,024 strengthen business
relationship

Fuji Media Holdings, Inc.

1,200,000

To maintain and
2,185 strengthen business
relationship

Kao Corporation

918,400

To maintain and
2,065 strengthen business
relationship

KDDI Corporation

40,594

To maintain and
1,796 strengthen business
relationship

TV Asahi Corporation

258,600

To maintain and
983 strengthen business
relationship

WOWOW INC.

Shochiku Co., Ltd.

1,000,000

To maintain and
964 strengthen business
relationship

Yamato Holdings
Co., Ltd.

627,000

1,090

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

Lion Corporation

1,794,000

To maintain and
929 strengthen business
relationship

Seven & i Holdings
Co., Ltd.

324,000

1,009

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

Toei Company, Ltd.

1,300,000

To maintain and
855 strengthen business
relationship

Shiseido Co., Ltd.

682,000

905

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

37,500

To maintain and
785 strengthen business
relationship

Mizuho Financial
Group, Inc.

3,914,000

778

To instruct exercise of
voting rights

520,000

To maintain and
669 strengthen business
relationship

1,125,900

To maintain and
628 strengthen business
relationship

Fuji Media Holdings, Inc.

3,500

To maintain and
570 strengthen business
relationship

Hisamitsu
Pharmaceutical Co., Inc.

100,949

To maintain and
518 strengthen business
relationship

Tsumura & Co.

146,827

To maintain and
510 strengthen business
relationship

50,000

To maintain and
496 strengthen business
relationship

Ezaki Glico Co., Ltd.

495,961

To maintain and
483 strengthen business
relationship

Nomura Holdings, Inc.

827,300

To maintain and
477 strengthen business
relationship

Ajinomoto Co., Inc.

299,000

To maintain and
423 strengthen business
relationship

TV TOKYO Holdings
Corporation

390,000

To maintain and
417 strengthen business
relationship

Toho Co., Ltd.

Digital Garage, Inc.

TV Asahi Corporation
Asahi Group
Holdings, Ltd.
SKY Perfect
JSAT Holdings Inc.
Yakult Honsha Co., Ltd.

euglena Co., Ltd.
ROHTO Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.
Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group, Inc.

Central Japan Railway
Company
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To instruct exercise of
voting rights
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3. Details of Non-Auditing Services Provided to Dentsu Inc.

Remuneration Policy

by Independent Auditors

Previous fiscal year (April 1, 2011–March 31, 2012)

1. Remuneration to Independent Auditors
(Certified Public Accountants)
Previous Fiscal Year

(Millions of Yen)

Fiscal Year under Review

Dentsu paid for consultation services on the International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) and on business systems
in overseas markets.

Category

Remuneration
Remuneration
Remuneration
Remuneration
for Independent
for Independent
for Non-Auditing
for Non-Auditing
Auditing
Auditing
Services
Services
Services
Services

Fiscal year under review (April 1, 2012–March 31, 2013)
Dentsu paid for consultation services on the International

Parent
Company

143

28

180

15

Consolidated
Subsidiaries

166

21

147

6

Total

309

50

328

22

Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS).

4. Policy for Determining Remuneration to Independent
Auditors

2. Other Significant Details Regarding Remuneration

Remuneration for audits performed by the Company’s Independent Auditors is based on overall consideration of such

Previous fiscal year (April 1, 2011–March 31, 2012)

factors as the content of the audits performed in previous

For the financial statements of overseas consolidated sub-

fiscal years and the content of the auditing schedule pre-

sidiaries, remuneration of 40 million yen for services

sented by the Independent Auditors for the fiscal year

regarded as equivalent to independent auditing services

under review.

was paid to accountants belonging to the same corporate
network as the Company’s independent auditing firm,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC.

Fiscal year under review (April 1, 2012–March 31, 2013)
For the financial statements of overseas consolidated subsidiaries, remuneration of 43 million yen for services
regarded as equivalent to independent auditing services
was paid to accountants belonging to the same corporate
network as the Company’s independent auditing firm,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC.
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Operating Highlights
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (1)
except
per share data

Millions of yen
except
per share data

2009

2010

2011

2012

¥1,887,170

¥1,678,618

¥1,833,449

¥1,893,055

Cost of sales

1,572,696

1,382,127

1,515,753

1,560,248

1,595,282

16,962,066

Gross profit

314,474

296,490

317,696

332,807

345,940

3,678,264

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

271,290

259,166

266,758

280,829

287,474

3,056,612

Operating income

43,184

37,323

50,937

51,977

58,466

621,652

Income (loss) before income taxes
and minority interests

(4,972)

40,048

35,379

58,459

63,310

673,161

Net income (loss)

(20,453)

31,130

21,635

29,573

36,336

386,353

Net cash provided by
operating activities

42,359

74,989

72,914

26,397

83,295

885,656

Net cash provided by
(used in) investing activities

(22,263)

(9,251)

(1,825)

45,941

(51,236)

(544,775)

Net cash used in financing activities

(27,748)

(31,282)

(29,339)

(27,331)

(5,349)

(56,879)

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

57,271

92,854

131,662

175,956

¥1,092,543

¥1,118,236

¥1,133,300

¥1,201,894

452,568

484,250

492,933

536,290

2013

2013

For the year:
Net sales

¥1,941,223 $20,640,330

207,578

2,207,109

At year-end:
Total assets
Total equity
Per share data

¥2,205,569 $23,451,027
584,495

6,214,735

(yen/dollar)(2):

Net income (loss)
¥

Basic

(79.61)

¥

125.03

¥

86.84

¥

118.69

¥

145.84 $

1.55

−

122.84

83.28

114.81

145.68

1.55

35

27

29.5

31

32

0.34

13.7

12.6

16.0

15.6

16.9

−

Return on equity (ROE)(5)

−

6.6

4.4

5.7

6.5

−

(ROA)(6)

3.7

3.4

4.5

4.5

3.4

−

41.4

43.3

43.5

44.6

26.5

−

−

21.6

34.0

26.1

21.9

−

Diluted(3)
Cash dividends
Ratios (%):
Operating margin(4)

Return on assets
Equity

ratio(7)

Dividend payout ratio(8)

Notes: (1) U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen at the rate of ¥94.05 = US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on the
Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2013.
(2) Per share data for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 through 2012 is based on the number of shares outstanding after the stock
split implemented in January 2009.
(3) Diluted net income per share for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 is not recorded because Dentsu recorded a net loss per share.
(4) Operating margin = operating income ÷ gross profit × 100
(5) ROE = net income ÷ average total shareholders’ equity based on total shareholders’ equity at the beginning and end of the fiscal year × 100
ROE for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 is not recorded because Dentsu recorded a net loss.
(6) ROA = operating income ÷ average total assets based on total assets at the beginning and end of the fiscal year × 100
(7) Equity ratio = total shareholders’ equity ÷ total assets × 100
(8) Dividend payout ratio = cash dividend per share ÷ net income per share × 100
Dividend payout ratio for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 is not recorded because Dentsu recorded a net loss.
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(Years ended March 31)

Net Sales

(Billions
of yen)

Gross Profit

(Billions
of yen)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Position and Operating Results
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of June 27, 2013

Any forward-looking statements in the following discussion

Revenue Recognition

and analysis are based on the judgment of management as
of the date that Dentsu Inc. (hereinafter “Dentsu” or “the

Consolidated revenue consists primarily of commissions

Company”) filed its securities report for the fiscal year

received from media companies for the placement of adver-

ended March 31, 2013 with regulatory authorities.

tising into different media formats and payments received
from advertisers and other clients for providing services,

Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

such as assistance in the production of advertising, including creative, and various content-related services. Revenues

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are prepared

from payments received from advertisers for the placement

on the basis of Japanese GAAP.

of advertising are generally recognized when the media

In the preparation of these consolidated financial state-

placement appears. Other revenue is generally recognized

ments, management discloses the amounts of the reported

when the service is complete, an estimate of the value can

asset and liability figures as well as those of off-balance

be reasonably determined and the potential for economic

sheet transactions such as contingent liabilities, as of the

benefit is high.

date the accounts are closed. Management also estimates

Dentsu Group companies receive commissions from

the impact of these figures on the Group’s financial position

media companies for the sale of media time and/or space to

and operating results during the reporting period. Manage-

advertisers. In Japan, advertising companies generally pur-

ment continuously evaluates forecasts and assumptions

chase media time and/or space from media companies at

regarding such items as allowance for doubtful accounts,

the request of advertisers and resell the purchased time

investments and corporate taxes, as well as financing activi-

and/or space to the advertisers at the same prices as those

ties, retirement benefits, contingencies and litigation. Man-

charged by the media companies. The commissions received

agement bases its estimates and assumptions on the consid-

for the placement of advertising are typically a percentage

eration of several factors, given past performance and con-

of the price advertisers pay for the media time and/or space.

ditions. These results underpin assumptions regarding asset

This percentage is generally negotiated between the

and liability book values and reported revenue and expense

relevant Group company and media company. In practice,

figures. However, uncertainties are inherent in such results

however, prevailing industry custom dictates that the com-

and estimates may vary from actual results.

mission portion be netted against payment due to the

The critical accounting policies described below are those

media company with the balance paid to that company. In

that management considers to have specific potential to

the Dentsu Group, the entire price charged to the advertiser

affect the financial position and operating results of the

for media time and/or space is recorded as net sales and the

Group. Such policies may also include important assumptions

amount paid to the media company is recorded as cost of

and estimates used in creating the Company’s consolidated

sales. (Please refer to Figure 1.)

financial statements and therefore have a material impact
on these statements.

Figure 1: Ad Space and Time Slot Transactions
Advertising rates
Advertisers

Advertising rates
Dentsu Inc. and

Media companies

its Group companies
Commissions
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Revenue from the production of advertising and other
advertising services consists of payments made by advertis-

not reflected in current book values may arise, requiring the
Group to record valuation losses.

ers and other clients to the relevant Group company as
compensation for such services. Payments for these services

Deferred Tax Assets

are generally negotiated as a markup on the prices charged
to the Group companies for services provided by third par-

The Group records consolidated deferred tax assets based on

ties and/or Dentsu subsidiaries. In some cases, the Group

future taxable income and ongoing tax planning that empha-

companies may also agree to a fixed fee or other compensa-

sizes cautious and highly implementable approaches. However,

tion arrangements. (Please refer to Figure 2.)

if management decides that some or all of these deferred tax
assets are unrecoverable, such assets may have to be recorded

Figure 2: Ad Planning and Creative Development Transactions
Outsourcing costs
Advertisers

as expenses for the period in which such decision is made.

Outsourcing costs
Dentsu Inc. and

its Group companies

Business partners

Provision for Retirement Benefits

Compensation (Fees)

Retirement benefit costs and obligations are recorded on
the basis of pension actuarial calculations. These calculaAllowance for Doubtful Accounts

tions are dependent upon such factors as the discount rate,
future compensation levels, employee turnover, mortality

An amount is recorded as allowance for doubtful accounts,

rates based on recent statistical values, and expected rates

based on estimated losses that might occur if expected

of investment return on pension plan assets. If the actual

amounts from clients become uncollectible. If the financial

values of these factors vary from their forecast values, or if

position of advertisers or other clients deteriorates and

the assumptions that underlie these values change, regula-

their ability to pay decreases, this allowance may have to be

tory requirements obligate the Company to record the

raised.

cumulative impact of these changes going forward. In such
a case, the Company may be impacted by the recognition of

Impairment Losses on Investments

such costs or by the recording of such liabilities in the
future, on a consolidated basis.

To ensure continuous growth into the future, the Group
pursues investments in new businesses and overseas busi-

Operating Results for the Fiscal Year under Review

nesses, and undertakes investment opportunities with partners. These investments include shares in publicly listed

Net Sales and Gross Profit

companies, the prices of which may fluctuate widely, as well
as shares in unlisted companies with difficult-to-determine

Consolidated net sales for the fiscal year under review

share values. In the event that a decline in the value of an

reached 1,941.2 billion yen (up 2.5% from the previous

investment is determined to be other than temporary, an

fiscal year).

impairment loss is recorded on that investment. If market

Of this amount, the Advertising segment contributed

conditions worsen or the performance of an investment

1,878.8 billion yen (up 2.5%), largely due to an increase in

target deteriorates, an unrecoverable investment or losses

sales by consolidated subsidiaries in the United States.
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Sales in the Information Services segment amounted to
71.0 billion yen (up 11.3%). This segment involves the

operating income came to 58.4 billion yen (up 12.5% from
the previous fiscal year).

operations of Information Services International-Dentsu,

Non-operating income amounted to 10.0 billion yen

Ltd., which is engaged primarily in the provision of IT solu-

(down 36.9%), reflecting a decrease in equity in the earn-

tions, such as information system configuration. During the

ings of affiliated companies. Non-operating expenses came

fiscal year under review, despite weak sales in the enter-

to 9.4 billion yen (up 88.6%), due to such increases as

prise solution business, large sales growth from financial

foreign exchange loss, which led to a non-operating

solutions, enterprise solution engineering and communica-

balance of 0.5 billion yen (down 94.8%), and income before

tion IT resulted in overall sales growth for the segment.

income taxes and minority interests amounted to 63.3

The Other Business segment posted sales of 16.5 billion
yen (down 8.3%). This decrease in sales reflects sluggish
environment-related business activities.
The Overseas segment contributed 282.4 billion yen (up
8.0%). Consolidated sales rose, owing to the aforemen-

billion yen (up 8.3%).
Net income, from which income taxes—current, income
taxes—deferred, and minority interests in net income were
deducted from the above, reached 36.3 billion yen (up
22.9%).

tioned increase in sales in the United States.
As a result, the Group posted consolidated gross profit of

Factors Affecting Operating Results

345.9 billion yen (up 3.9%) for the fiscal year under review.
Both the consolidated net sales and gross profit figures

Consolidated revenue is derived primarily from advertising

exceeded those of the previous fiscal year.

services in the four traditional mass media formats and
other advertising services, mainly interactive media and out-

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

of-home, or OOH, media (billboard, transit and other), as
well as related creative services. Commissions from media

Consolidated selling, general and administrative (SG&A)

companies on the sale of media time and/or space represent

expenses for the fiscal year under review came to 287.4

the largest contribution to revenue, with the key revenue

billion yen (up 2.4% from the previous fiscal year).

source being commissions for advertising time and/or space

Depreciation, provision of allowance for doubtful
accounts and other SG&A expenses decreased. However,
certain expenses, mainly salaries and allowances, welfare

through the four traditional mass media formats.
The main factors affecting revenue from advertising in
these traditional mass media formats are described below:

expenses and amortization of goodwill, increased, leading
to a higher consolidated amount compared with the previ-

• Overall advertising expenditures in Japan, which fluctuate

ous fiscal year. Salaries and allowances accounted for 45.9%

with changing industry conditions such as general eco-

(up 0.2 percentage point) of gross profit.

nomic conditions, technological innovations, deregulation
and heightened competition;

Operating Income, Non-Operating Income & Expenses and
Net Income

• The Group’s competitive position vis-à-vis other
advertising companies in Japan;
• Rates charged by media companies for advertising time

As the increased amount of gross profit was greater than
that of SG&A expenses for the fiscal year under review,

MD&A - 3/14
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(Years ended March 31)

Net Sales

(Billions
of yen)
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(Billions
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With increasing popularity in recent years, the Internet is
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■ Net Income (Loss) ー Return on Equity (ROE)

strives to provide high value-added cross-media campaigns.

firmly in second place, behind television, as the medium

Recent trends indicate heightened appreciation for inte-

garnering the most contact time in homes across Japan. As

grated services that cover a broad spectrum of media

the media environment evolves, the needs of advertisers

domains as well as tools that verify cost efficiency and

become increasingly sophisticated. Advertisers are particu-

advertising effectiveness. The Group believes this will result

larly interested in effective and efficient media planning

in an increase in the number of transactions between adver-

that integrates the Internet, mobile phone and other inter-

tisers and full-service advertising companies.

active media with the traditional mass media formats.

The Group frequently provides promotional services and

Increasingly, they seek verification of advertising effectiveness.

other advertising services in combination with advertising in the

To accurately address these client needs, the Dentsu Group

four traditional mass media. For example, in promotional
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services, clients typically combine advertising campaigns in

companies, as well as market practices regarding remunera-

traditional mass media with point-of-purchase, or POP,

tion for services and shifts in demand among clients for

displays, promotional events and other approaches to

advertising in different media. Exchange rate fluctuations

encourage consumers to buy the client company’s products

between the yen, the reporting currency for the Company’s

or subscribe to its services. Demand for traditional mass

consolidated results, and the currencies of other countries

media advertising may fluctuate independently of demand

in which the Group operates also have an effect on revenue

for combined services, but the factors that influence one

from overseas advertising services.

type of advertising will impact the other types as well.

In March 2013, Dentsu acquired the shares of the Aegis

The Group also secures revenue from services related to

Group (currently, “Aegis Media”) of the United Kingdom,

entertainment and sports marketing. These services include

making Aegis Media a consolidated subsidiary. As the acqui-

the production, marketing and establishment of marketing

sition of the shares was deemed to have taken place on

tie-ins for, and the selling or brokering of, sponsorship,

January 1, 2013, and the Aegis Group’s fiscal year ended

broadcasting and other rights to such content as movies,

December 31, 2012, the Aegis Group prepared its consoli-

sports events, music and other forms of entertainment. A

dated financial statements as of December 31, 2012, and

breakdown of revenue from such services shows net pro-

therefore its results are not included in Dentsu’s results for the

ceeds or commissions on the purchase and sale of content-

fiscal year under review.

related rights, returns on rights or interests in content
owned as well as payments for services. Revenue may vary

Current Status of Management Strategies and Outlook

depending on such factors as the location and timing of the
entertainment and sports events, the terms under which the

The Dentsu Group strengthened its domestic business

Group companies acquire the rights, the level of consumer

through restructuring efforts, which included marketing-

demand for, or interest in, the associated content, and the

focused front-line reforms under its medium-term manage-

level of demand for these rights, especially by advertisers

ment plan Dentsu Innovation 2013, formulated in 2009.

and broadcasters.

Going forward, the Group will strive to raise profitability

In addition, the Group earns revenue from solutions

and develop new sources of earnings.

services, including customer relationship management

With the acquisition of the Aegis Group, the world’s No. 5

(CRM), e-marketing and system configuration. Revenue

advertising agency, the Dentsu Group has become a fully

from these services is not only affected by factors that

international agency with operations in 110 countries

impact advertising services but also investment trends per-

around the world. With this truly global communications

taining to system development.

network, the Group has formulated a new medium-term

The Group also earns revenue from advertising services

management plan, Dentsu 2017 and Beyond, commencing

outside Japan. The factors that influence revenue domesti-

in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2014. Under this plan,

cally do not differ materially from those that impact

the Group’s extensive network will provide global support

revenue generated outside Japan. But trends in revenue

for its clients’ businesses and develop and deliver compre-

may differ among the countries in which the Group oper-

hensive solutions that are at the forefront of the digital

ates, based on such factors as the business climate in each

age, while raising profitability and achieving sustainable

country, developments in specific industries, the competitive

growth in the Group’s main market of Japan.

position of the Group vis-à-vis other advertising
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(Years ended March 31)

Total Assets and
Return on Assets (ROA)

(Billions
of yen)

(%)

Total Shareholders’ Equity
and Equity Ratio

(Billions
of yen)

(%)

2,500

10

600

50

2,000

8

480

40

1,500

6

360

30

1,000

4

240

20

500

2

120

10

0

0

0
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

■ Total Assets ー Return on Assets (ROA)

Never satisfied with the status quo, the Group will

0
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

■ Total Shareholders’ Equity ー Equity Ratio

Analysis of Capital Resources and Cash Liquidity

embrace change as its ally and continue to pursue “Good
Innovation.” going forward. By connecting the diverse

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

values brought forth as it moves steadily forward, the
Group will further address various new projects with the

With the addition of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. to the

aim of becoming a business group that delivers greater

scope of consolidation, total assets as of March 31, 2013,

synergy to society at large.

increased 1,003.6 billion yen and total liabilities increased

By incorporating technology-driven consumer insights as

951.9 billion yen from March 31, 2012. Buoyed by net

well as the latest communication methods practiced in the

income of 36.3 billion yen, net assets as of March 31, 2013,

global arena and the digital domain, the Group will provide

totaled 608.6 billion yen, or 51.7 billion yen more than at

its clients with quality solutions on a global scale. At the

March 31, 2012.

same time, the Group will address other priorities going
forward, such as the establishment of new business models,

Cash Flows

and integrate all these factors to further increase business
opportunities.

As of March 31, 2013, cash and cash equivalents
(hereinafter “cash”) increased to 207.5 billion yen from the
175.9 billion yen posted at the end of the previous fiscal
year. As net cash provided by operating activities exceeded
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net cash used in investing activities and net cash used in

Financial Policy

financing activities, cash at the end of the fiscal year under
review increased by 31.6 billion yen from the previous fiscal

The Group’s primary source of funds is cash generated from

year.

internal reserves, short-term borrowings and the issuance of

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to

commercial paper. In the past, the Group has generally had

83.2 billion yen, compared with 26.3 billion yen in the previ-

positive working capital (current assets minus current liabili-

ous fiscal year. Net cash provided by operating activities

ties) on a consolidated basis. In the previous fiscal year, the

increased by a total of 56.8 billion yen compared with the

Group had consolidated positive working capital of 197.0

previous fiscal year, the result of an increase in income

billion yen. However, in the fiscal year under review,

before income taxes and minority interests and a decrease

current liabilities exceeded current assets by 194.9 billion

in notes and accounts receivable—trade.

yen, as the Group recorded 295.4 billion yen in accrued

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to 51.2

accounts payable related to the acquisition of the Aegis Group.

billion yen, a reversal from the 45.9 billion yen in net cash

To ensure short-term liquidity, Dentsu established a bank

provided by investing activities in the previous fiscal year.

credit line for up to 40 billion yen via a syndication arrange-

The 97.1 billion yen amount change in investing activities

ment. In addition, to improve cash efficiency within the

was the result of an increase in payments for purchases of

Group, a cash management system (CMS) was introduced so

investment securities, a decrease in proceeds from sales of

that Dentsu could borrow cash from domestic consolidated

investment securities and an increase in payments for the

subsidiaries. A Group-wide finance system is now in place

purchase of investment in subsidiaries resulting in change in

that enables nearly all domestic consolidated subsidiaries

scope of consolidation.

that require funding to borrow funds acquired for this pur-

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to 5.3

pose from other domestic consolidated subsidiaries with

billion yen, compared with 27.3 billion yen in the previous

excess cash. Also, a global CMS has been introduced at

fiscal year. The 21.9 billion yen decrease was mainly from

Dentsu Aegis Network, through which overseas cash is con-

proceeds from long-term debt.

solidated in London.
The Japanese rating agency Rating and Investment Infor-

Capital Requirements

mation, Inc., or R&I, has assigned a rating of AA- to Dentsu’s
long-term debt and a rating of a-1+ to its short-term debt.

The Group’s principal working capital requirements are payments for the purchase of advertising time and/or space and

Management Issues and Future Policies

the production of advertisements, as well as personnel costs
and other SG&A expenses.

In recent years, many of the Group’s clients have been

In recent years, capital requirements have increased for

focusing all their efforts on growth opportunities at the

investments in the digital and global domains in the course

global level; meanwhile, the Dentsu Group has worked to

of exploring different advertising opportunities.

strengthen its overseas competitiveness in the face of com-

In addition, capital requirements were created by the

petition from agencies in Europe and the Americas. The

acquisition of t h e A e g i s G r o u p , which was completed

acquisition of the major British advertising agency Aegis

in March 2013.

Group in March 2013 was a key step toward the creation of
a truly global network.
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To capitalize on this acquisition, the Group has formu-

changes in the market and business conditions because

lated a new medium-term management plan, Dentsu 2017

many advertisers adjust their spending in response to

and Beyond, commencing in the fiscal year ending March

changes in these conditions.

31, 2014. Under this plan, the Group will provide support

Management has taken steps, such as diversifying the

for its clients’ businesses around the world and develop and

types of services the Group provides and geographic regions

deliver leading-edge comprehensive solutions, while achiev-

in which the Group operates, to reduce exposure to the

ing sustainable growth in the Japanese market, to create

impact of fluctuations in economic and business environ-

new marketing communication that transcends the bound-

ments. Nonetheless, the Group’s financial results may be

aries of existing advertising businesses as a next-generation

influenced by macroeconomic trends in Japan and fluctua-

agency network that provides unique, unrivaled Group

tions in the operating environment of key domestic industry

value.

sectors that have significant advertising expenditures. In

Given this operating environment, and based on the

addition, changes in business conditions outside Japan, such

Dentsu Group’s corporate philosophy of “Good Innova-

as an economic slowdown or exchange rate fluctuations,

tion.”, the Group aims to expand its activities to “continue

could also adversely affect business conditions in Japan, and

to grow with clients as an ideal partner”—as a partner that

therefore adversely affect the results of operations of the

maximizes clients’ corporate value. To achieve this, the

Group’s business in Japan.

Group will build a structure that is able to further provide a
high level of services both in Japan and overseas.

Japan’s consumption tax rate is expected to increase from
5% to 8% in April 2014 and then further to 10% by October

Dentsu has gone through successive transformations and

2015. Such a tax increase may adversely affect the Japanese

has faced numerous challenges in its 112-year history, and

economy in general, and in particular by reducing consumer

continues to work as a group at the forefront of the times,

spending, which could in turn reduce the demand for the

without losing its identity.

Group’s services and adversely affect its results of operations.

Operating and Other Risks

2011 adversely affected the Japanese economy due to

The Great East Japan Earthquake that occurred in March

supply chain disruptions, electricity shortages and other
The operating results, share price and financial position of

factors. While economic and business conditions in Japan

Dentsu, and by extension, the Dentsu Group are subject to

have improved since then, there is no assurance that condi-

various risks, as described below.

tions may not deteriorate again in the future, including as a

Any forward-looking statements in the following discussion are based on the judgment of management as of the
date of filing the securities report.

result of future earthquakes or other natural disasters.
With the acquisition of the major British advertising
agency Aegis Group in March 2013, the proportion of the
Group’s gross profit accounted for by its operations outside

Overall Industry-related Risk

of Japan will increase significantly from the approximately
18% contribution in the fiscal year under review. As a

Risk related to fluctuations in the economic and business

result, downturns in the economies and business environ-

environments

ments of the principal markets in which the Group operates

The financial results of the Dentsu Group and other compa-

outside of Japan could have an increased adverse impact on its

nies in the advertising industry are highly susceptible to

overall results of operations. In particular, with the acquisition
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of the Aegis Group, the Group has increased its exposure to

enhancing and extending its new global network formed

the European Union, which is currently experiencing a

with the acquisition of the Aegis Group. However, the

sluggish economic environment as well as an ongoing

Group’s ability to achieve its financial targets and other

sovereign debt crisis affecting several European countries.

goals is based on a number of underlying assumptions,
including assumptions regarding factors beyond its control

Risk related to technological innovation and structural changes

such as growth in advertising expenditures globally, foreign

in the media

currency exchange rates and interest rates, as well as general

Developments in technology and new media advertising

economic growth rates of countries in which the Group

markets are having an increasing impact on the Dentsu

operates. If any of these assumptions proves to be inaccurate,

Group’s business. According to 2012 Advertising Expenditures

the Group may be unable to achieve its financial targets

in Japan (issued by Dentsu), Internet advertising expendi-

and other goals. In addition, there is no assurance that

tures have continued to grow since the first survey in 1996

management will be able to successfully implement the

and have reached a level surpassing the amounts allocated

medium-term management plan.

to newspaper, magazine or radio advertising, which are
three of the four traditional mass media (newspapers,

Risk related to common business practices

magazines, radio and television).

The common practice in Japan is for advertising agencies to

Management believes that the development of Internet-

purchase time and/or space from media companies on their

based and other new media advertising should contribute

own behalf, rather than on behalf of their advertiser

to expanding the overall advertising market by generating

clients. Accordingly, Dentsu Group companies are liable for

synergies between advertising in the four traditional mass

payment to media companies regardless of whether they

media and such new advertising. The Dentsu Group also

receive payment from their clients. This practice exposes the

believes that it has already secured a leading position in

Group to the risk of payment default by advertiser clients,

Japan not only in advertising in the four traditional mass

including as the result of the bankruptcy of clients. An

media but also in Internet advertising, and the Group con-

increase in payment defaults by clients could adversely

tinues to seek to explore and exploit further business

affect the Group’s results of operations. The nature of the

opportunities.

advertising business is such that sudden changes in advertis-

Nevertheless, if the Group cannot cope appropriately

ing proposals and actual advertisements are frequent. The

with changes in the media structure associated with the

Group strives to preclude problems related to work for

rapid pace of technological innovation, its results of opera-

clients through measures such as encouraging the conclu-

tion could be adversely affected.

sion of basic written contracts with them, but unforeseen
events or disputes with clients may arise.

Risk related to shortfalls in financial targets and other goals

Overseas, especially in Europe and the Americas,

Pursuant to the Dentsu Group’s new medium-term manage-

relationships between advertisers and advertising agencies

ment plan—Dentsu 2017 and Beyond: Innovation x Reinven-

are usually exclusive within a particular industry. In Japan,

tion—the Group has set financial targets and other goals to

however, these relationships are typically less exclusive.

achieve over the five years ending March 31, 2018. For

Accordingly, the Dentsu Group, like other advertising

example, the Group intends to continue to increase the

agencies in Japan, handles multiple clients in a single

proportion of its revenue from business outside of Japan by

industry. If the practice in Japan were to change in favor of
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exclusive relationships, and if the Group’s efforts to respond

businesses. If the Group is unable to respond effectively to

to such a change were ineffective, its results of operations

client needs in such business domains from either a service

could be adversely affected.

or a cost perspective, or if the entrance of new companies
into these new markets suddenly causes rapid changes in

Competition-related Risk

customary advertising business practices, the Group’s results
of operations could be adversely affected.

Risk related to competition among advertising agencies
The Dentsu Group faces increasing competition from

Risk Related to Advertisers and Media Companies

advertising agencies in Japan and overseas.
In Japan, mergers among domestic advertising companies

The Dentsu Group has formed business ties with major

or other reorganizations of the domestic industry, or

advertisers in Japan and has maintained stable, long-term

further entry into the market by large global advertising

relationships with a large majority of its current clients.

companies, could alter the structure of Japan’s advertising

The Group has also established strong relationships with

industry and increase the competitive pressure that the

Japan’s mass media companies, which enhances its ability to

Group faces. Going forward, the Group’s results of opera-

coordinate operations and sales activities between advertisers

tions could be adversely affected by increased competition

and media companies, and thereby facilitate transactions.

to secure clients if the Group is unable to respond effec-

However, if the Group is unable to provide services that

tively to changes in the structure of the industry or standard

match the needs of existing or new advertisers and media

business practices prompted by such developments.

companies, the Group may be adversely affected, including

Outside of Japan, the Group competes with large global

by the termination of business relationships, the reduction

advertising companies, some of which have greater geo-

of accounts or unfavorable changes in the terms of business.

graphic scope and greater financial, human and other

In recent years, advertisers have sought to consolidate

resources than the Group, as well as with smaller agencies

their media service activities with one advertising agency to

that specialize in one or more countries or local markets. To

boost advertising efficiency and reduce costs. For this and

the extent that the Group is not able to remain competitive

other reasons, the Group and other advertising companies

and obtain and retain key clients, its results of operations

have experienced a decrease in the profitability of mass

may be adversely affected.

media advertising services. If this trend persists, the Group’s
results of operations could be further adversely affected.

Risk related to competition from new market entries and from
adjacent industries

Risk Related to Efforts to Reinforce Domestic Service

The rapid expansion and diversification of the advertising

Capabilities

field is giving rise to competition from an increasing
number of companies in adjacent industries, including gen-

Risk related to the development of information technology

eral trading and consulting companies. Fields related to

processes and databases

Internet advertising and social networking services are also

The Dentsu Group is currently involved in research and

seeing a sharp increase in the number of new market

development on information technology processes and

entrants, and the Dentsu Group competes with these

databases that verify the effectiveness of clients’ advertising

companies in the development and expansion of new

activities and marketing budgets. Through these efforts,
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management seeks to bring latent demand to the surface

initially expected return on these investments.

and expand its share of the Japanese advertising market.
However, it is unclear if or when the results of these efforts

Risk related to expansion of the promotion business

will be marketable and put to practical use. Moreover, even

The importance of promotional activities has been rising for

if the Group is able to develop marketable services from its

advertisers, and the market is expanding. Taking advantage

R&D activities, these services may not produce the results

of this opportunity, the Dentsu Group has established

the Group expects, especially if the needs of clients have

several specialized companies in promotion-related fields

changed significantly or technological challenges preclude

such as point-of-purchase marketing, flyer production,

widespread use of the services.

direct business and client access in order to expand its
future promotion business. However, if demand for these

Risk related to investments in media and Internet advertising

services falls short of expectations, or if the Group is unable

businesses

to maintain competitiveness with other solutions providers,

To reinforce the Dentsu Group’s position in the media markets

the Group may not realize the return on investments that it

and otherwise expand its business, the Group has made

expects.

investments in the four traditional mass media, OOH media
and satellite media (broadcast and communication satellites),

Risk Related to Content Business

as well as in related research and business development
programs. However, if demand for media advertising

The Dentsu Group actively invests in the acquisition of

becomes stagnant or competition in the media advertising

rights to, and in the production of, films, television pro-

market intensifies, profits and other business results may not be

grams, sports events and music, and seeks to generate profits

sufficient to generate the return the Group expects from

from the production, distribution, sale and licensing of films

these investments in R&D and commercialization.

and other content as well as from the sale of sponsorships,

In the Internet advertising domain, as advertising methods

broadcasting rights and content-related advertising. How-

diversify and demands from clients expand, the Dentsu

ever, these projects may extend over several fiscal years and

Group has been actively establishing alliances with leading,

require significant acquisition costs and financial commit-

specialized agencies as well as investing in other specialized

ments. In addition, media that provide content have been

companies and technologies. These moves support the

diversifying in recent years. Moreover, the success of the

Group’s efforts to further promote and propose cross-media

Group’s content business depends primarily upon accep-

campaigns that are aimed at creating effective synergies

tance by the general public, which can be difficult to pre-

among multiple media and creative outlets that are effective

dict. Therefore, if these investments in content or events do

in light of target consumers’ behavior patterns. The Group

not develop as planned or do not realize the benefits

is also focusing on search engine advertising, in which an

expected, the Group’s results of operations may be

advertiser’s ad appears on a personal computer or mobile

adversely affected.

phone display when a consumer searches for a keyword
that has been purchased by the advertiser. However, if the
Group’s efforts fail to adequately address the rapid progress
in technologies and services associated with the Internet
advertising domain, the Group may be unable to realize its
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Risk Related to Global Businesses

materially and adversely affected.
The Group’s consolidated interest-bearing debt increased

Risk related to the Aegis Group acquisition

substantially in connection with the acquisition of the Aegis

On March 26, 2013, the Dentsu Group completed the acqui-

Group because it incurred significant loans in March and

sition of the Aegis Group (currently, ”Aegis Media”) for

April 2013 to finance the acquisition. Servicing and repaying

approximately £3,164 million. The acquisition of the Aegis

the debt may limit the Group’s ability to finance on accept-

Group, which has a leading position in Europe and a strong

able terms new transactions that would otherwise advance

position in other global markets, is an integral part of the

its corporate strategy.

Group’s strategy to grow beyond the Japanese market.
However, there can be no assurance that the Group will be able

Additional risks related to overseas business development

to recoup this substantial investment through successfully

With the acquisition of the Aegis Group, the Dentsu Group’s

integrating Aegis Media’s business. Specifically, the antici-

global operations have expanded from 28 countries to 110

pated benefits and synergies resulting from the acquisition are

countries. The Group’s global operations are subject to a

subject to, among other things, the following uncertainties:

number of risks, including but not limited to the following:

• The Group may face significant challenges in combining

• difficulties in monitoring and coordinating operations in

Aegis Media’s infrastructure, management and
information technology systems with Dentsu’s.
• Management’s focus on the integration could result in
distraction from other operating objectives.
• There may be difficulties in conforming standards, controls, procedures and accounting and other policies, as
well as business cultures and compensation structures.

such a large number and wide range of jurisdictions;
• heightened exposure to any downturn affecting the
global economy;
• risks related to foreign laws, regulations and policies,
including capital and exchange controls;
• differences in, or conflicts among, the taxation regimes in
the different jurisdictions in which the Group operates;

• The Group may not be able to retain key clients of Aegis Media.

• changes with respect to taxation, including impositions or

• The Group may not be able to retain key personnel at

increases of withholding and other taxes on remittances

Aegis Media.
• The Group may not be able to successfully leverage

and other payments by the Group’s overseas subsidiaries;
• fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;

Aegis Media’s networks in Europe, the United States and

• varying standards and practices in the legal, regulatory

emerging markets to increase its share of the global

and business cultures in which the Group operates, including

advertising market.

potential inability to enforce contracts or intellectual
property rights and restrictions on employment matters;

The Group continues to pursue strategic business acquisitions globally as a part of its ongoing growth strategy.
However, if it is not able to achieve the anticipated benefits

• trade restrictions and changes in tariff;
• risks related to political instability and uncertain business
environments;

of these acquisitions in full or in a timely manner, the

• changes in the political or economic relationship between

Group could be required to recognize impairment losses; it

Japan and the other countries and regions in which the

may not be able to recoup its investment; and its business,
financial position and results of operations could be
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social disruption; and
• difficulties associated with managing local personnel and
preventing misconduct by local third-party alliance partners.

competitive edge could be adversely affected.
Moreover, the Group is continuing to address issues
inherent in the management of a greater number of
employees in diverse cultural and geographic areas, particu-

Any one or more of these or other factors could increase

larly with the integration of a large number of new over-

the Group’s costs, reduce its revenues or disrupt its opera-

seas employees in connection with the acquisition of the

tions, with possible material adverse effects on its business,

Aegis Group. There can be no assurance that the Group will be

financial condition and results of operations.

able to attract or retain key employees and successfully
manage them. The Group’s inability to do so could disrupt

Risk related to impairment losses on goodwill and other intan-

its business and have a material adverse effect on its financial

gible assets

condition, results of operations and competitive position.

The Dentsu Group carries significant amounts of goodwill
and other intangible assets on its balance sheet, particularly

Risk Related to Reliance on Information Technology Systems

as a result of the acquisition of the Aegis Group. Goodwill
and other intangible assets are recognized on its balance sheet

The Dentsu Group relies on information technology systems

on the acquisition date. Under Japanese GAAP, the Group is

and infrastructure to process transactions, summarize

required to examine such assets for impairment whenever

results and manage its business, including maintaining

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

client marketing and advertising information. The Group’s

amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The recognition

information technology systems are potentially vulnerable

of such impairment charges may adversely affect the

to system failures and network disruptions, malicious intru-

Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

sion and random attack. Likewise, data security incidents
and breaches by employees and others with or without per-

Risk Related to Maintaining and Developing Human

mitted access to its systems may pose a risk that sensitive

Resources

data may be exposed to unauthorized persons or to the
public. Additionally, the Group utilizes third parties to

The growth potential and competitiveness of the Dentsu

store, transfer or process data. While the Group has taken

Group are highly dependent upon attracting, retaining and

prudent measures to protect its data and information tech-

developing excellent human resources. Therefore, Group

nology systems, there can be no assurance that its efforts

companies strive to attract the necessary talent by hiring a

will prevent system failures or network disruptions or

stable number of new graduates and by recruiting mid-

breaches in its systems, or in systems of third parties the

career professionals with expertise and experience that will

Group uses, which could adversely affect its results of

make an immediate contribution. At the same time, the

operations.

Group endeavors to promote personnel development by
offering training opportunities according to the position
and ability of each individual. However, these efforts could

Risk Related to Legal or Regulatory Changes

be sidetracked for all sorts of reasons, making it difficult to
attract exceptional people or keep them within the Group.

Advertising companies in Japan, including those under the

If this were to occur, the Group’s growth potential and its

Dentsu Group umbrella, are subject to a number of laws
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and regulations, including the Act against Delay in Payment
of Subcontract Proceeds, Etc. to Subcontractors and the Act
on the Protection of Personal Information. At the current
time, management does not anticipate that these laws and
regulations will have any material impact on the Group’s
business. However, the financial results of the Dentsu Group
and other advertising companies could be adversely
affected if existing laws or regulations governing the advertising activities of advertisers or the format or content of
advertisements are strengthened, if new laws or regulations
are introduced, or if existing laws and regulations are reinterpreted.
Members of the Group handle personal and other advertiser information in the course of doing business. The
Dentsu Group’s information security system is certified to
international standards, and the utmost care is given to
safeguarding information entrusted to the Group. However, in the unlikely event of an information leak or other
such incident occurring, the Group’s credibility could be
severely compromised. This could adversely affect its financial results.

Risk of Litigation

The Dentsu Group could become involved in litigation
brought against it directly or indirectly in association with
the execution of business by members of the Group, including claims by clients, organizations, consumers or owners of
intellectual property.
The Group is involved in litigation brought by several
companies in relation to a partnership business, which was
operating a live music club, and is being asked to pay subcontracting and lease fees with regard to a fictitious order
made by a former employee of the Group who misused its
name and the name of the partnership.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2013

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

ASSETS

2012

2013

2013

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 9 and 21)

¥ 175,956

¥ 207,578

$ 2,207,109

Time deposits over three months (Note 21)

789

777

8,269

20,725

19,604

208,451

470,672

796,646

8,470,453

4,147

21,965

233,552

CURRENT ASSETS (Note 3):

Receivables (Note 21):
Trade notes (Note 13)
Trade accounts
Other
Marketable securities (Notes 5 and 21)

218

116

1,239

Inventories (Note 6)

10,459

13,561

144,191

Deferred tax assets (Note 18)

12,920

9,857

104,815

Other current assets

28,686

54,300

577,361

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(2,354)

(1,806)

(19,211)

Total current assets

722,223

1,122,602

11,936,234

Land

160,732

160,820

1,709,947

Buildings and structures

157,708

170,486

1,812,719

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 7 and 8):

Other

28,520

42,900

456,146

346,961

374,207

3,978,813

(104,458)

(123,653)

(1,314,767)

242,502

250,553

2,664,045

Investment securities (Notes 5 and 21)

90,623

85,534

909,460

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies (Note 22)

24,921

53,983

573,987

Goodwill

44,339

576,009

6,124,502

Intangible assets

18,752

51,232

544,733

Deferred tax assets (Note 18)

23,750

29,362

312,197

Other assets

38,825

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(3,784)

Total
Accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS (Note 8):

50,902
(14,611)

541,226
(155,360)

Allowance for losses on investment securities and investments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries
Total investments and other assets
TOTAL

−

−

237,169

832,412

8,850,747

¥1,201,894

¥2,205,569

$23,451,027

(257)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2012

2013

2013

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Notes 9 and 21)
Current portion of long term debt (Notes 9, 20 and 21)

¥

4,733
25,620

¥

21,268
27,143

$

226,137
288,611

Payables (Note 21):
Trade notes (Note 13)
Trade accounts (Note 9)
Other

9,689

8,211

87,306

404,431

777,166

8,263,331

9,277

331,486

3,524,577

Income taxes payable

13,629

21,175

225,149

Accrued expenses

29,400

67,781

720,699

0

9

101

Asset retirement obligations (Note 12)
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

28,397

63,311

673,172

525,181

1,317,554

14,009,087

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Note 3):
−

93,931

998,739

Long-term debt (Notes 9, 20 and 21)

57,176

73,508

781,593

Accrued pension and severance costs (Note 11)

38,204

42,695

453,962

26

9,492

100,926

9,038

9,038

96,100

851

896

9,528

Long-term payables

8,661

41,750

443,920

Other long-term liabilities

5,866

8,064

85,744

119,824

279,377

2,970,517

58,967

58,967

626,976

60,899

60,899

647,519

Retained earnings

487,133

515,630

5,482,517

Treasury stock—at cost, 29,032,096 shares in 2012 and 29,035,042 shares in 2013

(65,070)

(65,077)

(691,946)

12,135

13,609

144,709

Bonds (Notes 10 and 21)

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 18)
Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation difference (Notes 2.l and 18)
Asset retirement obligations (Note 12)

Total long-term liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Notes 20, 23 and 24)

EQUITY (Notes 14 and 27):
Common stock,
authorized, 1,100,000,000 shares; issued, 278,184,000 shares in 2012 and 2013
Capital surplus

Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting
Land revaluation difference (Note 2.l )
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total
Minority interests
Total equity
TOTAL

(453)
(5,931)
(11,389)
536,290

8,173

86,909

(5,931)

(63,069)

(1,775)
584,495

(18,878)
6,214,735

20,598

24,141

256,687

556,889

608,637

6,471,422

¥1,201,894

¥2,205,569

$23,451,027

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet - 2/2

Dentsu Annual Report 2013

Consolidated Statement of Income
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year ended March 31, 2013

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

NET SALES

2012

2013

2013

¥1,893,055

¥1,941,223

$20,640,330

1,560,248

1,595,282

16,962,066

332,807

345,940

3,678,264

280,829

287,474

3,056,612

51,977

58,466

621,652

2,442

2,141

22,772

(1,929)

(1,462)

(15,545)

2,071

2,826

30,052

COST OF SALES
Gross profit
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 19)
Operating income

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) (Note 3):
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Profit distributions
Foreign exchange loss−net

(4,201)

(44,673)

8,305

2,202

23,416

6,757

(115)

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Gain on sales of investment securities
Other—net (Notes 8, 11 and 16)
Other income (expenses)—net

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS

13,270

141,099

(11,050)

(9,932)

(105,613)

6,481

4,844

51,508

58,459

63,310

673,161

19,735

25,967

276,107

INCOME TAXES (Note 18):
Current
Deferred

NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS
MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET INCOME

NET INCOME

(1,405)

(14,949)

26,954

24,561

261,158

31,505

38,748

412,002

1,932

2,412

25,649

7,218

Total income taxes

¥

29,573

¥

36,336

$

Yen
2012

386,353

U.S. Dollars
2013

2013

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Notes 2.w and 26):
Basic net income
Diluted net income
Cash dividends applicable to the year

¥

118.69

¥

145.84

$

1.55

114.81

145.68

1.55

31.00

32.00

0.34

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year ended March 31, 2013

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS

2012

2013

2013

¥31,505

¥38,748

$412,002

10,194

1,800

19,144

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 25):
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gain on derivatives under hedge accounting

2,378

8,652

92,000

Foreign currency translation adjustments

(4,021)

9,804

104,247

Share of other comprehensive income in associates

15,287

599

6,371

Total other comprehensive income
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

23,839

20,856

221,764

¥55,344

¥59,605

$633,766

¥53,393

¥56,051

$595,977

1,951

3,554

37,789

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent
Minority interests
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year ended March 31, 2013
Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Outstanding
Number of
Shares of
Common Stock

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock
¥(65,064)

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2011

249,154,192

¥58,967

¥60,899

¥468,846

Net income

−

−

−

29,573

Cash dividends, ¥30.00 per share

−

−

−

Reversal of revaluation reserve for land

−

−

−

Change in scope of consolidation

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

123

−

(0)

Change in scope of equity method
Repurchase of treasury stock
Disposal of treasury stock

(2,411)

Deferred
Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on
Gain on
Available-for-sale Derivatives under
Hedge Accounting
Securities
¥ 1,930

¥(2,823)

Land
Revaluation
Difference

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments

Total

Minority
Interests

Total
Equity

¥(7,187)

¥(22,634)

¥492,933

¥19,208

¥512,141

29,573

−

29,573

−

−

−

−

−

(7,474)

−

−

−

−

−

(7,474)

−

(0)

−

−

−

−

−

(0)

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

(4,225)

−

(4,225)

(5)

−

−

−

−

(5)

−

(5)

−

0

−

−

−

−

0

−

0

413
(4,225)

413

−

(7,474)
(0)
413

Transfer to retained earnings from
other capital surplus

−

−

0

(0)

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

Other changes in the year

−

−

−

−

−

10,205

2,369

1,255

11,244

25,075

1,390

26,466

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012

¥12,135

¥ (453)

¥(5,931)

¥(11,389)

¥536,290

¥20,598

¥556,889

36,336

−

36,336

249,151,904

¥58,967

¥60,899

¥487,133

Net income

−

−

−

36,336

Cash dividends, ¥32.00 per share

−

−

−

Change in scope of consolidation

−

−

−

Change in scope of equity method

−

−

Repurchase of treasury stock
Disposal of treasury stock

¥(65,070)
−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

160

−

−

−

−

−

160

−

160

−

(26)

−

−

−

−

−

(26)

−

(26)

−

−

−

(7)

−

−

−

−

(7)

−

(7)

4

−

(0)

−

0

−

−

−

−

0

−

0

(2,950)

(7,972)

(7,972)

−

(7,972)

Transfer to retained earnings from
other capital surplus

−

−

0

(0)

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

Other changes in the year

−

−

−

−

−

1,474

8,627

−

9,613

19,715

3,542

23,257

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013

249,148,958

¥58,967

¥60,899

¥515,630

¥13,609

¥ 8,173

¥584,495

¥24,141

¥608,637

¥(65,077)

¥(5,931)

¥ (1,775)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized
Gain on
Available-for-sale
Securities

$(691,870)

$129,034

Deferred
Gain (Loss) on
Land
Derivatives under Revaluation
Hedge Accounting Difference

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustments

Total

Minority
Interests

Total
Equity

$(121,098)

$626,976

$647,519

$5,179,514

$ 5,702,185

$ 219,018

$5,921,204

Net income

−

−

386,353

−

−

−

−

−

386,353

−

386,353

Cash dividends, $0.34 per share

−

−

(84,772)

−

−

−

−

−

(84,772)

−

(84,772)

Change in scope of consolidation

−

−

1,704

−

−

−

−

−

1,704

−

1,704

Change in scope of equity method

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

(283)

−

(283)

Repurchase of treasury stock

−

−

−

(76)

−

−

−

−

(76)

−

(76)

Disposal of treasury stock

−

(0)

−

0

−

−

−

−

0

−

0

(283)

$ (4,820)

$(63,069)

Transfer to retained earnings from
other capital surplus

−

0

(0)

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

−

Other changes in the year

−

−

−

−

15,674

91,729

−

102,219

209,623

37,668

247,292

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013

$626,976

$647,519

$5,482,517

$144,709

$86,909

$6,214,735

$256,687

$6,471,422

$(691,946)

$(63,069)

$ (18,878)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year ended March 31, 2013

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes and minority interests
Adjustments for:
Income taxes—paid
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss
Amortization of goodwill—net
Foreign exchange (gain) loss—net
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Loss on transfer of business
(Increase) decrease in notes and accounts receivable—trade
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable—trade
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts
Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement benefits
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Other—net
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (Note 3):
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Payments for purchases of software
Payments for loans
Proceeds from collection of loans
Payments for the purchase of consolidated subsidiaries
Payments for the purchase of investment in subsidiaries resulting in
change in scope of consolidation (Note 17)
Proceeds from the purchase of investment in subsidiaries resulting
in change in scope of consolidation
Payments for sales of investments in subsidiaries resulting in
change in scope of consolidation
Proceeds from sales of investment in subsidiaries resulting in
change in scope of consolidation
Payments for purchases of long-term prepaid expenses
Payments for currency option contracts
Other—net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings—net
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Payments for repurchase of treasury stock
Dividends paid to shareholders
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Other—net
Net cash used in financing activities
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF NEWLY CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2012

2013

2013

¥ 58,459

¥ 63,310

$ 673,161

(18,505)
14,251
1,074
2,445
(57)
(8,305)
4,560
(58,249)
(1,342)
33,347
508
4,270
(10,645)
5,204
(620)
(32,062)
26,397

(19,969)
12,928
665
5,625
4,247
(2,202)
−
22,985
(1,346)
(3,787)
(879)
3,577
(5,364)
12,670
(9,166)
19,985
83,295

(212,333)
137,466
7,080
59,809
45,160
(23,416)
−
244,400
(14,320)
(40,267)
(9,347)
38,043
(57,042)
134,724
(97,461)
212,495
885,656

(5,458)
38
(7,497)
81,190
(4,140)
(209)
1,008
(12,033)

(3,834)
568
(27,577)
26,007
(7,293)
(145)
227
(13,457)

(40,769)
6,047
(293,223)
276,533
(77,547)
(1,543)
2,423
(143,083)

(4,202)

(16,034)

(170,492)

−

−

−

(339)

(24)

(261)

−
(3,301)
−
886
45,941

28
(3,237)
(5,243)
(1,221)
(51,236)

302
(34,427)
(55,752)
(12,982)
(544,775)

701
−
(20,048)
(5)
(7,474)
(548)
44
(27,331)

(960)
30,000
(25,901)
(7)
(7,972)
(540)
32
(5,349)

(10,212)
318,979
(275,400)
(76)
(84,772)
(5,741)
344
(56,879)

(1,866)
43,140
131,662
1,152
¥175,956

3,905
30,616
175,956
1,006
¥207,578

41,529
325,529
1,870,881
10,698
$2,207,109

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Dentsu Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year ended March 31, 2013

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards.
Japanese yen figures less than a million yen are rounded down to the nearest million yen and U.S. dollar figures less than a
thousand dollars are rounded down to the nearest thousand dollars, except for per share data.
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the
consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside
Japan. In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in the 2012 consolidated financial statements to conform to the
classifications used in 2013.
The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which Dentsu Inc. (the “Company”) is
incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience
of readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥94.05 to $1, the rate of exchange at March 31, 2013. Such translations
should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements at March 31, 2013, include the accounts of the Company and its 656 (144 in
2012) significant subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group“).
Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. and its subsidiaries were newly consolidated for the year ended March 31, 2013. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2014, will be significantly influenced due to the consolidation of
operations from Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. and its subsidiaries on and after January 1, 2013 (See Note 4).
Investments in 56 (36 in 2012) affiliated companies are accounted for by the equity method.
Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over
operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over which the Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are
accounted for by the equity method.
The excesses of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition are
amortized over an estimated effective period, from 5 to 20 years, or if immaterial, are charged to income when incurred.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit
included in assets resulting from transactions within the Group is eliminated.

b. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements — In May 2006, the
Accounting Standards Board of Japan (the “ASBJ”) issued ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No. 18, “Practical Solution on Unification of
Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements.” PITF No. 18 prescribes: (1) the accounting
policies and procedures applied to a parent company and its subsidiaries for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances
should, in principle, be unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, (2) financial statements prepared by foreign
subsidiaries in accordance with either International Financial Reporting Standards or generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) tentatively may be used for the consolidation process, (3) however, the following items should be adjusted in
the consolidation process so that net income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material: a) amortization
of goodwill; b) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that has been directly recorded in equity; c) expensing capitalized
development costs of R&D; d) cancellation of the fair value model accounting for property, plant and equipment and investment properties
and incorporation of the cost model accounting; and e) exclusion of minority interests from net income, if contained in net income.
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c. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Affiliated Companies for the Equity Method — In March 2008, the ASBJ issued
ASBJ Statement No. 16, “Accounting Standard for Equity Method of Accounting for Investments.” The new standard requires
adjustments to be made to conform the affiliate’s accounting policies for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances to
those of the parent company when the affiliate’s financial statements are used in applying the equity method unless it is impracticable
to determine adjustments. In addition, financial statements prepared by foreign affiliated companies in accordance with either
International Financial Reporting Standards or U.S. GAAP tentatively may be used in applying the equity method if the following items
are adjusted so that net income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese GAAP unless they are not material: 1) amortization of
goodwill; 2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that has been directly recorded in equity; 3) expensing
capitalized development costs of R&D; 4) cancellation of the fair value model accounting for property, plant and equipment and
investment properties and incorporation of the cost model accounting; and 5) exclusion of minority interests from net income, if
contained in net income.

d. Business Combinations — In October 2003, the Business Accounting Council issued a Statement of Opinion, “Accounting for
Business Combinations,” and in December 2005, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 7, “Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures” and ASBJ Guidance No. 10, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Business Divestitures.” The
accounting standard for business combinations allows companies to apply the pooling-of-interests method of accounting only when
certain specific criteria are met such that the business combination is essentially regarded as a uniting-of-interests. For business
combinations that do not meet the uniting-of-interests criteria, the business combination is considered to be an acquisition and the
purchase method of accounting is required. This standard also prescribes the accounting for combinations of entities under common
control and for joint ventures.
In December 2008, the ASBJ issued a revised accounting standard for business combinations, ASBJ Statement No. 21, “Accounting
Standard for Business Combinations.” Major accounting changes under the revised accounting standard are as follows: (1) The revised
standard requires accounting for business combinations only by the purchase method. As a result, the pooling-of-interests method of
accounting is no longer allowed. (2) The previous accounting standard required research and development costs to be charged to
income as incurred. Under the revised standard, in-process research and development costs (IPR&D) acquired in a business
combination are capitalized as an intangible asset. (3) The previous accounting standard provided for a bargain purchase gain
(negative goodwill) to be systematically amortized over a period not exceeding 20 years. Under the revised standard, the acquirer
recognizes the bargain purchase gain in profit or loss immediately on the acquisition date after reassessing and confirming that all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed have been identified after a review of the procedures used in the purchase price
allocation. The revised standard was applicable to business combinations undertaken on or after April 1, 2010.

e. Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposits, commercial paper and bond
funds, all of which mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.

f. Inventories — Inventories are stated at cost, substantially determined by the specific identification method or net selling value.

g. Marketable and Investment Securities — Marketable and investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending on
management’s intent, as either (1) held-to-maturity debt securities, for which management has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity, are reported at amortized cost, or (2) available-for-sale securities, which are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of equity.
Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined mainly by the moving-average method.
For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

h. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate based
on past credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables outstanding.
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i. Property, Plant and Equipment — Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
of the Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is computed substantially by the declining-balance method based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings acquired after April 1, 1998, and most
property, plant and equipment of consolidated foreign subsidiaries. The range of useful lives is principally from 3 to 100 years for
buildings and structures, and from 2 to 20 years for furniture and fixtures. The useful lives for lease assets are the terms of the
respective leases.
(Changes in accounting policies that are not easily distinguishable from changes in accounting estimates)
From the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries, in conjunction
with the revision of the Corporation Tax Act of Japan, changed their depreciation method for property, plant and equipment acquired
on or after April 1, 2012, to the method based on the revised Corporation Tax Act.
The impact of this change on operating income and income before income taxes and minority interests for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2013, was immaterial.

j. Long-Lived Assets — The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate
the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use
and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and
eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

k. Intangible Assets — Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, which is calculated by the straight-line method.
Software for sale to the market is amortized in proportion to the actual sales of the software during the current year to the estimated total sales
over the estimated salable years of the software, or at the amount to be amortized by the straight-line method over the estimated salable years,
not exceeding 3 years.
Software for internal use is amortized by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, principally over 5 years.

l. Land Revaluation — Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” the Company elected a one-time revaluation of its own-use land to a value based
on real estate appraisal information at March 31, 2001. The resulting increase in land revaluation difference represents unrealized
appreciation of land and is stated, net of applicable taxes, as a component of equity. There was no effect on the consolidated
statement of income. Continuous readjustment is not permitted unless the land value subsequently declines significantly such that the
amount of the decline in value should be removed from the land revaluation difference account and related deferred tax liabilities.

m. Allowance for Losses on Investment Securities and Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries — The allowance for losses on
investment securities and investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate based on the
estimated losses on non-marketable investment securities to be incurred in the future. The Group accounted for this allowance since
2005 in terms of financial soundness and future uncertainties.

n. Accrued Pension and Severance Costs — The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans for
employees. Some consolidated subsidiaries have defined contribution pension plans.
The Group accounts for the liability for employees’ retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at
the balance sheet date.
Retirement benefits for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members are provided at the amount which would be required if
all directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members retired at the balance sheet date.

o. Asset Retirement Obligations — In March 2008, the ASBJ published ASBJ Statement No. 18, “Accounting Standard for Asset
Retirement Obligations” and ASBJ Guidance No. 21, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations.” Under this
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accounting standard, an asset retirement obligation is defined as a legal obligation imposed either by law or contract that results from
the acquisition, construction, development and normal operation of a tangible fixed asset and is associated with the retirement of
such tangible fixed asset. The asset retirement obligation is recognized as the sum of the discounted cash flows required for the
future asset retirement and is recorded in the period in which the obligation is incurred if a reasonable estimate can be made. If a
reasonable estimate of the asset retirement obligation cannot be made in the period the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the
liability should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement obligation can be made. Upon initial recognition of
a liability for an asset retirement obligation, an asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related
fixed asset by the amount of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently allocated to expense through depreciation over
the remaining useful life of the asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period. Any subsequent revisions to
the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an increase or a decrease in the carrying
amount of the liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset retirement cost.

p. Provision for Loss on Litigation — The Company is involved in legal proceedings and claims which arise from time to time in the
ordinary course of business. The Company provides for losses to the extent that the occurrence is probable and the liabilities can
reasonably be estimated.

q. Stock Options — ASBJ Statement No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Stock Options” and related guidance are applicable to stock
options granted on and after May 1, 2006.
This standard requires companies to recognize compensation expense for employee stock options based on the fair value at the date
of grant and over the vesting period as consideration for receiving goods or services. The standard also requires companies to account
for stock options granted to non-employees based on the fair value of either the stock option or the goods or services received. In the
balance sheet, the stock option is presented as a stock acquisition right as a separate component of equity until exercised. The
standard allows unlisted companies to measure options at their intrinsic value if they cannot reliably estimate fair value.

r. Leases — In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions,” which revised the
previous accounting standard for lease transactions issued in June 1993. The revised accounting standard for lease transactions was
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2008.
Under the previous accounting standard, finance leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee
were capitalized. However, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if
capitalized” information was disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements. The revised accounting standard requires that
all finance lease transactions be capitalized to recognize lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet. In addition, the revised
accounting standard permits leases which existed at the transition date and which do not transfer ownership of the leased property to
the lessee to be measured at the amount of obligations under finance leases less interest expense at the transition date and recorded
as acquisition cost of lease assets.
The Group applied the revised accounting standard effective April 1, 2008. In addition, the Group accounted for leases which existed
at the transition date and which do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee as acquisition cost of lease assets
measured at the amount of obligations under finance leases less interest expense at the transition date.
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases.

s. Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statement of
income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are
measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

t. Foreign Currency Transactions — All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation
are recognized in the consolidated statement of income to the extent that they are not hedged by forward exchange contracts.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - 4/38

Dentsu Annual Report 2013

u. Foreign Currency Financial Statements — The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into
Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the balance sheet date except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate.
Differences arising from such translation are shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” under accumulated other
comprehensive income in a separate component of equity. Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are
translated into yen at the average exchange rate.

v. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts,
currency option contracts, currency swap contracts and interest rate swaps, to manage its exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange risks and interest rate risk. The Group does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are classified and accounted for as follows: (1) all derivatives (except for those described below as
(2)) are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, with gains and losses recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, and (2) if derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, because of high correlation and effectiveness between the
hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains or losses are deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions.
The foreign exchange forward contracts, currency option contracts and currency swap contracts utilized by the Company and
certain consolidated subsidiaries are measured at market value at the balance sheet date, and the unrealized gains or losses are
deferred until the underlying transactions or settlements are completed.
The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and which meet specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market
value, but the differential paid or received under the swap agreements is recognized and included in interest expense or income.

w. Per Share Information — Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities were exercised or converted into common
stock. Diluted net income per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the outstanding convertible bonds at the beginning
of the year (or at the time of issuance) with an applicable adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise of
outstanding warrants.
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statement of income are dividends applicable to the
respective years, including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

x. Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — In December 2009, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 24, “Accounting Standard for
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” and ASBJ Guidance No. 24, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections.” Accounting treatments under this standard and guidance are as follows: (1) Changes in Accounting
Policies—When a new accounting policy is applied with revision of accounting standards, the new policy is applied retrospectively
unless the revised accounting standards include specific transitional provisions. When the revised accounting standards include specific
transitional provisions, an entity shall comply with the specific transitional provisions. (2) Changes in Presentation—When the
presentation of financial statements is changed, prior-period financial statements are reclassified in accordance with the new
presentation. (3) Changes in Accounting Estimates—A change in an accounting estimate is accounted for in the period of the change if
the change affects that period only, and is accounted for prospectively if the change affects both the period of the change and future
periods. (4) Corrections of Prior-Period Errors—When an error in prior-period financial statements is discovered, those statements are
restated. This accounting standard and the guidance are applicable to accounting changes and corrections of prior-period errors which
are made from the beginning of the fiscal year that begins on or after April 1, 2011.

y. New Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits — On May 17, 2012, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 26, “Accounting Standard for
Retirement Benefits” and ASBJ Guidance No. 25, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits,” which replaced the
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits that had been issued by the Business Accounting Council in 1998 with an effective date
of April 1, 2000, and the other related practical guidance, and followed by partial amendments from time to time through 2009.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - 5/38

Dentsu Annual Report 2013

Major changes are as follows:

(a) Treatment in the balance sheet
Under the current requirements, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are
not recognized in the balance sheet, and the difference between retirement benefit obligations and plan assets (hereinafter,
“deficit or surplus”), adjusted by such unrecognized amounts, is recognized as a liability or asset.
Under the revised accounting standard, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or
loss shall be recognized within equity (accumulated other comprehensive income), after adjusting for tax effects, and any resulting
deficit or surplus shall be recognized as a liability (liability for retirement benefits) or asset (asset for retirement benefits).

(b) Treatment in the statement of income and the statement of comprehensive income
The revised accounting standard does not change how to recognize actuarial gains and losses and past service costs in profit or loss.
Those amounts would be recognized in profit or loss over a certain period no longer than the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees. However, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that arose in the current period and have not yet
been recognized in profit or loss shall be included in other comprehensive income and actuarial gains and losses and past service
costs that were recognized in other comprehensive income in prior periods and then recognized in profit or loss in the current
period shall be treated as reclassification adjustments.

(c) Amendments relating to the method of attributing expected benefit to periods and relating to the discount rate and expected
future salary increases
The revised accounting standard also made certain amendments relating to the method of attributing expected benefit to periods
and relating to the discount rate and expected future salary increases.
This accounting standard and the guidance for (a) and (b) above are effective for the end of annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2013, and for (c) above are effective for the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, or for the
beginning of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015, subject to certain disclosure in March 2015, both with earlier
application being permitted from the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013. However, no retrospective
application of this accounting standard to consolidated financial statements in prior periods is required.
The Company expects to apply the revised accounting standard for (a) and (b) above from the end of the annual period beginning
on April 1, 2013, and for (c) above from the beginning of the annual period beginning on April 1, 2014, and is in the process of
measuring the effects of applying the revised accounting standard in future applicable periods.

3. CHANGES IN PRESENTATION
Consolidated Balance Sheet
“Advance payments” which was disclosed separately among the CURRENT ASSETS section in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, has
been included in “Other current assets” because its materiality of amount has decreased.
Amount of “Advance payments” which was disclosed separately in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, was ¥23,789 million.
“Long-term payables” which was included in “Other long-term liabilities” among the LONG-TERM LIABILITIES section in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2012, has been disclosed separately because its materiality of amount has increased.
Amount of “Long-term payables” which was disclosed as “Other long-term liabilities” in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, was
¥8,661 million.

Consolidated Statement of Income
“Foreign exchange loss—net” which was included in “Other” among the OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) section in the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2012, has been disclosed separately because its materiality of amount has increased.
Amount of “Foreign exchange loss—net” which was disclosed as “Other” in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, was ¥115 million.
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“Loss on transfer of business” which was disclosed separately among the OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) section in the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2012, has been included in “Other” because its materiality of amount has decreased.
Amount of “Loss on transfer of business” which was disclosed separately in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, was ¥4,560 million.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
“Proceeds from sales of marketable securities” which was disclosed separately among the INVESTING ACTIVITIES section in the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2012, has been included in “Other—net” because its materiality of amount has decreased.
Amount of “Proceeds from sales of marketable securities” which was disclosed separately in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012,
was ¥0 million.

4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The Company completed a significant corporate acquisition during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. The outline of the business
combination is as follows.
Acquisition of Aegis Group plc (Headquarters: London, United Kingdom)

a. Outline of the business combination
(1) Name and business of the acquired company
Name of the acquired company: Aegis Group plc
Business: Advertising
(2) Reason for the business combination
To accelerate growth through geographical expansion, scale expansions in the major markets and in the digital field and
reinforcement of financial resources, in addition to the complementary relationship of the two companies in terms of business
domains and services.
(3) Date of the business combination
March 26, 2013
(4) Legal form of the business combination and name of the company after the business combination
Legal form of the business combination: Acquisition of shares
Name of the company after the business combination: Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.
(Trade name was changed from Aegis Group plc effective March 26, 2013)
(5) Ratio of voting rights acquired
100%
(6) Principal basis for determining an acquirer
The Company acquired shares of Aegis Group plc in exchange for cash.

b. Period of operating results of the acquired company included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company
As the deemed acquisition date was January 1, 2013, and the Company prepared its consolidated financial statements based on the
acquired company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2012, the operating results of the acquired company are not included in
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - 7/38

Dentsu Annual Report 2013

c. Acquisition cost and its breakdown (As of March 31, 2013)
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Consideration for acquisition

¥ 69,354

Cash

$

294,178

Payables—other
Direct expenditure for acquisition
Acquisition cost

737,417
3,127,898

1,586

16,871

¥365,119

$3,882,188

Notes: 1) Payment of the above payables—other was completed on April 5, 2013. The payment was financed by loans as stated in Subsequent Events (See Note 27.b).
2) On April 17, 2013, ¥43,243 million ($459,791 thousand) was paid for the purchase of all convertible bonds issued by a group company of Dentsu Aegis
Network Ltd., and ¥835 million ($8,887 thousand) was paid as additional purchase of shares of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. issued through the exercise
of stock options.

d. Amount of goodwill generated, its method of amortization and amortization period
(1) Amount of goodwill
¥519,076 million (GBP3,930 million) ($5,519,154 thousand)
The amount of goodwill is a provisional amount as the purchase price allocation has not been finalized.
(2) Reason generated
As the acquisition cost exceeded the net amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess amount was regarded as
goodwill.
(3) Method of amortization and amortization period
Goodwill will be amortized using the straight-line method over the period of expected benefit. The amortization period will be
determined based on the results of the purchase price allocation.

e. Acquired assets and assumed liabilities on the date of the business combination

Current assets

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

¥424,795

$4,516,703

53,775

571,773

Total assets acquired

¥478,571

$5,088,477

Current liabilities

¥477,468

$5,076,753

Noncurrent assets

Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities assumed

154,460

1,642,324

¥631,929

$6,719,078

Notes: 1) The amount of goodwill that Aegis Group plc had recorded on its own books is not included in the above amounts.
2) The above amounts are provisional amounts reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2013.
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f. Estimated impact on the consolidated statement of income if the business combination had been completed at the beginning of the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

Net sales
Gross profit

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

¥160,899

$1,710,781

153,564

1,632,799

(8,337)

Operating income
Net income

(88,652)

(14,838)

(157,769)

Yen
Net income per share

U.S. Dollars

¥ (59.56)

$

(0.63)

(Calculation method of the estimated impact and material assumptions)
The above figures include estimated amounts of the financial results of Aegis Group plc if the business combination had been
completed at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.
Pro forma adjustments are recorded to eliminate transaction costs incurred by the Company and Aegis Group plc, respectively,
which are directly attributable to the Company’s acquisition of Aegis Group plc.
These figures have not been audited.

5. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2012 and 2013, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

2013

2013

Equity Securities

−

−

−

Debt securities

−

−

−

Current:

Other
Total

¥

218

¥

116

$

1,239

¥

218

¥

116

$

1,239

Non-current:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other
Total
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2,001

752

8,006

915

925

9,837

¥90,623

¥85,534

$909,460

¥ 87,705
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The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2012

Cost

Unrealized Gains

¥30,556

¥18,729

2,005
500

−

Unrealized Losses

Fair Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other

Held-to-maturity

¥(1,045)

¥48,240

−

(3)

2,001

6

−

506

−

−

−

Unrealized Losses

Fair Value

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2013

Cost

Unrealized Gains

¥25,167

¥20,812

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities

¥(373)

¥45,607

45

7

−

52

500

17

−

517

Held-to-maturity

700

−

(28)

671

March 31, 2013

Cost

Unrealized Gains

$267,594

$221,294

487

75

−

563

5,316

188

−

5,504

7,442

−

Debt securities
Other

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Unrealized Losses

Fair Value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other

Held-to-maturity
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The information of available-for-sale securities which were sold during the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, was as follows:

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2012

Proceeds

Realized Gains

Realized Losses

¥1,817

¥392

¥(350)

−

−

Available-for-sale:
Equity securities
Debt securities

0

−

(0)

¥1,818

¥392

¥(350)

Other
Total

−

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2013

Proceeds

Realized Gains

Realized Losses

¥23,977

¥13,270

¥(23)

−

−

Available-for-sale:
Equity securities
Debt securities

−
−

−

−

Total

¥23,977

¥13,270

March 31, 2013

Proceeds

Realized Gains

Realized Losses

$254,941

$141,099

$(253)

Debt securities

−

−

−

Other

−

−

−

$254,941

$141,099

Other

¥(23)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Available-for-sale:
Equity securities

Total

$(253)

The impairment losses on available-for-sale equity securities for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, were ¥101 million and ¥276
million ($2,942 thousand), respectively.

6. INVENTORIES
Inventories at March 31, 2012 and 2013, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

Merchandise and finished goods
Works
Work-in-process
Raw materials and supplies
Total

¥

94

2013

¥

49

2013

$

524

732

926

9,846

9,515

12,483

132,733

118

102

1,087

¥10,459

¥13,561

$144,191

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
The Group holds some rental properties such as office buildings and land in Tokyo and other areas. The net of rental income and
operating expenses for those rental properties for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, was ¥781 million and ¥809 million
($8,608 thousand), respectively.
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In addition, the carrying amounts, changes in such balances and market prices of such properties are as follows.

Millions of Yen
Carrying Amount

March 31, 2011
¥53,773

Fair Value

Decrease

March 31, 2012

March 31, 2012

¥52,888

¥58,935

¥(884)

Millions of Yen
Carrying Amount

March 31, 2012
¥52,888

Decrease

Fair Value

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2013

¥52,017

¥58,703

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2013

$553,084

$624,169

¥(871)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Carrying Amount

March 31, 2012
$562,348

Decrease

Fair Value

$(9,263)

Notes: 1) Carrying amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet is net of accumulated depreciation.
2) Fair value of properties is mainly measured in evaluations of real estate appraisal value.
3) Real property partially used as rental properties is included.

8. LONG-LIVED ASSETS
At March 31, 2012, the Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment, and as a result, recognized an impairment loss of ¥1,074
million as Other—net among the OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) section. The recoverable amount of long-term prepaid expenses was
measured at its value in use, and the discount rates used for computation of present value of future cash flows were 1.02% and 2.00%.
Others were considered to have no recoverable value.
At March 31, 2013, the Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment, and as a result, recognized an impairment loss of ¥665
million ($7,080 thousand) as Other—net among the OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) section. The recoverable amount of long-term
prepaid expenses was measured at its value in use, and the discount rates used for computation of present value of future cash flows
were 0.65% and 1.77%. Others were considered to have no recoverable value.

9. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2012 and 2013, consisted of loans from banks and other financial institutions of ¥4,733 million
and ¥21,268 million ($226,137 thousand), respectively.
The weighted-average interest rates applicable to the borrowings at March 31, 2012 and 2013, were 3.26% and 5.62%, respectively.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2012 and 2013, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

2013

2013

−

−

−

¥ 78,960

¥ 97,214

$1,033,643

3,836

3,438

36,561

82,797

100,652

1,070,205

Loans from banks and other financial institutions, maturing in installments through 2023
bearing weighted-average interest of 1.49% (2012) and 1.90% (2013)
Collateralized
Unsecured
Lease obligations
Total
Less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
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(27,143)
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Annual maturities of long-term debt, excluding finance leases (see Note 20) at March 31, 2013, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2014

¥25,869

$ 275,066

2015

15,295

162,627

2016

7,508

79,839

2017

3,472

36,917

Year Ending March 31

2018
2019 and thereafter
Total

2,697

28,686

42,370

450,506

¥97,214

$1,033,643

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for trade accounts payable of ¥325 million ($3,460 thousand) at March 31, 2013,
were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Cash and cash equivalents

¥122

$1,300

Total

¥122

$1,300

As is customary in Japan, both short-term and long-term bank loans are made under general agreements which provide that security
and guarantees for present and future indebtedness will be given upon request of the bank, and that the bank shall have the right to
offset cash deposits against obligations that have become due or, in the event of default, against all obligations due to the bank. At
March 31, 2013, the Group is not in default of its obligations and none of the cash deposits with banks were offset against any
recorded obligations.

10. BONDS
Bonds at March 31, 2013, consisted of the following:

Issuer

Dentsu Aegis

Bond name

Issue date

Series A, B and C

July 28, 2005,

Senior Unsecured

September 17, 2007

Interest rate
(%)

Security

Maturity date

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2013

2013

¥47,723

$507,426

September 17,
2014 –
5.50–6.50

Network Ltd.

Millions of Yen

Unsecured

Notes (U.S. Private

and December 17,

December 17,

Placements)

2009

2019

AEGIS GROUP
CAPITAL (JERSEY)
LIMITED 2.50 PER
Aegis Group
CENT.

April 20, 2010

2.50

Unsecured

April 20, 2015

46,207

491,312

−

−

¥93,931

$998,739

Capital (Jersey) Ltd.
GUARANTEED
CONVERTIBLE
BOND DUE 2015
Total

−

−

−

There was no bond at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2013, because Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. and Aegis Group Capital
(Jersey) Ltd. were newly consolidated during the year ended March 31, 2013.
The all convertible bond shown above was redeemed by the Company on April 17, 2013, due to the change in controlling
shareholders. Accordingly, disclosure of the detail has been omitted.
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The repayment schedule of bonds at March 31, 2013, was as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2014

¥78,779

$837,638

2015

6,493

69,043

2016

3,030

32,220

2017

−

−

2018

4,329

46,028

2019 and thereafter

1,298

13,808

¥93,931

$998,739

Year Ending March 31

Total

The amount to repay in 2014 includes early redemptions of all convertible bond and ¥32,572 million ($346,326 thousand) of U.S.
private placements bonds in April 2013.

11. ACCRUED PENSION AND SEVERANCE COSTS
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans. Some consolidated subsidiaries have defined
contribution pension plans.
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have offered an early retirement program to their employees. The program
provides additional benefit payments for employees who elect early retirement benefit before the mandatory retirement age of 60.
Related expenses for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, which are recognized when the employees accept the offer and the
amount can be reasonably estimated, were ¥1,043 million and ¥1,777 million ($18,900 thousand), respectively, which were included in
Other—net among the OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) on the consolidated statement of income.
The liability for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2012 and 2013, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unrecognized prior service benefits
Unrecognized actuarial loss
Net liability
Prepaid pension cost
The liability for employees’ retirement benefits
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2012

2013

2013

¥154,974

¥ 159,755

$1,698,624

(90,222)
9,210

(105,354)
8,191

(1,120,198)
87,095

(43,907)

(28,178)

(299,612)

30,054

34,413

365,909

7,647

7,902

84,027

¥ 37,702

¥ 42,316

$ 449,936
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The components of net periodic benefit costs and relevant gains and losses for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

2013

2013

¥ 6,843

¥ 7,408

$ 78,770

Interest cost

2,987

3,019

32,106

Expected return on plan assets

(1,150)

(1,205)

(12,820)

Recognized actuarial loss

3,921

3,709

39,441

Amortization of prior service benefits

(1,019)

(1,019)

(10,838)

Service cost

718

869

9,240

12,301

12,781

135,900

Expenses for early retirement program

1,043

1,777

18,900

Loss on revision of retirement benefit plan

1,172

−

−

¥14,517

¥14,559

$154,800

Contributions for defined contribution pension plans
Net periodic benefit costs

Total

Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, are set forth as follows:

2012

2013

mainly 2.0%

Discount rate

mainly 2.0%

mainly 2.5%

mainly 2.5%

Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss

mainly 17 years

mainly 17 years

Amortization period of prior service benefits

mainly 17 years

mainly 17 years

Expected rate of return on plan assets

The liability for retirement benefits at March 31, 2012 and 2013, for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members was ¥502 million
and ¥378 million ($4,026 thousand), respectively, which was included in Accrued pension and severance costs among the LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES on the consolidated balance sheet. The retirement benefits for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members are paid
subject to the approval of the shareholders.

12. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
The changes in asset retirement obligations for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Balance at beginning of year
Additional provisions associated with the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Reduction associated with meeting asset retirement obligations
Balance at end of year

2012

2013

2013

¥838

¥852

$9,060

78

53

574

(64)

(0)

¥852

¥905

(4)
$9,630

13. NOTES MATURED ON THE CLOSING DATE
Notes matured on the closing date are settled on the closing date. Although the last days of the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013,
were bank holidays, notes which matured on the closing date were treated as if they were settled on the date. Notes matured on the
closing date of the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows.
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Receivables—Trade notes
Payables—Trade notes
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2012

2013

2013

¥1,970

¥1,793

$19,071

998

1,251

13,305
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14. EQUITY
Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act. The significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and
accounting matters are summarized below:

a. Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon
resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria such as; (1) having a board of directors, (2) having
independent auditors, (3) having an Audit & Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors is prescribed as one year
rather than two years of normal term by its articles of incorporation, the board of directors may declare dividends (except for
dividends-in-kind) at anytime during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The Company meets
all the above criteria.
The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation
and additional requirements.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the board of directors if the articles of incorporation of
the company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of
treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after
dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

b. Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve and surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained
earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the equity account charged upon the payment
of such dividends until the total aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the amount of common
stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. The
Companies Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can
be transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

c. Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the board
of directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders which is
determined by a specific formula.
Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity.
The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury
stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

15. STOCK OPTIONS

a. The stock options outstanding at March 31, 2013, are follows:

Information Services International-Dentsu, Ltd.

Stock Option

Persons Granted

Number of Options Granted

Date of Grant

Exercise Price

116,000 shares

November 20, 2002

¥1,700

Exercise Period

10 directors
From June 26, 2004
2002 Stock Option

3 employees

to June 25, 2012
6 others
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b. The stock option activity is as follows:

Information Services International-Dentsu, Ltd.

2002 Stock Option

For the year ended March 31, 2013
Nonvested

March 31, 2012—Outstanding

−

Granted

−

Canceled

−

Vested

−
−

March 31, 2013—Outstanding

Vested

March 31, 2012—Outstanding

54,000

Vested

−

Exercised

−

Canceled

54,000
−

March 31, 2013—Outstanding

¥1,700

Exercise price

−

Average stock price at exercise

16. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Other—net for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses
Impairment loss on long-lived assets
Gain on sales of noncurrent assets
Amortization of goodwill
Loss on transfer of business
Provision for loss on litigation
Other
Other—net
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2013

2013

¥ (1,491)

¥(2,048)

$ (21,776)

(1,074)

(665)

(7,080)

19
(863)
(4,560)
−

420
(2,284)
−
(2,577)

4,470
(24,293)
−
(27,404)

(3,078)

(2,777)

(29,529)

¥(11,050)

¥(9,932)

$(105,613)
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17. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Acquisition of Consolidated Subsidiaries

Acquisition cost and net payments for assets and liabilities of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd., a newly consolidated subsidiary acquired
through stock purchase, for the year ended March 31, 2013, were as follows:

Current assets

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

¥ 424,795

$ 4,516,703

Noncurrent assets

53,775

571,773

519,076

5,519,154

Current liabilities

(477,468)

(5,076,753)

Long-term liabilities

(154,460)

(1,642,324)

Goodwill

Minority interests

(598)

Acquisition cost of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.’s stocks

(6,365)

365,119

Cash and cash equivalents
Due to former Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. shareholders
Net payments for the acquisition

3,882,188

(56,244)

(598,022)

(295,401)

(3,140,898)

¥

13,474

$

143,266

Note: The above amounts are provisional amounts reflected in the consolidated balance sheet for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

18. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in
normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 41% for the year ended March 31, 2012, and 38% for the year ended March 31, 2013.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards, which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at
March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

2013

2013

¥ 38,754

¥ 40,361

$ 429,152

Accrued expenses

8,144

10,005

106,379

Write-down of marketable and investment securities

4,684

4,372

46,495

Tax loss carryforwards

6,938

10,761

114,424

Other

7,555

10,241

108,890

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued pension and severance costs

Less valuation allowance
Total

(8,968)

(8,694)

(92,440)

¥ 57,109

¥ 67,048

$ 712,902

¥ (16,596)

¥(16,556)

$(176,037)

(3,570)

(6,023)

(64,043)

−

(7,217)

(76,739)

Deferred tax liabilities:
Gain on contribution of securities to the employee retirement benefit trust
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Valuation of intangible assets related to business combinations
Other
Total
Net deferred tax assets
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(301)

(7,611)

(80,929)

¥(20,469)

¥(37,408)

$(397,750)

¥ 36,640

¥ 29,639

$ 315,151
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The tax effects of land revaluation at March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Deferred tax assets on land revaluation

2012

2013

2013

¥ 7,919

¥ 7,919

$84,209

(7,919)

Less valuation allowance

−

Total
Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation
Net deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation difference

(7,919)

(84,209)

−

−

(9,038)

(9,038)

(96,100)

¥(9,038)

¥(9,038)

$(96,100)

Reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying
consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2012, was as follows:

2012

41.0%

Normal effective statutory tax rate
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes

2.6

Tax-exempt dividends received

(1.3)
2.3

Amortization of goodwill

(5.8)

Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Effect of the tax rate reduction

3.2
4.1

Other—net

46.1%

Actual effective tax rate

For the year ended March 31, 2013, the difference between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate after
the application of deferred tax accounting was less than 5% of the normal effective statutory tax rate. Accordingly, disclosure of the
reconciliation has been omitted.

On December 2, 2011, new tax reform laws were enacted in Japan, which changed the normal effective statutory tax rate from
approximately 41% to 38% effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012, through March 31, 2015, and to 36%
afterwards.

19. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Research and development costs charged to income were ¥1,408 million and ¥1,747 million ($18,584 thousand) for the years ended
March 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively.

20. LEASES
The Group leases certain structures, computer equipment and other assets.
Obligations under finance leases and future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases were as follows:

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2013

2012

Due within one year
Due after one year
Total

2013

Finance leases

Operating leases

Finance leases

Operating leases

Finance leases

Operating leases

¥1,264

¥ 3,072

¥1,273

¥12,580

$13,545

$133,761

2,571

13,218

2,164

63,440

23,016

674,542

¥3,836

¥16,291

¥3,438

¥76,021

$36,561

$808,304
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

a. Group policy for financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments, mainly short-term cash deposits, as fund management and bank loans as fund-raising. Derivatives
are used, not for speculative purposes, but to manage exposure to financial risks as described in b. below.

b. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

The Group seeks to reduce risks related to trade notes and trade accounts receivables which are exposed to customer credit risk in
accordance with internal credit management guidelines. Marketable and investment securities, such as held-to-maturity securities and
equity instruments of customers, are exposed to the risk of market price fluctuations.
Payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are less than one year. Bank loans are used for operations (mainly
short-term), and capital investments, treasury stocks and new investments (mainly long-term). As some of these loans are at floating
rates and exposed to interest rate risks, the Company enters into interest rate swaps to fix the cash outflow. Additionally, Dentsu Aegis
Network Ltd. and its subsidiaries use interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge market risks resulting from
fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates of receivables and payables.
Foreign currency receivables and payables are exposed to market risks resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates,
and the Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to hedge these risks in principle.
Derivatives mainly include forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps, which are used to manage exposure to market
risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates of receivables and payables, and from changes in interest rates of bank loans.
Please see Note 23 for more details about derivatives.

c. Risk management for financial instruments

Credit risk management

The Company manages its credit risk on the basis of internal credit management guidelines. Controlling balances and maturity dates of
receivables of each client through cooperation between each administration and accounting departments in accordance with internal
accounting guidelines, and monitoring the financial condition of main clients on a regular basis, the Group seeks to improve collectability
of trade receivables affected by deterioration in financial conditions and to recognize such situations earlier. The consolidated subsidiaries
also managed credit and debt collection, and applied a management system which required them to report to and to obtain approval
from the Company for certain important transactions and events.

Market risk management (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk)

Foreign currency receivables and payables are exposed to market risk resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge such foreign exchange risk.
Interest rate swaps are used to manage exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates of loan payables.
Additionally, Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. and its subsidiaries use interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge
market risks resulting from fluctuations in interest rates and in foreign currency exchange rates of receivables and payables.
Marketable and investment securities are managed by monitoring market prices and the financial position of issuers on a regular basis
and market prices of listed stocks are measured quarterly.
Derivative transactions are prohibited for the purpose of short-term trading and speculation. These transactions are conducted in
specified ranges based upon actual demand. All derivative transactions are required to be approved by the manager in charge of the cash
management department before and after the transactions. In addition, all derivative transactions are reported to and approved by the
manager in charge of the accounting department on a regular basis. The Company uses hedging transactions to manage exposure to
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market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates when the terms of the transactions exceed a certain
period of time. These transactions are required to be approved by the director of accounting before and after the transactions.

Liquidity risk management

The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring adequate funding through planning and managing funding plans based on reports
from each department.

d. Fair values of financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active markets. If a quoted price is not available, other rational valuation
techniques are used instead. This fair value may sometimes change as the computation of the price includes variable factors and the
Group adopts a different premise. Amounts of derivative contracts, which are noted in Note 23, do not indicate market risks.
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(1) Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying amounts, fair values and unrealized gains (losses) at March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows.
Financial instruments whose quoted value is not available are not included in the following.
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2012

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Unrealized Gain (Loss)

¥176,746

¥176,746

−

491,398

491,398

55,207

54,378

¥ (829)

Total

¥723,352

¥722,522

¥ (829)

Short-term borrowings

¥

¥

Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months
Receivables—notes and accounts
Marketable and investment securities

4,733

−

414,121

414,121

−

9,277

9,277

−

−

−

−

78,960

82,553

¥(3,592)

Total

¥ 507,092

¥510,684

¥(3,592)

Derivatives

¥

¥ (1,082)

¥ (278)

Payables—notes and accounts
Payables—other
Bonds
Long-term debt (except for lease obligations)

4,733

−

(804)

Millions of yen
March 31, 2013

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Unrealized Gain (Loss)

¥ 208,356

¥ 208,356

−

816,251

816,251

76,510

77,405

¥

894

Total

¥ 1,101,118

¥ 1,102,012

¥

894

Short-term borrowings

¥

¥

Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months
Receivables—notes and accounts
Marketable and investment securities

21,268

−

21,268

−

Payables—notes and accounts

785,377

785,377

−

Payables—other

331,486

331,486

−

Bonds

93,931

93,931

Long-term debt (except for lease obligations)

97,214

100,421

¥(3,207)

−

Total

¥1,329,277

¥1,332,485

¥(3,207)

Derivatives

¥

¥

¥

15,129

15,052

(76)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2013

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Unrealized Gain (Loss)

$ 2,215,379

$ 2,215,379

−

8,678,905

8,678,905

813,512

823,023

$

9,510

Total

$11,707,797

$11,717,307

$

9,510

Short-term borrowings

$

$

Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months
Receivables—notes and accounts
Marketable and investment securities

226,137

−

Payables—notes and accounts

8,350,638

8,350,638

−

Payables—other

3,524,577

3,524,577

−

998,739

998,739

1,033,643

1,067,746

Bonds
Long-term debt (except for lease obligations)

226,137

−

−
$(34,102)

Total

$14,133,736

$14,167,838

$(34,102)

Derivatives

$

$

$
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Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months, and receivables—notes and accounts

The carrying values of cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months, and receivables—notes and accounts approximate fair
value because of their short maturities.

Marketable and investment securities

The fair values of marketable and investment securities are measured at the quoted market price of the stock exchange for the equity
instruments, and at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain debt instruments. Securities whose quoted value
is not available and whose fair value cannot be estimated are not included. Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates which have quoted
prices are accounted for by the equity method. Information on the fair value for marketable and investment securities by classification is
included in Note 5.

Payables and short-term borrowings

The carrying values of payables and short-term borrowings approximate fair value because of their short maturities.

Long-term debt (except for lease obligations)

Long-term debt (except for lease obligations) includes the current portion of long-term debt (except for lease obligations). The fair value
of long-term debt (except for lease obligations) is determined by discounting the cash flows related to the debt at the Group’s assumed
corporate borrowing rate.

Bonds

The bonds are scheduled to be purchased and redeemed by the Company. Therefore, the fair values of bonds are measured at their
scheduled redemption amounts.

Derivatives

Information on the fair value for derivatives is included in Note 23.

(2) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies

2012

2013

2013

¥39,465

¥38,249

$406,693

17,930

19,224

204,406

Investments in limited liability companies

405

405

4,306

Other

781

864

9,196
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e. Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2012

Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months
Receivables—notes and accounts

Due in one
year or less

Due after one year
through five years

Due after five years
through ten years

Due after ten
years

¥176,746

−

−

−

490,514

¥ 883

−

−

−

5

−

−

Marketable and investment securities
Available-for-sale securities with contractual maturities
Corporate bonds

−

500

−

−

Total

¥667,260

¥1,388

−

−

March 31, 2013

Due in one
year or less

Due after one year
through five years

Due after five years
through ten years

Due after ten
years

¥ 208,356

−

−

−

815,651

¥ 599

−

−

Other

Millions of Yen

Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months
Receivables—notes and accounts
Marketable and investment securities
Available-for-sale securities with contractual maturities
Corporate bonds

47

5

−

−

Other

−

1,200

−

−

¥1,024,055

¥1,804

−

−

Due after one year
through five years

Due after five years
through ten years

Due after ten
years

$ 2,215,379

−

−

−

8,672,531

$ 6,374

−

−

509

53

−

−

−

12,759

−

−

$10,888,419

$19,186

−

−

Total

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2013

Cash, cash equivalents and time deposits over three months
Receivables—notes and accounts

Due in one
year or less

Marketable and investment securities
Available-for-sale securities with contractual maturities
Corporate bonds
Other
Total

Please see Note 9 for annual maturities of long-term debt, Note 10 for repayment schedule of bonds and Note 20 for obligations under
finance leases.
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22. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Transaction with related party:

For the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company sold part of its holdings of Publicis Groupe S.A. securities.

Millions of Yen
2012

¥66,746

Proceeds from sales of Publicis Groupe S.A. securities

2,119

Gain on sale of Publicis Groupe S.A. securities
Note: Along with the transaction noted above which was made in February 2012, Publicis S.A. is no longer a related party of the Company.

There was no significant transaction with related party for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Summary of financial data for principal affiliate:

For the year ended March 31, 2012, Publicis Groupe S.A. was a principal affiliate. A summary of this affiliate’s financial data is presented
below. The company’s stock is listed on Euronext Paris.

Amount (Millions of Euros)
At December 31, 2011

Current assets

€9,524

Non-current assets

6,926

Current liabilities

10,333

Non-current liabilities

2,186

Equity

3,931

January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011

Revenues

€5,816

Income of consolidated companies before taxes

860

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent

600

Note: This summary shows consolidated financial data. “Income of consolidated companies before taxes” includes income before income taxes and minority interests.

There was no significant affiliate for the year ended March 31, 2013.

23. DERIVATIVES
The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts, currency option contracts and currency swap contracts to hedge foreign
exchange risk associated with certain assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The Group also enters into interest rate
swaps to manage its interest rate exposures on certain liabilities.
All derivative transactions are entered into to hedge interest and foreign currency exposures incorporated within the Group’s business.
Accordingly, market risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements in the value of hedged assets or liabilities.
Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major international financial institutions, the Group does not anticipate
any losses arising from credit risk.
Derivative transactions entered into by the Group have been made in accordance with each company regulation which regulates the
authorization.
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Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied
Millions of Yen

Contract
Amount

Contract Amount
due after One Year

¥2,364

−

¥(63)

¥(63)

75

−

(0)

(0)

Buying Other

600

¥2

(1)

(1)

Selling U.S.$

653

20

(25)

(25)

Selling Other

315

−

(1)

(1)

¥ 166

−

¥ (5)

¥ (5)

March 31, 2012

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying U.S.$
Buying EUR

Currency option contracts:
Buying call option U.S.$
(Option fee)

(6)

Selling put option U.S.$

−

156

(Option fee)

6

6

(6)

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2013

Contract
Amount

Fair
Value

Contract Amount
due after One Year

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying U.S.$

¥13,540

¥

946

¥

403

¥

403

Buying EUR

16,413

Buying CAD

2,280

0

(16)

(16)

Buying AUD

2,713

−

(21)

(21)

(11)

(11)

67

67

−

(57)

(57)

Buying SGD

1,356

−

Buying Other

6,249

329

Selling U.S.$

393

−

(12)

(12)

Selling EUR

892

−

(24)

(24)

Selling HKD

1,753

−

(2)

(2)

Selling NZD

1,700

−

10

10

Selling ZAR

507

−

(2)

(2)

Selling Other

482

−

5

5

245

−

Currency option contracts:
Buying call option U.S.$

¥

¥

29

¥

29

(Option fee)

(7)

Buying call option EUR

83

−

31

31

Selling put option U.S.$

231

−

7

7

(25)

(25)

(Option fee)

(7)

Selling call option EUR

83

−

¥15,844

¥15,844

¥ 2,498

¥ 2,498

−

−

¥(1,447)

¥(1,447)

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate receipt, floating rate payment)

Acquisition option derivatives:
Acquisition of shares put option
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Contract
Amount

Contract Amount
due after One Year

Fair
Value

$143,966

$ 10,058

$ 4,288

174,523

−

March 31, 2013

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying U.S.$
Buying EUR

$ 4,288
(609)

(609)

Buying CAD

24,250

7

(173)

(173)

Buying AUD

28,848

−

(226)

(226)

(124)

(124)

715

715

Buying SGD

14,418

−

Buying Other

66,451

3,498

Selling U.S.$

4,179

−

(135)

(135)

Selling EUR

9,493

−

(258)

(258)

Selling HKD

18,648

−

(28)

(28)

Selling NZD

18,083

−

111

111

Selling ZAR

5,400

−

(29)

(29)

Selling Other

5,131

−

54

54

2,612

−

Currency option contracts:
Buying call option U.S.$

$

(Option fee)

$

311

$

311

(75)

Buying call option EUR
Selling put option U.S.$

893

−

336

336

2,464

−

75

75

(Option fee)

(75)

Selling call option EUR

893

−

$168,465

$168,465

−

−

Hedged
Item

Contract
Amount

Contract Amount
due after One Year

Fair
Value

Payables

¥ 61,171

¥48,718

¥(996)

332

−

33

1,584

−

212

877

−

¥ 15

−

20

(272)

(272)

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate receipt, floating rate payment)

$ 26,565

$ 26,565

$(15,395)

$(15,395)

Acquisition option derivatives:
Acquisition of shares put option

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2012

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying U.S.$
Buying Other
Selling U.S.$

Receivables

Currency option contracts:
Buying call option U.S.$

Payables

(Option fee)

¥

(27)

Selling put option U.S.$

Payables

(Option fee)

830
(27)

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate payment, floating rate receipt)

Long-term debt
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Millions of Yen
March 31, 2013

Hedged
Item

Contract
Amount

Contract Amount
due after One Year

Payables

¥49,123

¥39,414

¥8,959

44,138

−

4,147

Payables

¥ 1,091

−

Payables

1,034

Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying U.S.$
Buying GBP
Currency option contracts:
Buying call option U.S.$
(Option fee)

¥

115

(26)

Selling put option U.S.$
(Option fee)

−

20

¥ 456

(26)

Currency swap contracts:
U.S.$ receipt, EUR payment

Long-term debt

¥ 4,329

¥ 4,329

Long-term debt

¥15,750

−

Hedged
Item

Contract
Amount

Contract Amount
due after One Year

Payables

$522,307

$419,078

$95,260

469,306

−

44,100

Payables

$ 11,600

−

$ 1,223

Payables

10,997

−

215

$ 4,856

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate payment, floating rate receipt)

¥

(76)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2013

Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying U.S.$
Buying GBP
Currency option contracts:
Buying call option U.S.$
(Option fee)

(280)

Selling put option U.S.$
(Option fee)

(280)

Currency swap contracts:
U.S.$ receipt, EUR payment

Long-term debt

$ 46,028

$ 46,028

Long-term debt

$167,464

−

Interest rate swaps:
(fixed rate payment, floating rate receipt)

$

(813)

The fair value of derivative transactions is measured at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the
parties and do not measure the Group’s exposure to credit or market risk.

Currency option contracts are zero cost options.
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24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2013, the Group had the following contingent liabilities:

Guarantees of loans or other liabilities

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

¥1,855

$19,724

b. LAWSUITS

The Company has been sued by the 3 companies noted below for compensation related to a fictitious order in the Company name or a
partnership name by a former employee of the Company that occurred in the Company’s partnership business for operation of a live music club.
With respect to one of the lawsuits in which the Planning Advertising Cooperative Association is the plaintiff, the lawsuit is currently
on trial in the District Court (court of first instance). The Company provides for losses to the extent that the occurrence is probable and
the liabilities can reasonably be estimated, and has included this amount in Other current liabilities.
For other lawsuits, although the Company may potentially be found liable for an amount of the compensation depending on the
outcome of the lawsuits, the amount of compensation cannot be reasonably estimated at the present time.

Plaintiff

Defendant

Amount of Lawsuit

Situation

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

¥4,553

$48,416

Planning Advertising

Shibuya Entertainment Review 21

Cooperative Association

Common Partnership and its

currently on trial in the first instance.

three member companies

The Company provides for losses to

including the Company

the extent that the occurrence is

A lawsuit for commission fees

probable and the liabilities can
reasonably be estimated, and has
included this amount in Other current
liabilities.
Mode2 inc.

The Company

197

2,101

1 lease company

The Company

93

991

A lawsuit for commission fees
currently on trial in the first instance.
A lawsuit for lease fees currently on
trial in the first instance.

Total

¥4,843

$51,510

The Group is involved in other pending litigation and disputes which arise in the ordinary course of business. While it is not possible to
predict the outcome of those litigation and disputes, the Company believes, after consultation with legal counsel, that the results of such
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect upon the Group’s financial condition and results of operations.
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25. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen
2012

2013

2013

¥11,572

¥ 17,087

$181,687

(12,882)

(136,972)

4,205

44,714

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities:
Gains arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss
Amount before income tax effect
Income tax effect
Total

407
11,979
(1,785)

(2,404)

(25,570)

¥10,194

¥ 1,800

$ 19,144

¥ 1,421

Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting:
¥40,203

$427,472

2,645

(26,247)

(279,083)

Amount before income tax effect

4,067

13,955

148,388

Income tax effect

(1,688)

(5,303)

(56,387)

Gains arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss

Total

¥ 2,378

¥ 8,652

$ 92,000

¥ (4,163)

¥ 9,637

$102,477

166

1,769

9,804

104,247

−

−

¥ (4,021)

¥ 9,804

$104,247

¥15,287

¥

599

$

6,371

¥15,287

¥

599

$

6,371

¥23,839

¥20,856

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Adjustments arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss
Amount before income tax effect
Income tax effect
Total

142
(4,021)
−

Share of other comprehensive income in associates:
Gains arising during the year
Total
Total other comprehensive income
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26. NET INCOME PER SHARE
Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013,
was as follows:

Millions of Yen

Thousands of Shares

Yen

Net Income

Weighted-average Shares

EPS

¥29,573

249,153

¥118.69

Year Ended March 31, 2012

Basic EPS:
Net income available to common shareholders
Effect of dilutive securities:
968

−

¥28,604

249,153

¥114.81

Millions of Yen

Thousands of Shares

Yen

Net Income

Weighted-average Shares

¥36,336

249,150

40

−

¥36,296

249,150

Warrants of affiliated companies
Diluted EPS: Net income for computation

Year Ended March 31, 2013

U.S. Dollars
EPS

Basic EPS:
Net income available to common shareholders

¥145.84

$1.55

¥145.68

$1.55

Effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants of affiliated companies
Diluted EPS: Net income for computation
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27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a. Appropriations of retained earnings
The board of directors has proposed the following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2013, which was subject to approval at
the Company’s shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 27, 2013:

Year-end cash dividends, ¥16.00 ($0.17) per share

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

¥3,986

$42,385

b. Financing for the acquisition of Aegis Group plc
The Company entered into the following loan agreements to raise funds for the acquisition of Aegis Group plc.

(1) Lender: Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
i

Loan amount

¥200,000 million ($2,126,528 thousand)

ii

Interest rate

Floating (TIBOR + spread)

iii

Loan date

June 3, 2013

iv

Repayment date

May 30, 2014

v

Collateral or guarantee

None

vi

Other

None

(2) Lender: The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
i

Loan amount

¥60,000 million ($637,958 thousand)
(¥30,000 million ($318,979 thousand) for 7 years and
¥30,000 million ($318,979 thousand) for 8 years)

ii

Interest rate

Floating (LIBOR + spread)

iii

Loan date

April 12, 2013

iv

Repayment date

April 13, 2020 (7 years)

v

Collateral or guarantee

None

vi

Other

None

April 12, 2021 (8 years)

(3) Lender: Syndicate with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. as lead manager (syndicated loan)
i

Loan amount

¥30,000 million ($318,979 thousand)

ii

Interest rate

Floating (LIBOR + spread)

iii

Loan date

April 17, 2013

iv

Repayment date

April 19, 2022

v

Collateral or guarantee

None

vi

Other

None

The Company borrowed ¥260,000 million ($2,764,486 thousand) from The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. on April 5, 2013, and
repaid ¥60,000 million ($637,958 thousand) and ¥200,000 million ($2,126,528 thousand) on April 12, 2013, and June 3, 2013, respectively.
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c. Early redemption of U.S. private placement bonds issued by Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.
On April 25, 2013, Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. conducted early redemptions of $316 million and GBP25 million of its private placement
bonds issued in the U.S. market due to the change in controlling shareholder.

(1) Description of bond to be redeemed and redemption amount
i

U.S. private placement bonds

ii

Total issue amount

$316 million and GBP25 million

iii

Interest rate

5.5%–6.5%

iv

Redemption amount

Approximately $393 million and GBP31 million

(2) Redemption method and period
i

Redemption method

Redemption by purchase

ii

Redemption period

April 25, 2013

(3) Method of financing for redemption
Through loans as noted in d. below.

d. Financing for the early redemption of U.S. private placement bonds issued by Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.
The Company and Aegis Triton Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd., established to borrow funds for
redemption of U.S. private placement bonds) entered into the following loan agreements to raise funds for the early redemption of U.S.
private placement bonds issued by Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.

(1) Lender: Syndicate with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. as lead manager (syndicated loan)
i

Borrower

ii

Loan amount

$400 million

iii

Interest rate

Floating (LIBOR + spread)

iv

Loan date

April 24, 2013

v

Repayment date

April 24, 2018

vi

Collateral or guarantee

vii Other

The Company

None
The Company borrowed funds and lent them to Aegis Triton Ltd.

(2) Lender: Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation
i

Borrower

Aegis Triton Ltd.

ii

Loan amount

$400 million

iii

Interest rate

Floating (LIBOR + spread)

iv

Loan date

April 24, 2013

v

Repayment date

April 24, 2020

vi

Collateral or guarantee

The Company and Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. provided guarantees on the loan.

vii Other
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about its
reportable segments. Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria.
Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate financial information is available and such information is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally,
segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment performance
and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

a. Description of reportable segments
The Group’s reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and regular evaluation by the
Company’s management is being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated among the Group. Therefore, the Group
consists of the advertising, information services and other business segments. The advertising segment provides clients with advertising
strategy planning and related creative services, and with assistance in the placement of advertisements in various media, such as
television, newspapers, magazines, radio, trains and buses, billboards and the Internet. The advertising segment also provides clients with
sales promotion, event marketing, interactive communications, brand management, sports and entertainment marketing, public
relations, direct marketing, market research and e-solution services. The information services segment provides clients with information
services, such as information technology management. The other business segment provides clients with office rent, building
maintenance, temporary staffing, fiduciary services of computation, etc.

b. Methods of measurement for the amounts of sales, profit (loss), assets and other items for each reportable segment
The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies.”

c. Information about sales, profit (loss), assets and other items
Millions of Yen
2012
Reportable segments

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Total

Reconciliations

Consolidated

¥1,833,394

¥52,975

¥ 6,685

¥1,893,055

−

¥1,893,055

363

10,896

11,361

22,621

¥ (22,621)

−

1,833,758

63,871

18,046

1,915,676

(22,621)

1,893,055

Sales
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers
Total
Segment profit

46,618

1,775

622

49,016

2,961

51,977

Segment assets

1,170,591

56,869

87,263

1,314,724

(112,829)

1,201,894

11,790

2,916

572

15,279

(1,027)

14,251

1,832

613

−

2,445

−

2,445

20,806

127

760

21,695

−

21,695

7,895

1,957

187

10,040

(414)

9,625

Other:
Depreciation
Amortization of goodwill
Investments in
affiliated companies
Increase in property,
plant and equipment
and intangible assets
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Millions of Yen
2013
Reportable segments

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Total

¥1,878,515

¥56,341

¥ 6,365

¥1,941,223

330

14,752

10,181

25,264

¥ (25,264)

−

(25,264)

1,941,223

Reconciliations

Consolidated

−

¥1,941,223

Sales
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

1,878,846

71,094

16,547

1,966,488

Segment profit

52,853

3,053

924

56,831

Segment assets

2,167,809

61,445

78,267

2,307,522

(101,953)

2,205,569

Depreciation

9,957

3,008

562

13,528

(599)

12,928

Amortization of goodwill

2,694

645

−

3,340

−

3,340

49,579

30

803

50,414

−

50,414

49,083

2,847

661

52,592

Total

1,634

58,466

Other:

Investments in
affiliated companies
Increase in property,
plant and equipment
and intangible assets

(1,153)

51,438

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2013
Reportable segments

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Total

$19,973,586

$599,057

$ 67,686

$20,640,330

3,518

156,861

108,253

268,632

$ (268,632)

−

(268,632)

20,640,330

Reconciliations

Consolidated

−

$20,640,330

Sales
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales or transfers

19,977,104

755,918

175,940

20,908,963

Segment profit

561,970

32,469

9,828

604,268

Segment assets

23,049,545

653,330

832,187

24,535,063

(1,084,036)

23,451,027

105,870

31,989

5,981

143,841

(6,375)

137,466

28,651

6,864

−

35,515

−

35,515

527,162

329

8,547

536,039

−

536,039

521,889

30,278

7,030

559,198

Total

17,383

621,652

Other:
Depreciation
Amortization of goodwill
Investments in
affiliated companies
Increase in property,
plant and equipment
and intangible assets
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Related Information

a. Information about products and services
Information about products and services is omitted as the same information is disclosed within “segment information.”

b. Information about geographical areas

(1) Sales
Millions of Yen
2012

Japan

Others

Total

¥1,628,110

¥264,945

¥1,893,055

Millions of Yen
2013

Japan

Others

Total

¥1,647,018

¥294,205

¥1,941,223

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2013

Japan

Others

Total

$17,512,154

$3,128,176

$20,640,330

Note: Sales are classified in countries or regions based on location of customers.
“Others” consists substantially of the United States of America and China.

(2) Property, plant and equipment
Information about property, plant and equipment is omitted as the balance in Japan has exceeded 90% or more of the total balance of
property, plant and equipment of the consolidated balance sheet.

c. Information about major customers
Information about major customers is omitted as no customer accounts for more than 10% of the net sales in the consolidated statement
of income.
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Information about impairment losses of assets by reportable segments
Millions of Yen
2012

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Elimination/
Corporate

Total

¥1,057

¥17

−

−

¥1,074

Impairment losses of assets

Millions of Yen
2013

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Elimination/
Corporate

Total

¥665

−

−

−

¥665

Impairment losses of assets

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2013
Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Elimination/
Corporate

Total

$7,080

−

−

−

$7,080

Impairment losses of assets

Information about amortization of goodwill and goodwill by reportable segments
Millions of Yen
2012

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Elimination/
Corporate

Total

¥ 1,832

¥ 613

−

−

¥ 2,445

39,025

5,313

−

−

44,339

Total

Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill at March 31, 2012

Millions of Yen
2013

Advertising

Information
Services

Other
Business

Elimination/
Corporate

¥ 2,694

¥ 645

−

−

571,341

4,667

−

−

576,009

Total

Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill at March 31, 2013

¥

3,340

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2013
Information
Services

Other
Business

Elimination/
Corporate

28,651

$ 6,864

−

−

6,074,872

49,630

Advertising

Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill at March 31, 2013

$

−

−

$

35,515
6,124,502

Note: For the year ended March 31, 2013, ¥519,076 million ($5,519,154 thousand) of goodwill in the advertising segment, which is related to the acquisition of
Aegis Group plc, is a provisional amount because the purchase price allocation has not been finalized.
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Geographical Information

The geographical segments of the Company and its subsidiaries are summarized as follows:
Millions of Yen
2012

Sales to customers

Japan

Others

Total

¥1,639,874

¥253,181

¥1,893,055

1,932

8,382

10,314

Interarea sales
Total sales

1,641,806

Operating income

¥

¥

3,877

Consolidated

−

¥1,893,055

¥

51,854

−

¥(10,314)

1,903,370

261,563

47,976

Elimination/
Corporate

1,893,055

(10,314)
¥

¥

123

51,977

Millions of Yen
2013

Sales to customers

Japan

Others

Total

Elimination/
Corporate

Consolidated

¥1,666,033

¥275,189

¥1,941,223

−

¥1,941,223

1,646

7,252

8,898

¥(8,898)

−

1,667,679

282,442

1,950,122

(8,898)

1,941,223

Interarea sales
Total sales
¥

Operating income

¥

53,431

4,789

¥

58,221

¥

245

¥

58,466

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2013

Sales to customers

Japan

Others

Total

Elimination/
Corporate

Consolidated

$17,714,340

$2,925,990

$20,640,330

−

$20,640,330

Interarea sales

17,502

77,116

94,619

$(94,619)

−

17,731,842

3,003,107

20,734,950

(94,619)

20,640,330

Total sales
Operating income

$

568,118

$

50,928

$

619,046

$ 2,605

$

621,652

Note: “Others” consists substantially of the United States of America and China.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Summary
Dentsu Inc.
Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (1)
except
per share data

Millions of yen
except
per share data

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2013

¥1,447,410

¥1,315,072

¥1,396,798

¥1,404,663

Cost of sales

1,254,694

1,129,592

1,203,669

1,210,027

1,214,508

12,913,436

Gross profit

192,716

185,479

193,129

194,636

197,867

2,103,855

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

168,845

159,165

159,329

162,942

162,101

1,723,563

23,870

26,313

33,799

31,693

35,766

380,291

Income (loss) before income taxes

(25,466)

28,830

26,551

61,642

42,489

451,772

Net income (loss)

(32,771)

27,055

17,471

42,212

28,189

299,725

For the year:
Net sales

Operating income

¥1,412,376 $15,017,291

At year-end:
Total assets

¥ 986,741

¥1,010,812

¥1,011,538

¥1,065,664

Total equity

383,028

406,410

415,206

463,098

¥1,409,387 $14,985,508
492,505

5,236,630

Per share data (yen/dollar)(2):
Net income (loss)
Basic

¥ (127.55)

¥

108.67

¥

70.12

¥

169.42

¥

113.14 $

1.20

−

−

−

ー

ー

−

35

27

29.5

31

32

0.34

12.4

14.2

17.5

16.3

18.1

−

Return on equity (ROE)(5)

−

6.9

4.3

9.6

5.9

−

Return on assets (ROA)(6)

2.3

2.6

3.3

3.1

2.9

−

38.8

40.2

41.0

43.5

34.9

−

−

24.8

42.1

18.3

28.3

−

Diluted(3)
Cash dividends

Ratios (%):
Operating margin(4)

Equity ratio(7)
Dividend payout ratio(8)

Notes: (1) U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen at the rate of ¥94.05 = US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing
on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market on March 31, 2013.
(2) Per share data for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 through 2013 is based on the number of shares outstanding after
the stock split implemented in January 2009.
(3) Diluted net income per share for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 is not recorded because Dentsu recorded a net loss
per share. Diluted net income per share for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 is not recorded because it was no less
than basic net income per share for the same period. There was no diluted net income per share for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2011 through 2013.
(4) Operating margin = operating income ÷ gross profit × 100
(5) ROE = net income ÷ average total shareholders’ equity based on total shareholders’ equity at the beginning and end
of the fiscal year × 100
ROE for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 is not recorded because Dentsu recorded a net loss.
(6) ROA = operating income ÷ average total assets based on total assets at the beginning and end of the fiscal year × 100
(7) Equity ratio = total shareholders’ equity ÷ total assets × 100
(8) Dividend payout ratio = cash dividend per share ÷ net income per share × 100
Dividend payout ratio for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 is not recorded because Dentsu recorded a net loss.
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(Years ended March 31)

Net Sales

(Billions
of yen)

Gross Profit

(Billions
of yen)
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Sales
(Years ended March 31)

Net Sales by Business Category
(Non-Consolidated)

(Millions of yen)

■ Television Time

1,600,000

■ Television Spot
■ Newspapers

1,200,000

■ Magazines
■ Radio
■ Interactive Media

800,000

■ OOH Media
■ Creative

400,000

■ Marketing/Promotion
■ Content Services
■ Others

0
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Net Sales by Business Category (Non-Consolidated)
Years ended March 31

2009

Television
¥ 692,992 47.9%
Time
343,431 23.7
Spot
349,561 24.2
Newspapers
146,766 10.1
4.1
Magazines
60,010
1.5
Radio
22,014
1.8
Interactive Media (1)
26,220
2.9
OOH Media (2)
42,056
Creative
177,438 12.3
Marketing/Promotion 170,868 11.8
5.7
Content Services (3)
82,104
1.9
Others
26,938
Total
¥ 1,447,410 100.0%

Millions of yen
2010

¥ 626,274 47.6%
289,464 22.0
336,810 25.6
9.3
122,264
3.3
43,392
1.5
19,434
2.6
34,606
3.0
39,233
164,973 12.5
167,209 12.7
5.7
75,492
1.7
22,191
¥ 1,315,072 100.0%

2011

¥ 658,056 47.1%
285,668 20.5
372,387 26.7
8.6
119,643
2.8
39,159
1.3
18,580
3.2
45,392
3.1
43,911
178,959 12.8
181,381 13.0
6.4
89,721
1.6
21,992
¥ 1,396,798 100.0%

2012

2013

658,179 46.9%
286,724 20.4
371,454 26.4
8.2
115,502
2.6
36,500
1.2
17,420
3.5
48,984
3.4
48,396
187,981 13.4
179,120 12.8
6.0
83,904
2.0
28,672
¥ 1,404,663 100.0%
¥

¥ 666,480 47.2%
302,164 21.4
364,315 25.8
7.8
110,553
2.5
35,896
1.1
16,027
3.9
54,808
3.5
49,780
187,804 13.3
166,068 11.8
6.3
89,358
2.5
35,598
¥ 1,412,376 100.0%

Notes: (1) Interactive Media refers to Internet and mobile-related media.
(2) OOH Media stands for out-of-home media and comprises transportation and outdoor billboard advertising.
(3) Content Services refers to rights sales, planning and production as well as other content-related services in the sports and entertainment fields.
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■ Information/Communications
■ Beverages/Cigarettes
■ Cosmetics/Toiletries

Net Sales by Industry
(Non-Consolidated)

(Millions of yen)

■ Finance/Insurance
■ Distribution/Retailing
■ Foodstuffs

1,600,000

■ Automobiles/Related Products
■ Pharmaceuticals/Medical Supplies

1,200,000

■ Food Services/Other Services
■ Transportation/Leisure
■ Home Electric Appliances/AV Equipment

800,000

■ Hobbies/Sporting Goods
■ Government/Organizations

400,000

■ Apparel/Fashion, Accessories/Personal Items
■ Real Estate/Housing Facilities
■ Others

0
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Net Sales by Industry (Non-Consolidated)
Years ended March 31

2009

Information/
Communications
¥ 183,808 12.7%
Beverages/Cigarettes
151,928 10.5
Cosmetics/Toiletries
7.4
107,758
Finance/Insurance
7.0
101,356
Distribution/Retailing
4.8
69,237
Foodstuffs
5.8
83,376
Automobiles/
Related Products
7.2
103,827
Pharmaceuticals/
Medical Supplies
76,674
5.3
Food Services/
Other Services
4.7
67,674
Transportation/Leisure
4.5
64,776
Home Electric
Appliances/
AV Equipment
7.1
102,065
Hobbies/
Sporting Goods
5.2
75,626
Government/
Organizations
3.1
44,692
Apparel/Fashion,
Accessories/
Personal Items
2.4
34,576
Real Estate/
Housing Facilities
2.9
42,623
Others
9.5
137,406
Total
¥1,447,410 100.0 %

Millions of yen
2010

¥ 165,615
150,393
102,573
83,532
64,913
84,546

2011

12.6%
11.4
7.8
6.4
4.9
6.4

¥ 193,950
152,238
117,583
95,724
72,402
80,495

2012

13.9%
10.9
8.4
6.9
5.2
5.8

¥ 189,524
152,797
125,929
95,123
90,014
83,901

2013

13.5%
10.9
9.0
6.8
6.4
6.0

¥ 193,473
152,584
123,903
99,624
98,063
88,871

13.7%
10.8
8.8
7.1
6.9
6.3

75,010

5.7

69,257

5.0

73,203

5.2

86,549

6.1

73,849

5.6

77,060

5.5

70,414

5.0

68,349

4.8

68,166
55,548

5.2
4.2

67,915
56,680

4.9
4.1

63,266
57,928

4.5
4.1

64,490
60,168

4.6
4.3

78,268

6.0

83,288

6.0

74,329

5.3

59,536

4.2

69,179

5.3

60,659

4.3

56,991

4.1

56,861

4.0

60,163

4.6

70,564

5.1

66,388

4.7

55,031

3.9

31,304

2.4

38,289

2.7

42,583

3.0

44,574

3.2

35,898
2.7
116,108
8.8
¥1,315,072 100.0 %

37,375
2.7
123,310
8.8
¥1,396,798 100.0 %

43,448
3.1
118,819
8.5
¥1,404,663 100.0 %

2.9
41,431
8.4
118,862
¥1,412,376 100.0 %

Notes: (1) The above ranking is based on data for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.
(2) Dentsu reviews the criteria for each industry category frequently for the purposes of its own accounts. Accordingly, these categories may differ qualitatively from those used in Advertising
Expenditures in Japan for the respective years. Figures for previous years have been recalculated to reflect the current industry breakdown as of March 31, 2013.
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Market Data
(Calendar year)

Size of Major Advertising Markets

(Millions of
U.S. dollars)

■ United States

600,000

■ China

500,000

■ Japan
■ United Kingdom

400,000

■ Germany
■ France

300,000

■ Brazil

200,000

■ Rest of Europe
■ Rest of Asia-Pacific

100,000

■ Rest of Latin America
■ Others

0
2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

Size of Major Advertising Markets
Calendar year

2008

$183,065.6 36.9%
United States
8.6
42,691.5
China
69,507.9 14.0
Japan
4.5
22,245.4
United Kingdom
3.4
16,827.9
Germany
2.8
13,997.6
France
1.6
7,990.5
Brazil
71,029.2 14.3
Rest of Europe
8.3
41,372.7
Rest of Asia-Pacific
1.2
5,708.8
Rest of Latin America
4.3
21,323.2
Others
$495,760.2 100.0%
Total

Millions of U.S. dollars at current prices
2009

$158,782.0 35.0%
47,962.7 10.6
61,506.7 13.5
19,716.7
4.3
15,457.4
3.4
12,421.1
2.7
8,346.9
1.8
60,001.1 13.2
40,180.7
8.8
6,027.1
1.3
5.2
23,773.2
$454,175.6 100.0%

2010

$162,905.0 33.7%
54,690.7 11.3
60,681.0 12.6
4.4
21,362.1
3.2
15,675.1
2.7
13,161.4
2.0
9,859.1
64,132.8 13.3
9.5
45,663.2
1.5
7,108.7
5.7
27,684.9
$482,924.0 100.0%

2011

2012

$164,901.0 33.1%
62,998.8 12.6
59,298.6 11.9
4.6
23,021.8
3.2
15,749.0
2.7
13,346.9
2.1
10,673.1
65,717.4 13.2
9.8
49,112.8
1.6
8,089.9
5.2
25,912.8
$498,822.3 100.0%

$171,432.0 33.5%
66,824.6 13.1
61,185.7 12.0
4.7
23,973.5
3.0
15,285.0
2.5
12,908.9
2.2
11,484.7
63,344.7 12.4
51,750.6 10.1
1.8
9,038.0
4.7
24,083.1
$511,310.9 100.0%

Note: These totals are for major mass media, including television, newspapers, magazines, radio, cinema, outdoor and Internet advertising.
Source: CARAT ADSPEND FORECAST SEPTEMBER 2013
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(Billions of yen)

Advertising Expenditures in Japan
and Advertising Expenditures in Japan
as a Percentage of Nominal GDP

(%)
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0.8

2,000

0.4
■ Advertising expenditures in Japan
ー Advertising expenditures in Japan

0

0
2008

2009

2010

2011

as a percentage of nominal GDP

2012

Advertising Expenditures in Japan and Advertising
Expenditures in Japan as a Percentage of Nominal GDP
Calendar year

Advertising expenditures in Japan
Nominal GDP
Advertising expenditures in Japan as a
percentage of nominal GDP

Billions of yen

2008

¥

6,692.6
501,209.3
1.34%

2009

¥

5,922.2
471,138.7
1.26%

2010

¥

5,842.7
482,384.4
1.21%

2011

¥

5,709.6
470,623.2
1.21%

2012

¥

5,891.3
475,729.0
1.24%

Note: Advertising expenditures include expenditures on terrestrial television, newspapers, magazines and radio advertising, expenditures on marketing flyers inserted in newspapers, exhibitions and
screen displays, direct mailings, outdoor advertisements, transit advertisements, advertisements in telephone directories, point-of-purchase (POP) advertisements, satellite media-related and
Internet advertisements.
Source: Dentsu, 2012 Advertising Expenditures in Japan
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Advertising Expenditures in Japan by Medium
Calendar year

2008

Billions of yen
2009

¥1,909.2 28.5%
Television
827.6 12.4
Newspapers
6.1
407.8
Magazines
2.3
154.9
Radio
1.0
67.6
Satellite Media-Related
698.3 10.4
Internet
2,627.2 39.3
Promotional Media
¥6,692.6 100.0%
Total

2010

¥1,713.9 29.0%
673.9 11.4
5.1
303.4
2.3
137.0
1.2
70.9
706.9 11.9
2,316.2 39.1
¥5,922.2 100.0%

2011

¥1,732.1 29.6%
639.6 11.0
4.7
273.3
2.2
129.9
1.3
78.4
774.7 13.3
2,214.7 37.9
¥5,842.7 100.0%

2012

¥1,723.7 30.2%
599.0 10.5
4.4
254.2
2.2
124.7
1.6
89.1
806.2 14.1
2,112.7 37.0
¥5,709.6 100.0%

¥1,775.7 30.2%
624.2 10.6
4.3
255.1
2.1
124.6
1.7
101.3
868.0 14.7
2,142.4 36.4
¥5,891.3 100.0%

Source: Dentsu, 2012 Advertising Expenditures in Japan

Advertising Expenditures in the Four Traditional Mass Media in Japan by Industry
Calendar year

2008

1.5%
Energy/Materials/Machinery ¥ 48.7
9.1
Foodstuffs
301.4
7.5
Beverages/Cigarettes
246.8
Pharmaceuticals/
5.6
Medical Supplies
183.6
8.9
Cosmetics/Toiletries
293.8
Apparel/Fashion, Accessories/
3.5
Personal Items
115.8
Precision Instruments/
1.2
Office Supplies
40.8
Home Electric Appliances/
2.5
AV Equipment
81.8
5.8
Automobiles/Related Products 192.2
1.8
Household Products
61.0
5.1
Hobbies/Sporting Goods
169.2
4.5
Real Estate/Housing Facilities
147.5
Publications
3.5
114.1
Information/Communications
7.3
241.4
Distribution/Retailing
6.4
210.6
Finance/Insurance
6.4
212.9
Transportation/Leisure
8.2
269.4
Food Services/Other Services
4.4
144.2
Government/Organizations
1.4
45.5
Education/Medical Services/
Religion
3.0
100.1
Classified Ads/Others
2.4
77.7
Total
¥3,299.5 100.0%

2009

¥

Billions of yen

2010

2011

34.2
288.0
217.8

1.2%
10.4
7.9

5.8
9.7

145.9
287.9

5.3
10.4

143.5
276.8

93.1

3.3

101.2

3.7

30.7

1.1

29.4

70.5
134.5
58.9
142.0
112.6
94.5
203.3
191.3
151.4
233.5
134.8
47.6

2.5
4.8
2.1
5.0
4.0
3.3
7.2
6.8
5.3
8.2
4.8
1.7

73.3
131.6
65.0
123.1
102.9
92.6
220.9
182.2
153.8
211.1
138.6
40.8

32.7
288.5
227.0

1.2%
10.2
8.0

163.3
275.9

3.0
85.4
2.0
55.8
¥2,828.2 100.0%

¥

2012

1.0%
9.9
7.3

26.2
283.2
209.8

1.0%
10.2
7.6

5.3
10.2

148.4
287.8

5.3
10.4

108.1

4.0

116.4

4.2

1.1

26.3

1.0

28.8

1.0

2.6
4.7
2.3
4.4
3.7
3.3
8.0
6.6
5.5
7.6
5.0
1.5

54.4
129.8
64.2
110.6
104.4
89.4
222.0
186.9
141.2
195.2
123.5
108.7

2.0
4.8
2.4
4.1
3.9
3.3
8.2
6.9
5.2
7.2
4.6
4.0

54.1
164.7
64.9
108.5
108.6
92.1
245.2
202.9
144.9
211.2
128.9
33.2

2.0
5.9
2.3
3.9
3.9
3.3
8.8
7.3
5.2
7.6
4.6
1.2

2.9
81.7
1.9
51.8
¥2,774.9 100.0%

¥

27.2
266.1
196.2

2.8
75.7
1.9
50.5
¥2,701.6 100.0%

¥

2.8
78.2
1.5
40.5
¥2,779.6 100.0%

Note: Expenditures include expenditures on terrestrial television, newspapers, magazines and radio advertising, including related creative production costs.
Source: Dentsu, 2012 Advertising Expenditures in Japan
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Subsidiaries and Affiliates
(As of March 31, 2013)

Dentsu conducts its business together with its subsidiaries and affiliates. As of March 31, 2013, the Dentsu Group
included 656 consolidated subsidiaries and 56 affiliated companies accounted for under the equity method.
Consolidated Subsidiaries
Dentsu East Japan Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Advertising in the Kanto
and Tohoku regions as well as Shizuoka and Niigata
prefectures
Dentsu West Japan Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Advertising in the Chugoku region
and Shikoku as well as Hyogo, Ishikawa, Fukui and Toyama
prefectures
Dentsu Kyushu Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Advertising in Kyushu
Dentsu Hokkaido Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Advertising in Hokkaido
Ad Dentsu Osaka Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Advertising in the Kansai region
Dentsu Meitetsu Communications Inc.1
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 50.0%
Description of Business: Total advertising services, specializing in promotion and OOH
Dentsu Ad-Gear Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 66.7%
Description of Business: Advertising firm specializing in
out-of-home media and store promotions
Dentsu Young & Rubicam Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 51.0%
Description of Business: Advertising company established by
Dentsu and Young & Rubicam

DA search & link Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 55.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 55.0%
Description of Business: Internet advertising
The Goal Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 77.8%
Description of Business: Fashion and accessories industry
advertising
Dentsu Tec Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Planning and production for sales
promotions, events, commercials, print, etc.
Dentsu Creative X Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: All areas of the creative content
production business
Dentsu Customer Access Center Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 100.0%
Description of Business: Client services for promotions
Dentsu Public Relations Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Public relations planning and
implementation
Dentsu Casting and Entertainment Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Casting services related to advertising
Dentsu Table Media Communications Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 95.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 95.0%
Description of Business: Company specializing in advertising inserts

Cyber Communications Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Internet-based advertising media rep
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Information Services International-Dentsu, Ltd.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 61.9%
Equity Held Indirectly: 0.0%
Description of Business: Information systems building;
software sales and support for various business areas
Dentsu Works Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Environment-related consulting,
building management, real estate services and business
consulting services
Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd.2
Geographic Area: United Kingdom
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Headquarters of the Dentsu
Group’s global business, which oversees operations
outside of Japan
Dentsu Holdings USA, Inc.
Geographic Area: U.S.A.
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Holding company in the U.S.A.
Dentsu McGarry Bowen, LLC
Geographic Area: U.S.A.
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 100.0%
Description of Business: Agency built around serving its
clients and developing “Big, Organizing Ideas” that drive
results for icon brands. Awarded Advertising Age’s 2009
and 2011 Agency of the Year
Dentsu Innovation Interactive, LLC
Geographic Area: U.S.A.
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 100.0%
Description of Business: Technology-led innovation partner, which includes 360i, the leading-edge digital agency
who wrote the book on search, social media, and now
mobile; IgnitionOne, offering solutions from online
advertising optimization to attributing results across
channels, allowing marketers to improve their online performance within a single interface

Dentsu-Smart LLC
Geographic Area: Russia
Equity Held by Dentsu: 51.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 51.0%
Description of Business: Dentsu Network operating subsidiary in Russia and the Commonwealth of Independent
States (CIS). Occupies a leading position in the Russian advertising world and is ranked in the top class as a media agency
Beijing Dentsu Advertising Co., Ltd.
Geographic Area: China
Equity Held by Dentsu: 70.0%
Description of Business: With more than 15 years of history and
experience in China, where the market is dynamically changing
amidst rapid economic development, it holds a top position in the Chinese advertising industry
&c. Inc.
Geographic Area: China
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: A top-class digital agency which
plays a major role in the rapidly growing Chinese
Internet market. Leveraging its expertise in the interactive domain, offers strategic planning as well as media
buying and creative development services. Is working to
develop new Chinese and multinational clients in addition to strengthening its Japanese client base
Media Palette (Taiwan) Inc.
Geographic Area: Taiwan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 30.0%
Description of Business: An integrated media communications agency. Has garnered the industry’s No. 1 position not only in media services, but also in the areas of
branded entertainment and casting. Chosen as Taiwan’s
Media Agency of the Year in both 2007 and 2009
Dentsu (Thailand) Ltd.
Geographic Area: Thailand
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 98.4%
Description of Business: A full-service communications
agency with rich experience in the long history of advertising in Thailand. Has continuously been ranked within
the top 10 in the region, and has received various
awards in the creative sphere

Dentsu Latin America Propaganda Ltda.
Geographic Area: Brazil
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Description of Business: Undertakes activities deeply
rooted in the region through its office in São Paulo. Is
achieving sustained spectacular growth in the Latin American
advertising market for which steady growth is foreseen
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Dentsu Media (Thailand) Ltd.
Geographic Area: Thailand
Equity Held by Dentsu: 100.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 51.0%
Description of Business: A Dentsu media agency. Proposes innovative solutions with advanced planning theories
using an array of original strategic tools and unique
content projects

Affiliated Companies Accounted for under the Equity
Method

Dentsu Media Korea Inc.
Geographic Area: Republic of Korea
Equity Held by Dentsu: 67.0%
Description of Business: A large-scale media agency that
focuses on the local media business. Demonstrates a
high standard of know-how on media planning and
buying

Frontage Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 40.0%
Description of Business: Advertising firm that focuses on
branding

and 625 other companies
1

Although Dentsu’s ownership is 50% or less, the company is considered a subsidiary

Beacon Communications K.K.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 34.0%
Description of Business: Advertising firm established by
Dentsu and the Publicis Groupe

Video Research Ltd.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 34.2%
Description of Business: TV audience rating surveys, radio
audience rating surveys and other research

because Dentsu exerts effective control.
2

Aegis Group plc changed its name to Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. on March 26, 2013.

Opt, Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 20.7%
Equity Held Indirectly: 20.7%
Description of Business: e-Marketing business focusing on
Internet advertising
D2C1
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 46.0%
Equity Held Indirectly: 10.0%
Description of Business: Advertising for i-mode and other
mobile platforms
Kakaku.com, Inc.
Geographic Area: Japan
Equity Held by Dentsu: 15.6%
Description of Business: An Internet media company that
operates the customer purchasing support site
Kakaku.com, word-of-mouth restaurant and gourmet
guide site Tabelog and other sites
DCTP Entwicklungsgesellschaft für TV-Programm mbH
Geographic Area: Germany
Equity Held by Dentsu: 37.5%
Description of Business: Development company for TV
programs
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Phoenix Communications Inc.
Geographic Area: Republic of Korea
Equity Held by Dentsu: 33.0%
Description of Business: A listed company that is topranked in the Korean advertising industry. Is attracting
attention in Korea where in-house agencies are the norm.
and 48 other companies
1

D2 Communications Inc. changed its name to D2C on June 1, 2012.
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History

1901

Hoshiro Mitsunaga establishes Japan Advertising Ltd. and Telegraphic Service Co.

1906

Telegraphic Service Co. becomes Japan Telegraphic Communication Co., Ltd.

1907

Japan Advertising Ltd. merges with Japan Telegraphic Communication Co., Ltd. and starts to engage in communication
and advertising operations.

1936

Japan Telegraphic Communication Co., Ltd. relinquishes its news services division to Domei News Agency, and
relaunches itself as a specialized advertising agency.

1943

Dentsu acquires 16 companies in a move to augment its advertising agency business. Operational bases are
established in Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya and Kyushu.

1947
1951

Hideo Yoshida becomes the fourth President. The Dentsu Advertising Awards are established.
Dentsu establishes the Radio Division at its Head Office and local offices. Commercial radio broadcasting
begins in Japan.

1953

Dentsu creates the Radio and Television Division at its Head Office and local offices. Commercial television
broadcasting begins.

1955

Dentsu Advertising Ltd. becomes the new company name.

1961

Dentsu entered into an alliance agreement with Young & Rubicam.

1967

The Tsukiji Head Office Building is completed.

1974

Advertising Age ranks Dentsu No. 1 advertising agency worldwide in terms of (calendar 1973) billings.

1975

Information Services International-Dentsu, Ltd. is established.

1978

Dentsu Incorporated (Dentsu Inc.) becomes the new company name.

1981

The company formerly known as JIMA Dentsu Advertising, Ltd. and U.S. partner Young & Rubicam’s Japanese
affiliate establish Dentsu Young & Rubicam as a joint venture in Tokyo.

1984

Dentsu and U.S.-based Young & Rubicam jointly establish DYR, an international service network.

1989

Dentsu Inc.’s net sales exceed ¥1 trillion in the fiscal year ended March 31, 1989.

1993

Gohei Kogure becomes the first Chairman. Yutaka Narita becomes the ninth President.

1995

Dentsu Inc. establishes five domestic regional subsidiaries.

1996

The Japan–China Advertising Education Exchange Project commences. Dentsu Actis (Tokyo) and three other
Group companies merge to form Dentsu Tec Inc. cyber communications inc. is established.

1997
2000

Dentsu Tec Inc. lists its shares on the over-the-counter market (currently, JASDAQ).
Dentsu Inc. makes an equity investment in the Bcom3 Group. cyber communications inc. lists its shares on the
NASDAQ Japan market of the Osaka Securities Exchange (currently, Hercules). (In 2003, cyber communications inc. lists
its shares on the MOTHERS section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.) Information Services International-Dentsu,
Ltd. lists its shares on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

2001

Dentsu Inc. lists its shares on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE: 4324). Dentsu commemorates
its 100th anniversary.

2002

Yutaka Narita becomes the second Chairman. Tateo Mataki becomes the tenth President. The Bcom3 Group
merges with Publicis Groupe S.A. Dentsu Inc. acquires a 15% stake in the newly formed group. Dentsu’s new
Shiodome Head Office Building opens in November.

2003

Ad Dentsu Tokyo Inc. and Dentsu Tohoku Inc. are merged into Dentsu East Japan Inc.

2004

Ad Dentsu Hokkaido Inc. is merged into Dentsu Hokkaido Inc. Dentsu Inc. implements a stock split (1:2).

2005

The Dentsu Group obtains BS7799 certification and Information Security Management Systems (ISMS) certification.
All of Dentsu Inc.’s domestic branch offices receive ISO 14001:2004 certification. Dentsu EYE Inc. is merged into
Dentsu East Japan Inc.

2006

Dentsu Tec Inc. is converted to a wholly owned subsidiary, and its shares are delisted.

2007

Dentsu’s consolidated net sales reach ¥2 trillion in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Tateo Mataki becomes the
third Chairman. Tatsuyoshi Takashima becomes the eleventh President. Dentsu Inc. and OPT Inc. (an affiliate
company accounted for by the equity method) enter into a basic agreement to reinforce capital and form
a business alliance.
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2008

Dentsu Inc. obtains treasury stock of approximately ¥60 billion. Dentsu Holdings USA, Inc. acquires mcgarrybowen,
LLC of the United States. Dentsu establishes Dentsu-Smart LLC.

2009

With the conversion to electronic share certificates, Dentsu Inc. implements a stock split (1:100).
cyber communications inc. is converted to a wholly owned subsidiary, and its shares are delisted. Dentsu Inc.
announces the Dentsu Group’s new Medium-term Management Plan.

2010

Dentsu Inc. establishes Dentsu Digital Holdings Inc. Dentsu forms a capital and business alliance with the
Suntrend Group (currently, Brandmax Group) of China. Dentsu Holdings USA, Inc. acquires Innovation Interactive
LLC of the United States. Dentsu establishes Dentsu Network West.

2011

Tatsuyoshi Takashima becomes the fourth Chairman. Tadashi Ishii becomes the twelfth President & CEO.

2012

Dentsu Inc. terminates strategic alliance and other agreements with the Publicis Groupe and sells to Publicis a
block of the shares of Publicis held by Dentsu.

2013

Dentsu Inc. acquires the outstanding shares of Aegis Group plc through a scheme of arrangement, an acquisition
method under English law, and converts it to a wholly owned subsidiary. Aegis Group plc changes its name to
Dentsu Aegis Network Ltd. and is currently a consolidated subsidiary of Dentsu.
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Board of Directors, Corporate Auditors
and Executive Officers
(As of July 1, 2013)

Board Members

Executive Officers

Representative Director
Tadashi Ishii

President & CEO
Tadashi Ishii*

Directors
Shoichi Nakamoto
Yuzuru Kato
Tim Andree
Akira Sugimoto
Ryuhei Akiyama
Kunihiro Matsushima
Yoshio Takada
Akira Tonouchi
Kazufumi Hattori

Senior Executive Vice President
Shoichi Nakamoto*

Outside Directors
Satoshi Ishikawa
Yutaka Nishizawa
Corporate Auditors
Senior Corporate Auditors
Tomoharu Tsuruda
Kaoru Shimura
Outside Corporate Auditors
Atsuko Toyama
Toshiaki Hasegawa
Kentaro Koga

Executive Vice Presidents
Yuzuru Kato*
Tim Andree*
Senior Vice Presidents
Akira Sugimoto*
Ryuhei Akiyama*
Kunihiro Matsushima*
Yoshio Takada*
Executive Officers
Kazumichi Iwagami
Akira Tonouchi*
Naoki Tani
Norihisa Awa
Toru Hirano
Kenichi Kato
Fumiharu Kobayashi
Toshihiro Yamamoto
Tsuneo Ogasawara
Kazufumi Hattori*
Nobuyuki Tohya
Tsuyoshi Iwashita
Seiji Ito
Yasuo Motoi
Yuichi Ohkubo
Yoshiaki Suzuki
Wataru Mochizuki
Keiichi Maeda
Kiyoshi Nakamura
Jerry Buhlmann

* Simultaneously serving as Board member
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Information
for Shareholders

Share Information
(As of March 31, 2013)

(As of August 27, 2013)

Corporate Headquarters

Breakdown of Shareholders by Type
Percentage of

1-8-1, Higashi-shimbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-7001, Japan

Number of

Phone: +81-3-6216-5111
Investor Relations
Investor Relations Group,

Shares Held

Shares Issued

Japanese financial institutions

63

67,149,160

24.14

Japanese securities firms

36

6,383,029

2.29

609

79,949,304

28.74

1

29,035,042

10.44

39,853

53,051,706

19.07

380

42,615,759

15.32

40,942 278,184,000

100.00

Global Corporate Office,

Other Japanese corporations

Corporate Strategy Division

Treasury stock

1-8-1, Higashi-shimbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-7001, Japan
Phone: +81-3-6216-8015
E-mail: irmail@dentsu.co.jp

Number of Total Number of

Shareholders

Japanese individuals and others
Foreign institutions and individuals
Total

Stock Exchange Listing
Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section
Securities code: 4324
Total Number of Shares Issued
288,410,000

Major Shareholders
Percentage of
Number of Total Number of
Shares Held

Shares Issued

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd.
(Trust accounts)

20,840,600

7.49

Kyodo News

20,488,800

7.37

Jiji Press, Ltd.

17,748,680

6.38

7-10-11, Higashisuna, Koto-ku, Tokyo 137-8081, Japan

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
(Trust accounts)

12,942,800

4.65

Internet Address

Group Employees’ Stockholding
Association

8,295,021

2.98

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

5,000,000

1.80

Yoshida Hideo Memorial Foundation

4,984,808

1.79

Recruit Holdings Co., Ltd.

General Meeting of Shareholders
The ordinary general meeting of shareholders is held in Tokyo
in June each year.
Transfer Agent
The Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

http://www.dentsu.com

4,929,900

1.77

Tokyo Broadcasting System Television, Inc. 4,000,000

1.44

SSBTOD05OMNIBUS
ACCOUNT-TREATYCLIENTS

1.42

3,956,100

Notes: 1. The shares held are calculated as a percentage of the total number of shares issued.
2. Dentsu Inc. owns 29,035,042 shares, 10.44% of the total number of shares issued, as treasury stock.
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